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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®ME

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board”) of Universe Entertainment and Culture Group
Company Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the 2022/2023 annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 30
June 2023 (the “Year").

During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$198.4 million (For the year ended 30 June 2022 (“Last
Year"): approximately HK$127.6 million) and loss for the Year
of approximately HK$93.4 million (Last Year: approximately
HK$78.9 million). The increase in loss of the Group for the
Year as compared to the Last Year was mainly due to the net
effect of: (i) the increase of impairment loss of film rights and
films in progress by approximately HK$23.9 million during the
Year as compared to Last Year; (i) the Group recorded a gain
on deconsolidation of subsidiaries of approximately HK$18.9
million Last year, however, there was no such gain occurred
during the Year; (iii) the decrease in administrative expenses by
approximately HK$6.8 million during the Year as compared to
Last Year as a result of the implementation of the cost control
measures during the Year and (iv) the decrease in impairment
loss of right-of-use assets by approximately HK$6.9 million
during the Year as compared to Last Year.

The China film market is experiencing significant growth again
after the COVID-19 pandemic and was poised to become the
world's largest film market. With the steady recovery of the
theatrical movie market in China, we are cautiously optimistic
to the outlook of the films distributions and exhibition, licensing
and sub-licensing of films rights business. However, the strong
economy growth rebound that was widely expected to follow
the end of anti-COVID policy has yet to materialize in Hong
Kong and China. Such lackluster performance can be attributed
to a number of factors such as the tense geopolitical situation
between China and United States, global interest rate hikes
and economic slowdown, the on-going Russia and Ukraine
war, supply chain fragility etc. All these may have a dampening
effect on the economy performance and the operation
environment of our business in trade, wholesales and retail of
optical and watches products business and financial printing
business. To adopt the challenge in the upcoming market
environment, we will increase our selling and marketing effort
and continue to adopt cost control measures to deal with the
cost cautious and a volatile business outlook of these business
segments.
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Looking forward, despite of the above difficulties, the Group
will continue to exercise financial prudence to operate our
business with the aim to create value to our stakeholders in the
long run.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | would also like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere thanks and gratitude to my fellow directors and our
staff for their dedicated efforts and contributions to the Group
in the past year. | would also like to thank all our customers and
Shareholders for their trust and support.

By Order of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWmR DN

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Overall Group results

During the year ended 30 June 2023 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$198.4 million (For
the year ended 30 June 2022 (“Last Year”): approximately
HK$127.6 million) and loss for the Year of approximately
HK$93.4 million (Last Year: approximately HK$78.9 million).
The increase in loss of the Group for the Year as compared
to the Last Year was mainly due to the net effect of: (i) the
increase of impairment loss of film rights and films in progress
by approximately HK$23.9 million during the Year as compared
to Last Year; (ii) the Group recorded a gain on deconsolidation
of subsidiaries of approximately HK$18.9 million Last year,
however, there was no such gain occurred during the Year;
(i) the decrease in administrative expenses by approximately
HK$6.8 million during the Year as compared to Last Year as
a result of the implementation of the cost control measures
during the Year; (iv) the decrease in impairment loss of right-
of-use assets by approximately HK$6.9 million during the Year
as compared to Last Year; and (v) the decrease in loss on fair
value change of trading securities by approximately HK$7.1
million during the Year as compared to Last Year.

Films distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights

The Group recorded segmental revenue of approximately
HK$139.2 million during the Year, representing an increase of
approximately 101.7% as compared to approximately HK$69.0
million during Last Year. It accounted for approximately 70.1%
(Last Year: approximately 54.1%) of the Group's revenue
during the Year. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the
increase in revenue from films invested and released by the
Group during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Segment loss from this business segment during the Year
was approximately HK$87.3 million, representing an increase
of 41.5% as compared to approximately HK$61.7 million
during the Last Year. The increase in segmental loss during
the Year as compared to that of Last Year is mainly due to
the increase in impairment loss of film right and films in
progress by approximately HK$23.9 million to approximately
HK$51.4 million during the Year as compared to Last Year of
approximately HK$27.5 million.

The recoverable amount of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits as at 30 June 2023 was assessed
with reference to a value-in-use calculation at the end of
the reporting period, which was derived from discounting
the projected cash flow using a discount rate of 11% (2022:
11%). The increase in impairment loss is principally due to the
decrease in income/expected income from the film rights of
the Group as compared to the budget income as a result of the
change of the expected performance of the films which were
theatrically released.

As the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic gradually faded
out across the country, the film industry of China is gradually
recovering in 2023. According to data released by the China
Film Administration (BIZX &5 /&), Chinese Mainland’s total
box office (including service fees) in the first half of 2023 was
approximately RMB26.3 billion, representing a year-over-year
increase of approximately 52.9%. In response to the growth
of the film market in China in the long run, the Group will
continue to invest in original production of quality films in China
and Hong Kong. Upcoming release includes “I Did It My Way"
("&77") directed by Jason Kwan (B#%5#8) and starring Andy
Lau (2If£%), Gordon Lam (MZ ) and Eddie Peng (T =),
“High Forces"” ("f&#fn4%") directed by Oxide Pang (¥l8) and
starring Andy Lau (2I{f£%£) and Wendy Zhang Zi-feng (3k F41),
“The Trading Floor” ("B 5 F ") directed by Herman Yau (B
#872) and starring Andy Lau (2]12%£) and “Shock Wave 3" (“#f
I EZR3") directed by Herman Yau (E8#£€%) and starring Andy
Lau (BIfE%E).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWmR DN

Looking ahead, the China film market is experiencing
significant growth and was poised to become the world’s
largest film market. China's film production capacity and
quality also continues to improve by further utilizing of the
artificial intelligence to improve productivity and creativity. The
Group will continue to closely monitor the latest market movie
development trend in China and adjust our business plan and
strategy from time to time.

Trade, wholesale and retail of optical and watches
products

The Group engaged in trading, wholesaling and retailing of
optical products and watches products in China and Hong
Kong.

Even the governments of China and Hong Kong have uplifted
the social distancing restrictions in 2023 and business activities
are expected to be resumed normal, the post-pandemic
economy recovery is impeded by global geopolitical and
economic uncertainties. The consumer’s sentiment in China
and Hong Kong is still well below pre-pandemic levels and
our trade, wholesales and retail of optical and watch products
business is still in a difficult operation environment.

During the Year, we closed down the loss-making shops
and scaled down the wholesales business in response to
the decrease in demand of the optical and watch products in
China and Hong Kong. As a result, revenue from this business
segment during the Year was approximately HK$21.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 39.3% as compared
to approximately HK$36.1 million during the Last Year. It
accounted for approximately 11.0% (2022: approximately
28.3%) of the Group's revenue during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Segmental loss from this business segment during the Year
was approximately HK$5.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 45.9% as compared to approximately HK$9.8
million during the Last Year. The decrease in segmental loss
during the Year as compared to that of the Last Year is mainly
due to (i) the decrease in impairment loss of right-of-use assets
by approximately HK$1.4 million during the Year compared to
Last Year; and (ii) the decrease in selling and administrative
expenses by approximately HK$2.8 million during the Year
compared to Last Year as a result of the scaling down of the
non-performing retails and wholesales operations during the
Year.

Looking forward, the post-pandemic business environment
in consumer market is further complicated by mounting cost
pressures in rent and staff cost. To adopt the challenge in the
upcoming market environment, we will increase our selling
and marketing effort and participate in marketing and crowd-
drawing events organized by shopping malls and local society
organizations to attract more customers and promote our
brand’'s awareness. On the other hand, the Group will also
continue to adopt cost control measures to deal with the
cost cautious and a volatile business outlook of this business
segment.

Voluntary winding-up of Fine Ocean Limited

Fine Ocean Limited (“Fine Ocean”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, was principally engaged in
trade, wholesale and retail of optical products in Hong Kong. As
at 30 June 2021, Fine Ocean had total assets of approximately
HK$3.5 million, total liabilities of approximately HK$21.1 million,
net liabilities of approximately HK$17.6 million and recorded
a loss of approximately HK$9.6 million for the year ended 30
June 2021. As at 31 December 2021, Fine Ocean had total
assets of approximately HK$1.8 million, total liabilities of
approximately HK$21.5 million, net liabilities of approximately
HK$19.7 million and recorded a loss of approximately HK$2.0
million for the six months ended 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWmR DN

After due and careful consideration, the shareholders of Fine
Ocean, resolved that Fine Ocean could not by reason of its
liabilities, continue its business, and that it should be wound
up. Accordingly, on 4 January 2022, a special resolution
was duly passed by the shareholders of Fine Ocean to wind
up Fine Ocean by way of creditors’ voluntary liquidation
pursuant to section 228(1)(b) of the Companies (Winding Up &
Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap 32).

Fine Ocean was placed into creditors’ voluntary liquidation
because of its insolvency. The Board believes that the winding-
up of Fine Ocean is in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole because the Group may be able to
reduce its losses in connection with Fine Ocean as well as the
reallocation of management resources to develop its existing
business.

Following the commencement of the winding-up on 4 January
2022, the financial results of Fine Ocean was deconsolidated
from those of the Group. The Group recorded a gain upon
the deconsolidation of Fine Ocean of approximately HK$18.9
million during Last Year. On the other hand, the Group also
recorded an impairment loss on amounts due from Fine Ocean
of approximately HK$10.6 million during Last Year.

Leasing of investment properties

The rental income from leasing of investment properties
remained stable during the Year. The Group recorded rental
income of approximately HK$1.0 million (2022: approximately
HK$1.1 million) during the Year from its properties at Woodland
House 1-5, Woodlands Villa, 121 Tong Fuk Village, Tong Fuk,
Lantau Island, New Territories, Hong Kong. It accounted for
approximately 0.5% (2022: approximately 0.9%) of the Group's
revenue during the Year.

The segment profit of this business segment was
approximately HK$0.8 million (2022: approximately HK$0.9
million) during the Year. There were no additions or disposals
of the investment properties during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Printing

The Group engaged in the business of financial printing
services to provide the services of type-setting, translation,
printing, design, distribution of financial print products and other
related services to the financial sectors in Hong Kong through
Formex Financial Press Limited (“Formex"), a subsidiary of the
Company.

With the new office conference rooms and facilities to our
clients at the World Wide House in the core business area,
Formex continued to grow in revenue during the Year. Revenue
from this business segment during the Year was approximately
HK$27.1 million (2022: approximately HK$21.0 million),
representing an increase of approximately 29.0% as compared
to that of the Last Year. It accounts for approximately 13.6%
(2022: approximately 16.5%) of the Group's revenue during
the Year. Segmental loss from the financial printing segment
was approximately HK$2.0 million during the Year (2022:
approximately HK$11.2 million). The decrease in segmental loss
during the Year as compared to that of the Last Year is mainly
due to the decrease of the impairment loss of approximately
HK$7.3 million on right of use asset and property, plant and
equipment.

Hong Kong is a major global financial hub and there is a high
demand for financial printing services to facilities various
financial transactions and regulatory requirements. On the
other hand, the financial printing industry in Hong Kong is highly
competitive. Several local and international players compete
to provide financial printing services to Hong Kong listed
companies. Formex aims at providing efficient and reliable
services, and offering value-added solutions to diverse clientele
to gain competitive edge in the industry. Going forward, with
the proposal to expand the paperless listing regime by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in coming year, we will
enhance our electronic services to assist our clients to adopt
the coming paperless listing regime in Hong Kong.

Geographical contribution

In terms of geographical contribution, overseas markets
accounted for approximately 71.7% (2022: approximately
79.0%) of the Group’s revenue during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DM

Selling expenses

Selling expenses for the Year is approximately HK$8.1 million
(2022: approximately HK$8.3 million). The selling expenses
was stable during the Year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year decreased by
approximately 10.2% to approximately HK$60.6 million as
compared to approximately HK$67.5 million in the same period
last year. The decrease in administrative expenses is due to the
implementation of the cost control measures during the Year.

OUTLOOK

With the steady recovery of the theatrical movie market in
China, we are cautiously optimistic to the outlook of the films
distributions and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of films
rights business. However, the strong growth rebound that
was widely expected to follow the end of anti-COVID policy
has yet to materialize in Hong Kong and China. Such lackluster
performance can be attributed to a number of factors such
as the tense geopolitical situation between China and United
States, global interest rate hikes and economic slowdown,
the on-going Russia and Ukraine war, supply chain fragility
etc. All these may have a dampening effect on the economy
performance and the operation environment of our business
especially in trade, wholesales and retail of optical and watches
products business and financial printing business.

The Group will closely monitor the changing business
environment, adjust our business strategy and operation
from time to time, and carefully pursue all potential viable
investment and business opportunities to improve the Group's
operation performance.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$80.9 million (2022: approximately
HK$211.8 million). As at 30 June 2023, the Group had total
assets of approximately HK$951.6 million (2022: approximately
HK$1,073.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’'s gearing ratio as at 30 June 2023 was
approximately 3.1% (as at 30 June 2022: approximately 3.1%),
which was calculated on the basis of the Group's total debt
(including borrowings, lease liabilities and bank overdraft)
divided by total equity of the Group.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group’s current ratio (defined as
total current assets divided by total current liabilities) was
approximately 0.30 (as at 30 June 2022: approximately 0.42).

Management has closely monitored the current and anticipated
liquidity of the Group in the future. Having considered the
Group's financial position as at 30 June 2023, and the coming
operation’s plan, the Directors believe that the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to satisfy its future working capital
and other financing requirements for the foreseeable future.

The Group incurred financial cost of approximately HK$379,000,
which is attributable to the interest on lease liabilities during
the Year (2022: approximately HK$515,000).

In light of the fact that most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi. The Group will continue to take proactive
measures and monitor its exposure to the movements of these
currencies closely.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had Shareholders’ capital of
approximately HK$9.1 million (30 June 2022: approximately
HK$9.1 million). The Shareholders’ capital of the Company is
constituted of 906,632,276 shares (30 June 2022: 906,632,276
shares).

The Company did not carry out any fund raising activities by
issuing new shares of the Company during the Year (2022: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
ASSETS

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
assets during the Year (2022: Nil).

THE PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30 June 2023, none of the Group’s assets was pledged
to secure any liabilities (2022: Nil).
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BEEBNWmR DN

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 June 2023, the Group employed 128 staff (2022: 121).
Remuneration is reviewed annually and certain staff are entitled
to commission. In addition to basic salaries, staff benefits
included discretionary bonus, medical insurance scheme and
mandatory provident fund.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on 2 December 2013, the Company conditionally
approved and adopted a share option scheme in compliance
with the Listing Rules (the “Share Option Scheme”). Details of
the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.

(2) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and any
invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

(@) any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity;

(b) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development
of any member of the Group or any invested entity;
and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of the
Group.

Maximum number of share options available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme

(a)

The maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share option granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes for the time being of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. Share options of the Company which
are lapsed or cancelled for the time being shall not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the said
30% limit; and

The maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the dates
of approval of the Share Option Scheme unless
approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the
Shareholders has been obtained.

(e)
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BEEENWE DM

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued upon
exercise of the share options granted and to be granted
to each grantee under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes for the time being of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant to each
grantee must not exceed 1% of the aggregate number of
shares for the time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of the share
options

There is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at
its discretion any such minimum period at the time of
grant of any particular share option. A share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period of 10 years
commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the last
day of the said 10 year period.

Payment on acceptance of the share options offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on
acceptance of the share option offer.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share option
is made and shall be at least the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant which must be
a business day; and (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the subscription price
should not be lower than the nominal value of a share.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme was issued
and outstanding during the Year (2022: Nil).
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil, aged 61, is the founder and
chairman of the Group. He is involved in marketing, corporate
strategy, business planning and development and overall
management of the Group. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of
experience in the film industry in Hong Kong. He was awarded
the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2002.

Mr. LAM Kit Sun, aged 46, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Group. He graduated from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration in Accounting and has over
20 years' experience in the field of financial reporting, financial
management and audit experience in the PRC and Hong Kong.
Mr. Lam is a fellow and practicing member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
("ACCA™), an associate of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and a non-practicing member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lam
was an independent non-executive director of Sinopharm Tech
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8156), whose shares are listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from 1 August 2022 to 16
May 2023. He joined the Group in August 2013.
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EERSHREERAEREN

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Wing Koon, aged 486, is currently the financial
controller and company secretary of Huanxi Media Group
Limited (stock code: 1003), the shares of which are listed on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Choi holds a bachelor’s
degree of business administration in accounting awarded by the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 1999. Mr.
Choi also obtained a master degree of business administration
awarded by the University of Hong Kong in 2014. Mr. Choi is
a fellow of the ACCA and a member of the HKICPA. Mr. Choi
has over 15 years of experience in accounting and company
secretarial field. Mr. Choi is currently the independent non-
executive director of KuangChi Science Limited (stock code:
439), the shares of which are listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He joined the Group in December 2013.

Mr. TANG Yiu Wing, aged 56, is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong, and the founder and a partner of Ivan Tang & Co.. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in Laws, a postgraduate certificate
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong and a master's
degree in Laws from The City University of Hong Kong. He is
a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong and is admitted
as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales and
a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Tasmania. Mr.
Tang has been an independent non-executive director of Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code: 530), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since September
2006. On 11 August 2023, Goldin Financial Holdings Limited
was ordered to be wound up by the Supreme Court of
Bermuda under the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981. Mr. Tang was also (i) an independent non-executive
director of Solomon Worldwide Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8133) from April 2015 to June 2022; (ii) an independent non-
executive director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8366) from July 2017 to June
2019; and (iii) an independent non-executive director of PF
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8221) from December
2020 to January 2021, all of these companies are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in October
2017.
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Ms. PONG, aged 70, is currently a director of Odyssey Group
(International) Limited, a human resources consultancy
company in Hong Kong. Ms. Pong is an affiliate member
of Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management
("HKIHRM"). She has completed the Professional Diploma
in Human Resource Management organized by Hong Kong
Management Association and was awarded several certificates
in connection with Hong Kong employment law issued by
HKIHRM. Ms. Pong has served as consultant, associate
director, director and general manager in various human
resources consulting companies in Hong Kong to provide
recruitment, payroll, staff training, human resources solutions
and compliance services to corporate clients for more than 15
years. Ms. Pong is also considered a veteran in the financial
field. She worked in several local banks for more than 30
years and served senior positions in retail banking and wealth
management entities with experience covering management,
operation and compliance. She is a licensed insurance
intermediary of Insurance Authority in Hong Kong. Ms. Pong
is the currently independent non-executive director of K & P
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 675), the shares
of which are listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She
joined the Group in March 2023.

Mr. LAM Chi Keung (“Mr. CK Lam”), aged 53, holds a
bachelor's degree of science in accounting awarded by
Brigham Young University-Hawaii in 1996. He also obtained a
master’s degree of science in e-Commerce from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2002. Mr. CK Lam is a fellow of the
HKICPA and a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 23 years of experience in
accounting and corporate finance. Since December 2016, Mr.
CK Lam was an independent non-executive director of Nanfang
Communication Holdings Limited (stock code: 1617), whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
from 24 November 2016 to 12 December 2022. Mr. CK Lam
joined the Group in December 2013 and resigned on 8 March
2023.
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TEERRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to attain and maintain high
standards of corporate governance best suited to the needs
and interests of the Group as it believes that effective
corporate governance practices are fundamental to
safeguarding interests of Shareholders and other stakeholders
and enhancing shareholder value. Accordingly, the Company
has adopted and applied corporate governance principles that
emphasise a quality board of Directors (the “Board”), effective
risk management and internal control systems, stringent
disclosure practices, transparency and accountability save as
specifically disclosed below.

The Board has adopted the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”). Continuous efforts are made to review and enhance
the Group's internal controls and procedures in light of changes
in regulations and developments in best practices.

CG CODE AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Company has, throughout the Year, complied with the
code provisions contained in the CG Code except for (i) the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code for the separation of the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO") and (ii)
code provision A2.7 of the CG Code requiring the Chairman to
meet with the non-executive Directors as described below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code sets out that the roles of
the Chairman and CEO should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not at
present have any officer holding the position of CEO. Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil is the founder and Chairman of the Company
and has also carried out the responsibilities of CEO. Mr. Lam
possesses the essential leadership skills to manage the Board
and extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. The
Board considers the present structure to be more suitable to
the Group because it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Group's strategies.
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Code provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the Chairman
to hold meetings at least annually with the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the executive Directors present. As Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil, the Chairman, is also an executive Director, the
Company has therefore deviated from this code provision.

THE BOARD

Duties and Composition of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of business, strategic decisions and
financial performance of the Group for the best interests of
the Shareholders. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power, administration and operation of the Group
to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The Board regularly reviews its arrangement on
delegation of responsibilities and authority to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate in view of the Group's prevailing
circumstances.

The following matters (including changes to any such matters)
are reserved for the approval of the Board:

(@) any matter determined by the Board to be material
involving any conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or a Director.

(b) any matter relating to the formulation of the Company’s
strategies and directions including:

(i) policies relating to the overall strategic direction and
strategic plans of the Company;

(i) policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

(i)  policies relating to the declaration of dividend; and

(iv)  the entering into of contracts involving acquisitions,
investments, disposal of assets or any significant
capital expenditure which are deemed to be material
by the Board.
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(c)

RERARE

financial controls, compliance and risk management:

()  the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets for the Company;

(i) the approval of the Company's consolidated
financial statements and published reports;

(i) the establishment and review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s systems of internal control and
risk management process; and

(iv)  the adoption of, or approval for any significant
changes in, accounting policies or procedures of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

changes to the Company's capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of
new securities, other than in accordance with the terms
of the share option scheme(s) or other incentive schemes
adopted by the Company from time to time.

major appointments and removals:

() appointments to the Board, taking into account any
recommendations of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”);

(i) the appointment of the Chairman;

(i)  recommendation to the Shareholders on the
appointment or removal of the external auditor after
taking into consideration the recommendations of
the audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”); and

(iv) the appointment or removal of the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”).
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(f)  delegation of authority:

() changes to the terms of reference or membership
of any committee of the Board;

(i) changes to the authority delegated to the Chairman
and the senior management; and

(i) matters which exceed the authority delegated to
the Chairman and the senior management.

(g) the adoption, review and approval of changes to the
Corporate Governance Practice Manual of the Company,
the Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions applicable
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors, with
two executive Directors, and three independent non-executive
Directors. The names and biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 17 to 19 of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors are all experienced
individuals, all of them have accounting professional
qualifications or a practising solicitor. Their mix of professional
skills and experience is beneficial to the Board to formulate the
long-term business strategies and monitor the operational and
financial matters of the Group.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

The list of the Directors has been published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively, and
is disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to cover the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING/
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contributions to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company encourages Directors to attend relevant seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time to
time.

All current Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, Mr.
Lam Kit Sun, Mr. Choi Wing Koon, Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and Ms.
Pong Suet Hing, had participated in continuous professional
development with respect to directors’ duties, relevant
programmes and seminars or had perused reading materials
and updated information in relation to business and industrial
development.

The Company is committed to arranging suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development. Each
Director is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure
that he/she is fully aware of his/her roles, functions, duties and
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the
Group.

A record of the training received by the respective Directors are
kept and updated by the Company Secretary.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee or by the
Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director who is appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall retire at
the next annual general meeting.

Currently, all independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years pursuant to code provision
A4.1 of the CG Code. All Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and shall be eligible for
re-election in accordance with the provision of the Listing Rules
and the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). At least
one-third of Directors shall retire from office every year at the
Company's annual general meeting.

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Mr. Choi Wing Koon will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and Bye-law 87(2)
and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Mr. Choi Wing Koon being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at such meeting.

On 8 March 2023, Ms. Pong Suet Hing was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director to the Board. In
accordance with Bye-Law 86(2), Ms. Pong Suet Hing shall
retire from office and, being eligible, will offer herself for re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for re-
election and the candidates who will be proposed to be elected
as Directors, please refer to the circular containing the notice
of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be despatched.
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BOARD MEETINGS
Each year, the Board normally holds two regular board
meetings at approximately half year interval. 5 board meetings

were convened during the Year and the attendances of each
Director at these meetings are set out as follows:

Board meeting

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 4/5
Mr. Lam Kit Sun 5/5
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung

(resigned on 8 March 2023) 4/4
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 5/5
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 5/5
Ms. Pong Suet Hing

(appointed on 8 March 2023) 0/0

ANNUAL AND SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue
with the Shareholders and in particular, communicates with
them in annual general meetings or other special general
meetings and encourages their participation.

1 annual general meeting and no special general meetings
were convened during the Year and the attendances of each

Director at these general meetings are set out as follows:

Annual General

Meeting

Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 11
Mr. Lam Kit Sun mn
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung

(resigned on 8 March 2023) A
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 11
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 11
Ms. Pong Suet Hing

(appointed on 8 March 2023) 0/0
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 29 February 2012) was established by
the Company on 15 July 2005. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman), Ms. Pong
Suet Hing and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and an executive Director,
namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management,
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy.

The model of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company is to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The main principles of the Group's remuneration policies are:

(@) no Director should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration;

(b) remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, levels of responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration;

(c) the management’s remuneration proposals should be
reviewed and approved by reference to corporate goal
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and

(d) recommendations should be made by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.
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3 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at these meetings are
set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Lam Chi Keung
(resigned on 8 March 2023) 2/2
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 3/3
Ms. Pong Suet Hing
(appointed on 8 March 2023) 0/0
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 3/3

The Remuneration Committee assists the Group in the
administration of a fair and transparent procedure for setting
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives
of the Group. The responsibility for reviewing and determining
the remuneration package of individual executive Directors
and senior management of the Group is delegated to the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee has also approved the remuneration
and the discretionary bonuses of the executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group by reference to their
respective levels of responsibilities and performance, industry
benchmarks, prevailing market conditions and the Group's
financial performance. No Director was involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 30 August 2013) was established by
the Company on 15 July 2005. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Pong Suet Hing (as chairman), Mr. Choi
Wing Koon and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and an executive Director,
namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, skills, knowledge and length of service)
of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes to complement
the Company’'s corporate strategy as well as assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in attaining its strategic objectives and
achieving sustainable and balanced development of the Group.
In view of the new amendments of the CG Code in respect
of diversity of board members that has come into effect on
1 September 2013, the Board has formulated and adopted its
diversity policy on 30 August 2013.

The nominations were made in accordance with the objective
criteria (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), with due regard for
the benefits of diversity. During the Year, the Nomination
Committee conducted a review of the Board’'s composition.
The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board structure, size
and diversity annually and recommends any proposed changes
to the Board to complement Company’s corporate strategies.

2 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at these meetings are
set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Pong Suet Hing (Chairman)
(appointed on 8 March 2023) 0/0

Mr. Lam Chi Keung (Chairman)
(resigned on 8 March 2023) 11

Mr. Choi Wing Koon 2/2
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 2/2
Executive Director

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 2/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11 October
1999. The written terms of reference (amended on 29 February
2012), which describe the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee, were prepared and adopted with reference to
“A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in
accordance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman), Ms. Pong Suet Hing and Mr.
Tang Yiu Wing. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Audit Committee meets, at least twice a year, with the
external auditor to discuss any area of concern during the
audit or review. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group's financial and accounting practices,
internal control and risk management. It is also responsible for
reviewing the interim and final results of the Group.

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

4 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of the each committee member at these meetings
are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Lam Chi Keung
(resigned on 8 March 2023) 4/4
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 4/4
Ms. Pong Suet Hing
(appointed on 8 March 2023) 0/0
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement
of the external auditor, the revised accounting standards, the
interim consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 31 December 2022 and annual consolidated financial
statements for the Year. Based on its review and discussions
with management and the external auditor, the Audit
Committee was satisfied that the annual consolidated financial
statements for the Year were prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and fairly present the Group's
financial position and results for the Year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal control
systems and met with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligation prior to
the commencement of and after the completion of the audit.
For details about the internal control review, please refer to the
section headed "Risk Management and Internal Control” in this
report below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for, amongst other things,
the development and review of the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and monitoring the
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and
reviewing the corporate governance compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the annual report.

The corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and
reviewing of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board must ensure that the Company establishes
and maintains effective risk management and internal control
systems to meet the objectives and safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and assets of the Company. The internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance.
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The Board oversees the Group's overall risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis through identifying
and grading risk components, perceiving control impact and
facilitating remediation plan. The development of our risk
management and internal control systems are largely based on
the framework as set down by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO). The risk
management framework, coupled with our internal controls,
ensures the risks associated with our different business units
are effectively monitored, and are in line with the Group's risk
appetite.

The Group adopts the top-down approach to monitor the
principal risks affecting the business. The Board reviews and
approves the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems on an annual basis.

In respect to the absence of a separate internal audit
department in the Group, the Group reviews annually on
whether there is a need for such functional department. Given
the possibility to engage external professional assistance,
the Board opposes to divert resources to establish a separate
internal audit department.

During the Year, an external consultant had been engaged
by the Group to facilitate the Board and the Audit Committee
for the evaluation of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems. Through conducting an annual risk
assessment with the assistance of the external consultant, the
Group had identified and assessed the impact of the strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks of
its major businesses. A three-year rolling internal audit plan
was devised by the Group under a risk based approach with
reference to the results of the annual risk assessment. An
annual internal control review was performed by the external
consultant according to the approved internal audit plan
with a view to making recommendations for improving and
strengthening the internal control systems. The Board will
continue to work with the external consultant to discuss and
follow-up on the status of remediation of the internal control
weaknesses and to monitor the risks of the Group in the
coming years.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure
of inside information with the aim to ensure the insiders are
abiding by the confidentiality requirement and are fulfilling the
disclosure obligation of the inside information.
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Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system and reports the relevant results to the Board. For the
Year, the Board considered that a review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems had
been conducted and considered that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standard and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

The statement of the external auditor of the Company,
ZhongHui Anda CPA Limited, about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report from
pages 73 to 77 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
ZhongHui Anda CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. For the Year, the remuneration
payable to auditors is set out as follows:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Kit Sun is the company secretary of the Company.
His biographical details are set out under the section headed
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT" of Directors and Senior Management Profile
on page 17 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Company adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code") as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code throughout the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a communication
channel between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held each year and
at a place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting. The Board may whenever it thinks
fit convene special general meetings.

The procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the date of
the deposit of such requisition.
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The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with the detail contact
information of the requisitionists and deposited with the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at Shareholders” meetings

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting, or
a special general meeting, the Shareholders should submit
a written notice of those proposals with the detail contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company’'s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be
verified with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong (the
“Share Registrar”) and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting varies according to the nature of the proposal, and the
relevant notice periods are set out as follows:

° At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if
the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the
Company in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company
in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 20 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting.

Note: Business Day means any day on which the Stock Exchange is

open for the business of dealing in securities.

fHEEmIpL

MEERIELERZIEF
EEEMBENEMANEREN A Z A

MARERERARANEBZIELE R
TEESHURAME -

BRI BERASELIERZIEF

Eﬁ%ﬁﬂiﬁAi%ﬁﬁﬂﬁAiﬁﬁ%
CBRRANEBMBATLAIRIZFRE
%Hﬁ%%%éﬂ ERRXARRARNBRZE
BEXWHRITRAAME - ARFAEAAR
AREBZ B ELER (B BRRE )X EZ

B RESENECRERZELSRE
REE®R ARAWBEREREFEERRK

GZEREANMABRRER -

FhE A BRI R I RIB F K& sl R R
AREEBZREMAZERRFLBE 2R
MPEEREZEEMAM AR - BB
HAgLsan R

s HWARMRERRBRIXERFENARE LAR
Al EBRER AAZIR4UAZE
mEAGZRANMABSTERI0ELEEA
(GB) -

o  (HABREEANKESIAE EAQ
RIZERIRER - BIBELRE21IAZE
BN GZBEMEBERERI10EE XA
(50) °

s MEBRERBERRBERBFAGLAR
Al BBRFERIFIIRESR - AIBE
PR21AZzEMBNGLRNPERRER
2018 % H (GE) °

i ZEREBRAHEMETESFEEER2E
mEF -

EFRECEBERDR —T-=FFH

35



36

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

According to the Bye-laws, no person other than a retiring
Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless a notice in writing signed by
a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his/her intention to propose such person
for election as a director and also a notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected (including that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules) shall be lodged with the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or the
Share Registrar’s place of business in Hong Kong provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the notices
are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of
such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

If such notice(s) are received less than ten business days prior
to the date of such general meeting, the Company will need to
consider the adjournment of such general meeting in order to
allow the Shareholders fourteen clear days' notice (the notice
period must include ten Business Days (Note)) of the proposal.

Note: Business Day means any day on which The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited is open for the business of dealing in
securities.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
the Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll
except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted by a show of hands.

BRIERIREER 2R

REBAR - REREEFIH  ERREESHE
BR2EZATETAEBRNEMBRAS L
2EEE BIFEEASERBFERG A
RELRFZBRR(AFRB2EADRES
A HARPARBZALTZEESZZE
M RTBHERAALTELHE@RA - KA
FREEE (BRI HILR EmARRIZE13.51(2)1F
BRZZANLZBEFR)  ZFEMAAL
BERERARARZBEBIBLEWHRITA
AMEXNEBRNDECR BB EXENE - H
ZEEMBAZEREBAAR/E=L LA
MR EERBAN T EAEEMAEHRK
RAREZBERTZR)ZFEABNANT
RERERIRRAASRERBABEERELT
ZBERAEBMAT A EHERZER

3 SRR A 4T BB AT R B R

WEZEEERN AT RARERAHEER

BRI ERAGANNARE HEEEA

(D) ARAREZ BB ZREAGIEHS

7o

i BEREEEMARIMARARIMMET
BHREBRGZEMATF -

URER KR
B8 E AR AISE13.30(4) B - IR BREA

g EMEMRRGANKRETAET  HEE
FERBERIELIRE - £FFAEEARE

FHRITHREERNRZRNBF T ARRER
N o

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Corporate Governance Report

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy to set out the Company’s procedures in providing the
Shareholders and the investment community with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
the Shareholders and the investment community to engage
actively with the Company.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
chairman of the Board, the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, or in their absence,
another member of the Board, committees or an appointed
representative, will attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting to answer questions of the Shareholders. The
Company will also invite representatives of the Auditors to
attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer the
Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”)
on 27 September 2019 which shall take effect on 27
September 2019. The Dividend Policy allows the Shareholders
to participate in the Company's profits by provision of dividends
whilst preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture future
growth opportunities.

According to the Dividend Policy, the Board shall consider
the following factors, among others, before proposing and
declaring dividends:

(i) the Company's operation and financial performance;

(ii) the Company’s liquidity conditions;
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(iii) the Company’s capital requirements and future funding
needs;

(iv) the Company’s contractual restrictions;
(v) the Company'’s availability of reserves; and
(vi) the prevailing economic climate.

The declaration of dividends by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
the Listing Rules, Bye-laws and any applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time by the
Board and may adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant
time. There can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum of association of the Company and the Bye-
laws are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company respectively.
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (thereafter “Group” or
“We") is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") Report ("ESG Report”) which summaries
the Group's ESG policies, initiatives, approach, strategy as well
as performance of the ESG’s matters.

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG
Reporting Guide"”) in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The scope of this report will cover the Group’s whole range of
business activities, including, video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights
("Film Business”), trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical
products and watches products (“Retail Business"), leasing
of investment properties, securities investment, provisions
of type-setting, translation, printing, design, distribution of
financial print products and other related services (“Financial
Printing Business”) for the year ended 30 June 2023.

It is also the intention of the management to provide an
overview of the Group’s direction in managing ESG related
matters and the Group's initiatives on further developing
the concept of ESG to employees, customers and suppliers,
putting them into practices in our daily operations, driving for
ESG initiatives throughout the Group, and communicating our
ESG performance result with our stakeholders by this ESG
Report.
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ESG GOVERNANCE

Delivering the best entertainment, services and products
while generating revenue and profit for our shareholders,
and recognising the importance and contributing to both
the environment and local community have always been
one of our guiding principles. ESG is thus considered a high
priority within the Group, and is especially championed by our
senior management. We endeavors to develop its business
sustainably, and contribute positively to the environment and
the society where its business operates.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) bears
the ultimate responsibility in ESG governance and sets forth
the overall ESG policies, approach, and strategy. Further, the
Board is obligated to evaluate and determine ESG-related risks
and ensure effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems are in place. Disclosures in this ESG Report are
approved by the Board.

With powers delegated by the Board, ESG working
group, which is comprised of the senior management and
representatives from different departments, was set up to
implement the Board's ESG strategies and policies across
departments of the Group, carry out materiality assessments,
evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's ESG related risk
management and report its recommendations to the Board.

An information and data collection template is used for
collecting ESG information and data from relevant departments
and business units of the Group. The ESG Report is prepared
based on the information and data collected. The ESG working
group also supervises the collection of ESG data and assists
the preparation of this ESG Report. Key performance indicators
relating to the Group’s environmental and social performance
are highlighted in the paragraphs below.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We understand fully that standalone effort is minimal and
therefore see the engagement of its stakeholders as essential.
To extend its efforts to a broader audience, we had consulted
both its internal and external stakeholders on its potential
impact on the environment and society as a result of its
business operations. We understand and values relationship
with customers and suppliers, and thus included both parties
as our consultation targets.

The table below presents key stakeholders of the Group as
well as how the Group communicate with them through a
variety of engagement channels during the year.

Internal Stakeholders

o The Board

° Management

° General Staff

External Stakeholders

o Shareholders

° Customers

o Suppliers

° Local Community Groups

We engage our internal and external stakeholders through a
variety of communication channels, including but not limited
to the Company’s annual general meetings, the Group's
annual and interim reports, ESG report, Company's website,
shareholders meetings, company activities, customer

satisfaction survey, community services and business
meetings.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

During the preparation process of this ESG report, the Group
adheres to the following fundamental reporting principles
outlined in the ESG Reporting Guide:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Materiality analysis

Materiality analysis is performed annually to identify
the key ESG issues that are material to our business
operations. We invite various groups of key stakeholders
to participate in a stakeholder engagement exercise
to identify the material sustainability topics for the
ESG Report. We also identify most relevant issues by
reviewing peer companies’ ESG priorities. The results
were then reviewed and approved by the Board.

In this reporting year, a total of thirteen material topics
were identified including (i) greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emission; (i) waste management; (iii) use of resources;
(iv) reducing GHG emission and resources conservation;
(v) employment, labour standard and practices; (vi)
equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination;
(vii) occupational health and safety; (viii) development
and training; (ix) supply chain operating practices and
management; (x) product responsibility; (xi) anti-corruption
and anti-money laundering; (xii) data privacy compliance;
and (xiii) community. In response to the impact that these
issues may cause to our business operations, we have
formulated suitable measures and policies to address
these issues. For details of the policies and the relevance
of the topics to our operations, please refer to the
corresponding chapters of this report. We welcome any
feedback and comments from stakeholders to advance
towards a sustainable future.

Quantitative

We compared the year-to-year environmental and
social data and discussed with the management on its
implications.

Consistency

We adopted a consistent environmental data treatment
approach to allow a fair comparison of our environmental
performance over time.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group's business does not involve in the production-
related direct air, water, or land pollutions, and thus do not
contribute to any material impact in these areas. For the year
ended 30 June, 2023, there were no confirmed incidents of
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating
to air and climate resilience and GHG emissions, and illegal
generation and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

The Group recognises the importance of developing policies
and strategies in line with best practices to address climate
change risks and mitigate the associated impacts on the
Group's business operations. Climate change risks, such
as rising sea levels, extreme weather events and rising
temperatures, can impact the Group’s business, assets and
stakeholders. Therefore, we are committed to doing its part
to combat climate change and conserve our recourses by
monitoring the Group’s most relevant environmental issues as
follow:

° GHG emission;
° Waste management;
° Use of resources; and

° Reducing GHG emission and resources conservation

GHG Emission

The Group's primary business activities branch into Film
Business, Retail Business and Financial Printing Business. The
business nature of the Group’'s Film Business, Retail Business
and Financial Printing Business does not involve direct or
significant emission of GHG from industrial or combustion
process. In other words, the Group concluded that there is no
material impact found, through direct GHG emission, to the
environment as a result of its business operations.
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5 HERERRE

Regardless, the Group brought itself forward to examine
the indirect GHG emissions generated via its operations.
The assessment indicated that electricity consumption, fuel
consumption of own vehicles for transportation, staffs’ air
travel are three of the most significant contributions to such.
The Group thus reports on the captioned air emissions as
follow:

GHG emissions from the Group's operations:

Ewaf  AEEMNEEEBHLEELE
E@Faﬁ%%;‘%*’—:umﬁmﬁl BRHERER - BE
BEEHXBROALEIMEZRERER
B = EJRSE - At - AEE R Ll RPN
WEMT -

KEAEEZENRERBIM

For the year For the year

ended ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
BE-ZE-= o ——
/\ﬁ :+ H /\ H :+ E
Unit By IEEE IEFE
Scope 1 Direct GHG HE1TEEZEZE tonnes CO, ME_S(LIREE 40.8 224.4
emissions TEEHEM equivalent
Scope 2 Indirect GHG ~~ #E2E#EAZE tonnes CO, MI-&LIxE=E 365.0 418.9
emissions REEHER equivalent
Scope 3 Other indirect ~ #ESHEABEE  tonnes CO, WI—&/LIxE=E 0.7 0.5
GHG emissions BEREH equivalent
i34
Total GHG emission BEREHM  tonnes CO, ME_S{LEE 406.4 643.7
B=E equivalent
GHG emission intensity JEZEREHMN  tonnes CO, WA — S 0.002 0.005
B equivalent/ HEE S
revenue (FHBT)
(HK$'000)

Due to the nature of the Group’s operation, emissions of
nitrogen, oxides, sulphur oxides, particular matter and other
air pollutants are not considered significant in the Group's
operations.

The Group will continue to monitor its operational activities
to ensure its GHG emission maintains at a satisfactory
level. Further information shall be disclosed should there be
significant changes to the reported GHG emission levels.
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EENA Aty maty BERTR
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Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Environmental, Social & Governance Report

Waste Management

The Group’s core business involves only Film Business, Retail
Business and Financial Printing Services. However, there were
an insignificant amount of chemicals used during the filming
process (<1 tonne), of which were disposed of safely and
legally by licensed operators. Overall, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with related laws or regulations in
regards to such matters and will continue its strict monitoring
practices.

For non-hazardous waste, the Group had been cautious about
waste generation from daily activities, and have worked closely
with employees and partnered with suppliers on reducing solid
waste. The Group promoted minimising waste generation
and recycling waste and recycling materials, including paper,
cardboard, wood and metal as much as possible, and had
placed recycling bins in easy-to-access locations to increase
employees’ awareness on recycling. The Group promotes the
paper-less working environment. The Group's office, retail
and other business activities generated daily wastes from its
operation. For this reporting period, wastes were produced as
follows:

Unit

Hazardous Waste BEREEY Total Sum
(tonne)

Non-Hazardous Waste  EZEFEEY) Total Sum
(tonne)

Use of Resources

The Group is an environmentally friendly company, and actively
promotes the culture of “Efficient & Green"” operations.
Continued from last year, the Group had continued its efforts
to encourage employees to consume resources smartly,
particularly on paper and electricity.

RE  HEREREKRE
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For the year For the year

ended ended

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
BE-S=-= BHE-_T-——%
~B=+H ~NA=+H

B IEEE HFE

48 2 (88) <0.1 <0.1
s s (ME) 20.7 231.7
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5 HERERRE

Initiatives such as the adoption of energy conservation practices
were successfully implemented in the offices in the past years.
Latest environmental trends and green tips were available
to employees as constant reminders for responsible use of
natural resources. In addition, suitable facilities management
were in place to identify building services that require upgrades
for improved building efficiency and employee comfort.

RMEEEN FERENEFRINERAEHR
17 BAAE TREKRFHORFREMR LI
Mt BEREBEMMAUNASENEAER
RABIR - o HAACHESENOREE
2 UEMNFEETRABTRERBE T
EE TR TR -

A summary of the Group’s consumptions on natural resources AEBR AR E HE R REREDEE 0
during this reporting period is provided as below: ™~
For the year For the year
ended ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
BE-_T-=F HE-Z2—_—
~NBE=+H ~NA=1+H
Consumption ltem #MAER Unit By ILFE IEEFE
Electricity Consumption ES kWh TR 564,694 650,819
Water Consumption Rk L NF 221,000 424,330
Petroleum Consumption 5 H#E M L N 13,013 15,902
Diesel Consumption LoBfEA L N 3,000 69,550
Electricity Consumption A ERE kWh/  FTERBE Iz 2.85 5.10
Intensity revenue (FHEm)
(HK$'000)
Water Consumption K& E L/revenue A & 1.11 3.3
Intensity (HK$'000) (FA&T)

Reducing GHG emissions and resources conservation

We aim to realise environmental sustainability, minimise the
adverse impacts on the environment brought by our business
activities and address the climate change risks in the Group's
operations. The Group is now working toward to reduce
the average annual GHG emission intensity and electricity
consumption intensity in coming 5 years by 20% from 2022
baseline. In order to achieve the above targets, we set out the
following policies and measures to reduce GHG emissions and
resources consumptions as follow:

- air conditioners are set to 23 to 25 Celsius degree;

- employees are encouraged to switch off the idle electrical
appliance to minimise non-essential energy consumption;

R E R,
BMWE 2B RIRE A
EBEHERETRNTFFERERKE -
WEHASEBEZE FRNREELRR - K&
B IR EB NN AR KREFE G F19)8 = REE PR
EhAEREER T - —FHEERE20% °
REWEMEE - BMIBIET T A TEEE RE
M U AR ER M R EIRFER

BN B RRE
EIE - BRI

YRS AEEIK23-25F

?4"5
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- alternative communication channels, such as
videoconferencing and conference calls, are preferred
over unnecessary business travel;

- encourage and support the use of electric vehicles;

- communicating and encouraging customers, contractors,
suppliers and other stakeholders to reduce carbon
emissions in daily operations whenever practicable;

- documents were to be printed or copied double-sided;

- e-marketing material, such as greeting cards were to be
sent via electronic means only;

- Running of idle equipment are forbidden. Employees shall
be encouraged to turn on electrical equipment, including
lighting equipment, air conditioners, fans, etc. during
business hours depending on actual needs, and turn off
the power when not in use;

- The faucets shall be closed in time after using water to
prevent the wastage and leakage of water. We placed
water-saving reminders to encourage employees to use
water resources efficiently and to conserve water; and

- monitoring and responding to market and technological
shifts, regulatory and policy changes associated with
climate change.

The Group will continue to put its best efforts on minimizing
GHG emission, enhancing overall performance and operation
efficiency to save energy through working closely with its
stakeholders.
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SOCIAL

The business of the Group spreads across several industry
sectors. In particular, the Film Business involves working
with a large number of individuals across various industries.
The Group understands the best way to attract or retain
talents is by offering competitive compensations, and treating
employees fairly and equally in regardless of culture, gender
and interests, while complying to laws and regulations. As
one of its guiding principles, the Group commits to growing
its business sustainably and in a socially responsible manner,
whilst continuing its best management practices to improve in
areas as needed.

Employment, Labour Standard and Practices

The Group truly understands that its success depends on the
seamless teamwork among employees and thus recognises
its people as one of the most valuable assets in contributing
toward its achievements. The Group trusted that the works
of excellence must be well compensated, and therefore
have always offering a market competitive remuneration and
benefits scheme to its own employees.

The Group is an Equal Opportunity Employer (“"EQE"). This
means that it is committed to equal treatment of all employees
without regard to race, national origin, religion, gender, age,
sexual orientation, veteran status, physical or mental disability
or other basis protected by law. The Employment Policy of
the Group accords to and exceeds the requirements of the
Employment Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, aiming to
provide a fair compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity and anti-discrimination scheme for all of our
employees.
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During the employment process, the Group made it clear to
responsible recruitment employees that any discrimination
acts against the EOE would not be tolerated. The same policy
extends to its internal training and promotion practices. The
human resource department would also be responsible for
ensuring compliance with all regulations during the employee
recruitment process, where curriculum vitaes and identification
cards are carefully reviewed to prevent any cases of the
employment of child or forced labour, or junior members under
the age of 16 years old as full-time staff. Any breach of such
action will be reported to the company’s senior management
revision and subjected to further company disciplinary action.

In the reporting period between 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023,
the Group has found no material breach of relevant laws and
regulations during operation.

To ensure the remuneration scheme stays competitive,
the Group had established a Remuneration Committee
since 15 July 2005, and with the principle duties of making
recommendations to the Board on the Group's Remuneration
Policy, structure of the Directors and senior management, and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing Remuneration Policy. In addition, the Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for giving suggestions to the
Board on remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and members of the senior management. In detail,
the principles of the Group’s remuneration policies consist of:

(@) ensuring no Director should be involved in deciding his or
her own remuneration;

(b)  ensuring remuneration should be determined by taking
into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment, levels of
responsibilities, employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration;

(c)  reviewing and approving the management'’s remuneration
proposals with reference to corporate goal and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(d) recommending the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management to the Board.
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The Remuneration Committee will also meet regularly to
determine the policy for the remuneration of Directors and
assess the performance of executive Directors and certain
senior management of the Group.

The Group employee’s emolument is determined by the
Remuneration Committee, and it will be assessed based
on merit, qualifications and competence. Remuneration is
reviewed annually and certain employees are entitled to
commission. In addition to basic salaries, employee benefits
included discretionary bonuses, medical insurance scheme and
the mandatory provident fund as stipulated by law.

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees
employed.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the total contributions
paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the Group amounted
to approximately HK$2.8 million (2022: approximately
HK$2.6 million), which had been recognized as expenses and
included in employee costs in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination

The Group’s Corporate Policy includes provisions on handling
discrimination, harassment and victimisation in the workplace.

The Group acquires talents based on their merits to fit in and
contribute to the company regardless of their gender and
age. Together with a transparent employment process, a fair
appraisal, remuneration and incentive scheme, the Group has
attracted a profile of diversified workers to join their workforce.

To uphold the principles of equal opportunities, diversity and
anti-discrimination in the workplace, recruitment and retention
of employees will be based on a range of diversity parameters,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, nationality, ethnicity, industry experience,
professional qualification, skills, knowledge, length of services
or any other factors considered relevant and applicable from
time to time and beneficial to our business operations and
development.
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TEBAHE—T_=F A EREHRK

The following table provided an overview of its employee’s

gender, age distribution and turnover with a total of 128 (2022: 128%(ZZ =% : 121R)EEMMER] - F
121) employees recorded per June 2023 during the reporting &9 KR K IEMN

period:

For the year ended For the year ended

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
BE-=®2=-= BHE_T__F
ANA=THLEE NA=TRHILEFE
No. of Turnover No. of Turnover
people rate % people rate %
A MEEY AE MKEY
Total workforce BI#H 128 39.4 121 47.3
Total workforce by EHRIBSWET
gender e
Male EXL 67 33.6 58 49.6
Female M 61 45.2 63 48.9
Total workforce by g WGkl
age group BIHAY
Below 30 years old 308K AT 27 90.2 24 49.9
30-50 years old 30-5073% 71 26.0 75 45.9
Over 50 years old 505% A £ 30 26.4 22 60.0
Total workforce by REFERESH
employment type BTHAY
Full time 20 116 39.8 115 46.9
Part time e 12 333 6 50.0
Total workforce by BRitBESHET
geographical region Hmy
Hong Kong B 95 45.8 84 56.0
PRC B 33 229 37 34.1

The Group had issued a comprehensive Employee Handbook,
providing the basis for human resources management about
the employment policy, welfare and benefits, leave and rest
days, conduct and discipline, occupational health and safety
policy, personal data (privacy) policy and equal opportunity
policy. All employees were handed a copy of such handbook
upon employment. Any updates to the Group’s employment
policies would be made transparent through electronic means
or other appropriate methods to staff members affected.

During the period from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023, there was
no reported material breach of related regulations and laws.
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Occupational Health and Safety

As a socially responsible company, the Group places great
emphasis on workplace safety, especially for its film making
activities that occasionally involves activities of high risks to
workers, such as working from height, controlled explosions,
stuntman performances, use of equipment and chemicals etc.

The Group’'s health and safety practices accords to the
guideline from HKSAR Labour Department (section
“QOccupational Safety & Health”), where safety equipment,
measures, practices are enforced per requirement. Sufficient
lighting, air ventilation and spacious working areas are provided
in all premises to minimise occupational health risks imposed
to workers.

Furthermore, the Group safeguards its workplace from
unanticipated events that would require an immediate
evacuation, such as under the accident of fire, and employees
are required to participate in the office building’s regular fire
drills. The building management also provided clear signs and
instructions for emergency incidents (such as the access to
fire safety route or rally points). The participation of these drills
is mandatory for all employees and it were conducted during
office hours.

For the film division, safety practices are part of the daily
routine and it is applied at all times. The Group’'s management
team makes periodic visits to ensure all safety practices
were implemented, and to review potential health and safety
risks, or any accidents that may occur. The Group provides
appropriate safety guidelines and equipment to all workers
exposed to safety risks such as Personal Protection Equipment
(PPE), fire extinguishers, emergency evacuation procedures,
and appropriate training to actors or actresses working on
action movies etc. Special insurance is provided to relevant
employees working in such conditions to ensure the best
assistance would be available should any cases of injuries
happen.

The Group also employs third-party contractors to perform
regular check-ups for filming equipment to ensure they are in a
good condition.
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During the reporting period from 1 July 2022 to 30 June
2023, the Group is happy to report that there is no material
non-compliance breach with relevant standards, rules and
regulations, and did not involve in any accidents that has
caused serious injuries to its workers. The number of work
related fatalities and lost days due to work injury is zero during
the reporting period.

Development and Training

The Group's business involves selling products in the retail
industry and provision of financing printing services. In order
to stay competitive, periodic trainings for employees are
required for the Group to stay abreast with the latest market
development. Great emphasis was placed on training and
equipping employees with the latest market trend for career
advancement.

Despite considerable training costs involve, the Group adheres
to nurturing talents internally to enhance the overall capability
of its workforce.

The following reports on training received by staff and its
distribution by gender and employee category.

For the year ended
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For the year ended

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
BE-Z=-=F o ——
ANA=+THILEFE NAZtTHLEFE
Training Training Training Training
ratio % hours ratio % hours
A 2% b2 53 Bt E % b3
Training ratio and e kbl bl
hours by gender L ER R
Male B 40.3 473 31.0 364
Female i 328 408 27.0 355
Training ratio and RERI S a3
hours by category Lt R B
Senior Management SRERE 100.0 40 100.0 60
Management EEE 25.0 206 20.5 223
Staff 8T 40.7 635 32.5 436
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The Group respects intellectual property rights and should
report any infringement on copyrights should any of such
act discovered within the scope of the Group’s management
capability. Its customer database is maintained in strict
confidentiality to safeguard consumer data and their privacy.

Supply Chain Operating Practices and Management

The nature of the Group's business requires to work with
numbers of stakeholders from various sectors. As reported
in last year's ESG report, the Group maintains an open
engagement channel with suppliers that includes procedures to
conduct regular meetings and interviews (for new suppliers).

The Group examines qualifications of its suppliers. Required
business licenses, trademark registration certificates, trademark
use authorizations, product testing reports, and customs duty
certificates are inspected to ensure its validity. Suppliers would
be assessed based on product knowledge, after-sales service,
marketing strategies to ensure the Group’s standards can be
met.

The Group only sources raw materials for its goods from
reputable suppliers. The Group exerts its influence, as a buyer,
to ensure suppliers provide products that comply to local and
international regulations.

The Group collaborates with its business partners to deliver
quality products and services with sustainability attributes to its
customers. The Group encourages its contractors and suppliers
to observe the Group's core values and to adhere to ethical as
well as socially and environmentally responsible practices.

Regular monitoring and annual performance reviews of
registered suppliers are conducted to minimize environmental
and social risks in the supply chain. The Group also has
standard approach and criteria to assess the performance of
suppliers and contractors.
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Number of suppliers by geographic region:

Hong Kong BE
PRC and other Asian countries F7 B K H {25 1 B R
(other than Hong Kong) (BABBRIN

Product Responsibility

The Group’s business spreads across the retail and wholesale
of goods and production of movies. It is therefore anticipated
that the Group has a complicated product management
portfolio due to its subjection to various applicable laws and
regulations. Continued from last year's ESG report, details of
the Group's product responsibility are summarised as below.

Retails Products — Eyewear

The following ordinances and procedures have been adhered to
regarding the sales of eyewear products:

° Qualified optometrists are present in all of the Group's
eyewear retail shops;

° Eye-tests are conducted by such professionals according
to the section 12(1)(a) of the Supplementary Medical
Professions Ordinance (Chapter 359 of the Laws of Hong
Kong);

° Contact lens are only recommended to customers by
optometrists when a valid prescription is provided (under
section 7.4 of the Code of Practice of the Optometrists
Board);

° Only real and genuine products are offered (under the
Trade Description Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), where false trade descriptions, misleading or
incomplete information and mis-statements in respect of
goods provided in all sales activities) are strictly prohibited
in all of the Group's shops;
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° Products are directly purchased from the manufacturers
and authorized wholesalers, where invoices and
authorizing documents are provided on re-selling goods;

° Performance of “Triple” quality check-up process
before products are sent to shops (performed by buyer,
procurement officer and front-line sales employees);

° “Table of Tolerance” quality check to be performed on
the lenses upon product arrival to shop. The check is
prepared by the professional association in the Hong
Kong Optical Industry as a quality check up on the contact
lenses, ensuring the status of the expiration of these
lenses are valid before re-selling to customers; and

° Protection of customers’ data and privacy by denying
unauthorised access to customers’ information.

Under the current reporting year, which is from 1 July 2022
to 30 June 2023, the Group had not litigation regarding its
eyewear products and services.

Retails Products —Watches

The Group closely monitors its offered watch products,
especially in relation to safety issues. A consistent update is
performed safeguarding the Group with the compliance to
up-to-date laws and regulations related to watch products,
ensuring the accuracy of the advertised information and labels,
and avoiding any misrepresentation leading to a breach of law.
On the other hand, regular communication is conducted with
suppliers, updating the latest trend on regulation and measures
accordingly.

During its procurement process, the Group relies on a
comprehensive Procurement Policy set by the senior
management. Only genuine goods with relevant trademark
registration certificates or trademark authorisation documents,
or directly from brand owners or brand authorised distributors,
will be procured for resell purposes. Testing reports are
requested from suppliers, while warehouse keepers will also
perform quality control checks to ensure the quality of watches
are up to standard before shipping to shops for sales.
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The Group applies the same Data Protection and Privacy Policy
throughout the business. Customer data are stored in a Point
Of Sales (POS) system, where senior grade employees, with
appropriate authorisation, are able to access such database,
and no data shall be released to any third party under any
circumstances.

There was no complaint received in relation to the Group's
watches sold during this reporting period.

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering

The Group is committed to the highest standard of corporate
governance, and aims to maintain the same vision with its
policies in transparency, uprightness and accountability.

It is at the heart of the Group’s business to operate in an
ethical, personal and professional manner. Any activity relating
to corruption, commercial bribery, extortion, money-laundering
and other fraudulent activities would not be tolerated. Conflict
of interests will be reported, to prevent the possible occurrence
of inside-dealing or any criminal regime in client transactions.
Regular anti-corruption, and money laundering training and
circulars are provided to employees to remain cautious on
suspicious transactions.

The compliance manual of the Group has set out policies and
procedures for anti-corruption and anti-money laundering. All
employees are required to be read and acknowledge such
compliance manual. There are Whistleblowing Policy in place
for reporting suspicious fraudulent actions, misconduct,
malpractice and irregularities to the Board.

We encourage employees to raise and report any concerns
in confidence about misconduct, malpractice or irregularities
in any matters related to the Group to the Board. The
confidentiality of all reporting persons is strictly protected
and every reasonable effort will be made to maintain the
confidentiality, to ensure that no retaliation will result from
reports or complaints on reportable misconduct made in good
faith. The mechanism will be followed by careful investigation
procedures to ensure all complaints are treated promptly and
fairly.
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In addition, annual training in anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering is provided for employees, including executive
Directors, in collaboration with the Independent Commission
Against Corruption and other regulators. The training covers
issues such as integrity in operations, works supervision and
the reporting of the suspicious transactions.

During the current reporting period, the Group had no litigation
in relation to corruption and money laundering activities
identified, involving the Group and its employees.

Data Privacy Compliance

The Group is dedicated to protect the privacy and confidentiality
of personal data from employees, clients, business partners,
and other identifiable individuals. The Group’'s employees are
instructed to handle confidential information with due care.
Information is only collected and used in a responsible and
non-discriminatory manner, and restricting the use of the
information for the purposes consistent with those identified in
the contracts. Generally, the laws and regulations affecting the
Group includes the Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 559 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter
362 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group
will stay alert to the relevant legal issues and update its internal
policies when necessary to avoid any breach of the regulatory
requirements.

There were no issues occurred concerning data privacy in this
reporting period.

COMMUNITY

The Group is committed to serve and give back to the local
community and contribute to social services. The Group's
management team encourage employees to join all of these
activities, which reflects management team’s commitment to
sustainable development. The Group believes by encouraging
employees to participate in a wide range of charitable events,
community awareness will be raised, and more people will
be inspired to take part in serving our community. The Group
will continue to support these meaningful social events in the
future.
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The board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”)
submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Universe Entertainment and Culture
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the "Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2023 (the
“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 80
to 81.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (for the year ended 30 June 2022: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the Year are set out
in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 16 of
this annual report.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) by
reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out on page 255 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 30 June 2023
amounted to HK$265,932,000 (2022: HK$268,134,000) including
contributed surplus, of HK$597,789,000 (2022: HK$597,789,000),
which is only distributable subject to conditions as set out in
Notes 24(b) and 24(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 256 of
the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
Year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on 2 December 2013, the Company conditionally
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Details
of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.
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(b)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion,

invite any person

belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and any
invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity (individually,
an "Employee”);

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity;

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development
of any member of the Group or any invested entity;
and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of the
Group.
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(c)

(d)

Maximum number of share options available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme

(i) The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share option
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes for the time
being of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. Share options of
the Company which are lapsed or cancelled for the
time being shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the said 30% limit; and

(i)~ The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Schemes
is an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the dates of approval
of the Share Option Schemes unless approval for
refreshing the 10% limit from the Shareholders has
been obtained.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
for the time being of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant to each grantee must not
exceed 1% of the aggregate number of shares for the
time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of
the share options

There is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at
its discretion any such minimum period at the time of
grant of any particular share option. A share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period of 10 years
commencing on the Date of Grant and expiring on the
last day of the said 10-year period.
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()  Payment on acceptance of the share options offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on
acceptance of the share option offer.

(g) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share option
is made and shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant which must
be a business day; and (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the subscription price
should not be lower than the nominal value of a share.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme was issued
and outstanding during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)
Mr. LAM Kit Sun

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAM Chi Keung (resigned on 8 March 2023)
Mr. CHOI Wing Koon

Mr. TANG Yiu Wing

Ms. PONG Suet Hing (appointed on 8 March 2023)
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Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Mr. Choi Wing Koon will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and Bye-law 87(2)
and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Mr. Choi Wing Koon being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at such meeting.

On 8 March 2023, Ms. Pong Suet Hing was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director to the Board. In accordance
with Bye-Law 86(2), Ms. Pong Suet Hing shall retire from office
and, being eligible, will offer herself for re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for re-
election and the candidates who will be proposed to be elected
as Directors, please refer to the circular containing the notice
of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be despatched.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed
for a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation as
specified by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the above
independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company is satisfied that they are independent as such.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, its holding company,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2023, the interests of each of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares (within the
meaning of the SFO) which were required to be (a) notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interest which any such
Director was taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or;
(c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules are as follows:

Name Nature of interest
HA ERME

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Beneficial owner
MNBRSEHE EalEAA

Founder and the discretionary

EENHGFREXEFER

EEMENYAKREXRBBNEFHATER
PR F 2 A A s e

ESERFBZTBRAERRND -
MHERD RIEZ5F 2

RZEZ=ZFA=1+H8 FFFRAEAQF
FETBABREG (F&RFEHRAEKD)
R (QIRIBEES RS EFIEXVIETRE
8N EBIHE AR A LT 2 S (B IEE
MZEESREEF R E GG A BIEE
BEEAEE 2 #EZ) K - (b)ALHERAR
BB AR M EEP EXVEEEI2EREEE
FrERMRzERSS ()R IE LR Ak
BTAEZ EMBETAESETELERIIN
ZAEST B ([Z 257 A1) BAE AR R ) BB
ZRETRION ¢

object of a discretionary

trust (Note a)

EREFTZAMALDE

ERFIENGEE L))

Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note b)

XA B (FHEED)

Beneficial owner
EmlEA A

Mr. Lam Kit Sun (Director)
MR (EE)

Number

of the
Company’s Percentage of
shares held shareholding

J2iE S N
BROEE BRBEDL
200,860,000 22.16%
33,546,853 3.70%
430,120,020 47.44%
664,526,873 73.30%
5,920,000 0.65%
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Notes:

(@) The trustee of the discretionary trust is Central Core Resources
Limited which owns the entire issued share capital of the
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited (“Globalcrest”) which in turn
was interested in 33,546,853 shares of the Company as at 30
June 2023. Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil is the discretionary object
of the discretionary trust.

(b) Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited (“Pioneer Entertainment”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and is wholly-owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, was
interested in 430,120,020 shares of the Company as at 30th
June 2023.

All the interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
which were required to be (a) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests which they were deemed or taken to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part
XV of the SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year, the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) had any
interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable)
of the Company and its associated corporations required to be
disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

In addition, at no time during the Year was the Company, its
holding company, its subsidiaries, its associated company or
its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
in or debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation.
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ESEHREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30 June 2023, Shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company disclosed above)
who had interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by
the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO are as
follows:

Name Capacity

28 54

Pioneer Entertainment (Note a) Beneficial owner
Pioneer Entertainment(Ffi3Ea) EamlEA A

Note:

(a) Pioneer Entertainment, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Mr.
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, no other person
has any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company in the register required
to be kept by Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

FERR

HEMESHARAFEZTHRASAZE
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in Bermuda.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the Year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 8%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 6%
Sales

— the largest customer 39%
— five largest customers in aggregate 62%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited ("UDE"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
tenancy agreement with Universe Property Investment Limited
("UPI"), a company owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
(“Mr. Daneil Lam”), the executive Director of the Company,
for renting (1) an industrial unit on the 18th Floor of a 28-storey
industrial building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium
plus a 2-level basement (with a saleable area of approximately
13,983 square foot) and (2) 5 carparking spaces on the 2nd
Floor of a 28-storey industrial building over a 2-storey lorry/car
parking podium plus a 2-level basement (“Rented Properties”)
for warehouse, ancillary office and carparking uses from 25
February 2021 to 24 February 2024 with a monthly rental of
HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy Agreement”) which were arrived
at arm’s length negotiation between the Group and UPI with
reference to the past monthly rental and the rental valuation
performed by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited as at 22
January 2021 which reflected the then market rent.
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ESEHREE

In respect of the rent paid by the Group of approximately
HK$2,927,000 (2022: approximately HK$2,927,000) to UPI in
accordance with the terms of the Tenancy Agreement during
the Year, the Group recognized as the repayment of lease
liabilities of approximately HK$2,826,000 (2022: approximately
HK$2,743,000) and interest on lease liabilities of approximately
HK$101,000 (2022: approximately HK$184,000) in the Group's
consolidated financial statements during the Year.

LISTING RULES IMPLICATIONS OF
THE CONNECTED TRANSACTION

In accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, the Group is required
to recognize an additional asset representing its right to
use Rented Properties, and as a result, the entering into
the Tenancy Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder will be regarded as acquisitions of assets by the
Group for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Daneil Lam, who is the founder, the chairman of the
Company, an executive Director and controlling shareholder
of the Company, is a Connected Person. Accordingly, UPI is
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Hence, the transactions contemplated under the Tenancy
Agreement, the payment of monthly rental payment under the
Tenancy Agreement will be regarded as one-off connected
transaction.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
Value of Right-of-Use Assets under the Tenancy Agreement in
the amount of approximately HK$8,395,000 is more than 0.1%
but less than 5% and the Value of Right-of-Use Assets is more
than HK$3,000,000, the transactions contemplated under the
Tenancy Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but are exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 29 January 2021 for the details.
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Apart from the above, there are other related party transactions
entered into by the Group during the Year, all of which
constituted exempted connected transactions for the Company
under the Listing Rules, or did not fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.
Details of these transactions are disclosed in Note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as set out in this report,
no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, or that requiring the Company to
enter into an agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as at 30 June 2023.
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AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited retired as auditor of the Company
and Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited was appointed as auditor
of the Company following the retirement of Crowe (HK) CPA
Limited at the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 20th December 2021. There have been no
other changes of auditors in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

7

ZHONGHUI

To the shareholders of Universe Entertainment and Culture
Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 254, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 June 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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BYZBERES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Film rights and films in progress
Refer to note 9 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of film rights and films in
progress for impairment. This impairment test is significant
to our audit because the balance of film rights and films in
progress of approximately HK$607,878,000 as at 30 June 2023
and an impairment loss on film rights and films in progress of
approximately HK$51,422,000 recognised and charged to profit
or loss during the year ended 30 June 2023 are material to
the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and is based
on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

° Understanding the process of how management
performs impairment assessment on the film rights and
films in progress;

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodology used
by management in determining the recoverable amounts
of the film rights and films in progress;

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the assumptions used
in the future cash flow projection and challenging the
management’s assessment on the expected revenue
to be generated by the film rights and films in progress
by checking the film budget summary to the contract
amounts of the distribution and licensing agreements and
the estimated film box office receipts to the historical
trend of similar film with similar characteristics (such as
main cast members, producers, directors, topic, theme
and etc) released; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Film rights and films in progress (Continued)

Refer to note 9 to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

° Assessing the mathematical accuracy of the calculations
of the estimated future net cash flows of films rights and
films in progress on a sample basis.

Based on the above, we considered that the Group’s
impairment test for film rights and films in progress are
supported by available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises all
the information in the Company's annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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BYZBERES

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

EENGEMBHRRAEEN
51F

EXFRERBEEBGHMAGHRMNER
MBREERREL QBRI ERES
HEEMPENEAMBHRE  UHERR
EEAMBRRNOBH I FEAR KR
RMEBMERERRAFFOAEIER

= o

RERGAMBRAE  EEARNG &
SEBEGENES  LEERBERTHE
BEEG R E R EIE - LR R

STAEAT =

RETHER  BRIEEFEEN BEEEEBR
HAFILEE - SR BEEMBEROBRIER

R E R S B R
ENEE

BHNEEEHREMBRRERES MM r
£ B 7 HRRF SR AR T 8 2R A BB K 5 AR PR EX
BRERE  LHABRERMEROZERE
HE - HAERNEENERS Kbz
MOREREEMB N - RO ARARE
BAE  HEMEMALTBEXFAEEE -
ERREBSERRRE METRRERRE
BEZENETHNER TIFRERRMAR
FEH)E AR R o 58 3R BRI AR AR =X
AR MERIRBRNASERMBERTAIF
EERERBEAVBRRFELNLERE
B - RIRAR S E AR MR o

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's
website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/standards/
Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P05988
Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 30 June 2023 R-ZE-=FXA=1H

2023 2022
—E_= g
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M FHExT FHET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - R REE 6 35,978 35,678
Investment properties wEYE 7 31,460 31,460
Other intangible assets HEmEpEE 8 1,875 1,954
Film rights and films in progress BUMBEREERZEY 9 607,878 653,122
Film related deposits B RBR © 88,982 74,900
Deposits paid BfETS 12 1,684 2,377
Deferred tax assets EETIBEE 13 531 502
Other financial assets HEMemERE 14 1,878 1,878
U UTTUTTUUTURUITTPTTRTRROR - 801,871
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 17 4,818 6,767
Accounts receivable JE W AR R 18 47,971 22,648
Loans receivable FEWRE R 19 597 1,235
Deposits paid, prepayments and BRI - BAFRER
other receivables o fE Y SRIE 12 43,822 20,008
Trading securities RHEH 15 1,350 7,539
Contract assets BRIEE 28 1,887 948
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KB ®
- trust accounts - E25EERP 20 = 125
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeFEY 21 80,854 211,846
_Totalcurrentassets .. ... RBRERE i 181,299 ...... 271,116,
Total assets wWEE 951,565 1,072,987
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to the owners 72 FHEH A E(HRER
of the Company
Share capital [ 22 9,066 9,066
Share premium 10 & E 24(a) 35,013 35,013
Other reserves H b 24(a) 545,973 546,141
Accumulated losses Z2itEE 24(a) (251,342) (158,585)
338,710 431,635
Non-controlling interests FEEAR (4,555) (4,407)
Total equity 48 R3S 334,155 427,228

......................................................................................................
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 30 June 2023 R-FE-=FAXA=1H

2023 2022
—E_= g
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M FHExT T
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE 25 3,657 5,458
Deferred tax liabilities BELERIAR R 13 112 139
ettt ettt teeretrereertrteermarerteerteerneenaeinacinacnnesssss. N 3769 .......1 5997
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable FEATBRIK 26 16,318 24,829
Other payables and accrued H A SRIB R BT S
charges 27 72,062 92,437
Contract liabilities AHEE 28 500,845 491,617
Deposits received BUET & 10,309 11,154
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 6,767 7,800
Taxation payable FEZ T IR 7,340 12,325
. Total current liabilities mEBAERE L ......81884 640,162
Total liabilities ) mam ) . ) 617,410 645,759
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 951,565 1,072,987
Net current liabilities REEEFE (432,342) (369,046)
Total assets less current HEERRBER
liabilities 337,924 432,825

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 254
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 28

September 2023:

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Director

Lam Kit Sun
Director

HNFETSEEFE2ABE 2B REN_-Z
&

Z=FNAAZTNEE

%

AN
EE

E=SHENMEET

MEEH
EF

EFRECEBERDR —T-=FFH

79



80

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023 #Z—

ZFEANA=FHILFE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i BT FEL
Revenue &
Sales of goods - video distribution, optical ~ $HE &M - SRIE T -
products and watches products REEmLERER 22,201 36,896
Income on film distribution and exhibition, BRETRRME BHR
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights BEREZRERA 138,891 68,220
Income from other businesses H Bl A 37,347 22,522
Total revenue il 5 198,439 127,638
Cost of revenue Wz AR
Cost of inventories sold BEFERAR 17 (11,773) (25,050)
Related cost on film distribution and BRETRRME BHR
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of R B RE AR A
film rights (127,420) (63,218)
Cost for other businesses HAth ZH AR (29,838) (16,824)
Total cost of revenue et %N (169,031) (105,092)
Selling expenses HEER (8,092) (8,340)
Administrative expenses THEAR (60,645) (67,482)
Impairment loss of film rights and BUMBERRERER 2
films in progress REER 9 (51,422) (27,543)
Impairment loss of property, Y E Y S
plant and equipment FEBE 6 - (2.172)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets CREEEZREEE 6 = (6,874)
Change in expected credit loss BHEEBIEZE 30 (818) 288
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hih T & B 8 (138) (149)
Other income Hapdg A 34 3,675 3,603
Other losses — net Hihg51e - 55 35 (8,860) (8,982)
Loss on: B8
Fair value change of trading securities RHEBELFNTHELH (813) (7,916)
Finance income BEUA 36 2,229 2,080
Finance costs B PR AR 29(c) (379) (515)
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries MBARKIEGRAAERE 38 = 18,900
Loss before taxation BRI AIE R 29 (95,855) (82,556)
Income tax credit PSR 37 2,450 3,635

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023 B Z_-_FT_=#~NA=+HIFE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i BT FEL
Loss for the year FREE (93,405) (78,921)
Other comprehensive loss: Hth2HEEE -
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently HEAfEeE8HHEE
to profit or loss: BamzEE -
Currency translation differences EMnE =5 (168) (123)
Total other comprehensive loss FREMZEBELE
OO VoA e 68 ... 023,
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREZHEBEASE (93,573) (79,044)
Loss for the year attributable to: FRELES !
Owners of the Company KRBEB A (92,757) (76,552)
Non-controlling interests R = (648) (2,369)
(93,405) (78,921)
Total comprehensive loss UTEEFREZEER
for the year attributable to: b
Owners of the Company RRBEB A (92,925) (76,675)
Non-controlling interests R = (648) (2,369)
(93,573) (79,044)
Loss per share attributable to FRAERAREEAEMNL
owners of the Company for the year BRER
(presented in HK$): BTEY) :
- basic -&ER 39(a) (0.1023) (0.0844)
- diluted -8 39(b) (0.1023) (0.0844)

ETREVLEBMBERRA —Z-=FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HZ_-T_=FNA=1+HIEFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

L NGE PN T
Non-
Share Share Other Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserves losses  Subtotal interests Total
(Note 24(a)
&(cl
R  ROEE  RtRE  ZHER Nt FBRES Eh
(KsE24(a)
Ric))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i Tin Thr Thr Tin Thn Thr
At 1 July 2021 R=2--%tA-H 9,066 35,013 546,264 (82,033) 508,310 (2,843) 505,467
Comprehensive loss 2EERE
Loss for the year EmEE - - - (76552 (76,552) (2369 (78,921)
Other comprehensive loss ~— Ef2EEE
Currency translation difference  EHAEZRE - - (123) - (123) - (123)
Total other comprehensive  EEEEELE
loss - - (129) - (123) - (123)
Total comprehensive foss FHEEERESE
for the year - - (123) (76,652) (76,675) 2,369) (79,044)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries  FBA R HEA AR
(Note 38) (Mfx38) - - - - - 805 805
At 30 June 2022 and RZBZZERA=TAR
1 July 2022 “E-CELA-H 9,066 35,013 546,141 (158,585) 431,635 (4,407) 427,228
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year FRfiE - - - (92,757) (92,757) (648)  (93,406)
Other comprehensiveloss — Ef 2 EEE
Currency translation difference  EHAZZEE - - (168) - (168) - (168)
Total other comprehensive M EEEREF
loss - - (168) - (168) - (168)
Total comprehensive loss T2 EERES
for the year - - (168) (92,757) (92,925) (648  (93,573)
Capital injection from non- REFERERNTE
controlling interests - - - - - 500 500
At 30 June 2023 R-BZ=EXA=TH 9,066 35,013 545,973 (251,342) 338,710 4,555) 334,155
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

%Aiﬁﬁiﬁéi

For the year ended 30 June 2023 #Z= ZFENA=THIEFE

2023 2022
—E=-= —EF -
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE FET FHET
Cash flows from operating BEIECRENE
activities
Net cash generated from BETBHEEZFHS
operating activities 41(a) 19,054 272,850
Cash flows from investing REZBZ2RERE
activities
Purchase from property, plant and A - B RR
equipment (2,395) (5,914)
Proceeds from disposal of MEWE - SRR
property, plant and equipment FriSsk1E 170 30
Purchase from other intangible Eﬁ)\ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ/ﬁ%
assets (59) (11)
Decrease in film related deposits B2l R a2 18,548 29,716
Increase in film related deposits B2l R s gl (32,630) (25,288)
Payments for film rights and films BRhRAE R BER 2
in progress BRI (128,123) (432,469)
Proceeds from disposal of other HEEMSREES
financial assets Fr18 3R = 3,460
Cash inflow from deconsolidation REMBARKIELSRE
of subsidiaries AERRESRA = 28
Repayment from loan receivable ?ﬁ% BE=TTEI
granted to a third party B ZER - 2,014
Interest received B U F 8 3,322 1,351
Net cash used in investing RETHFAZERS
activities (141,167) (427,083)
Cash flow from financing activities RMEFEZHERE
Capital element of lease rentals BENEEHRE
paid BERE S (8,500) (9,330)
Interest element of lease rentals ENHEEHREZ
paid FEES (379) (515)
Net cash used in financing METBHFAZFERS
activities (8,879) (9,845)
Net decrease in cash and cash RENBLEEY2
equivalents FR D (130,992) (164,078)
Cash and cash equivalents at REDNESRESEEY
beginning of the year 211,846 375,924
Cash and cash equivalents atthe RERBRERBELEEY
end of the year 80,854 211,846
Analysis of the balances of cash HE&&BRREESZEY
and cash equivalents DA
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEY 80,854 211,846
The notes on pages 84 to 254 are an integral part of these #HNESABEE 2548 2 Wit AL A M EHE
consolidated financial statements. L5 e

EFRECEBERDR —T-=FFH



84

GENERAL INFORMATION

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in video distribution,
film distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights, leasing of investment properties, securities
investment, trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical
products and watches products, and provisions of type-
setting, translation, printing, design, distribution of
financial print products and other related services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The address of the principal place of business
of the Company is 18th Floor, Wyler Centre Phase I,
192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"),
unless otherwise stated.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

—REH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“"HKASs") and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of other investments in
equity securities and investment properties, which
are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosure

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that
are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 July 2022. HKFRSs
comprise HKFRS; HKAS; and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did
not result in significant changes to the Group’s
accounting policies, presentation of the Group's
consolidated financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a
material impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

2

EEESTTHERE @

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHHEERZEw@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests 22 WEBARR) RIFZERER
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. B AREASEIEHNERS - &
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or AEEBLEEREEMIGE
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement B ¥REE R SR - WREFHEZEHE
with the entity and has the ability to affect those BRI BZE B RE - BIK
returns through its power over the entity. When EEIEHZER - RTHAEEE
assessing whether the Group has power, only GEBZENE  REEMASE
substantive rights (held by the Group and other EREMAFER)EEMES -

parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into R B AR E RS #ERLE R
the consolidated financial statements from the date HEEHIELIEABBENGS
that control commences until the date that control W HREPEETE - SEMENG
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash #HREEBFERUALREERRZS
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra- FREAMEAARER EF - IRE
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing BURE M TGRSR - &£
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised MR HEERNREREIBHZER
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are FRW AR T NS - HER
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains RERERER 7 5 -

but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a IR ER IR E AN N R E B ok
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the BEEOMNNEBAREZ  BAE
Company, and in respect of which the Group has B30 M B LR SR A AKGR]
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of BRI B A EE AL T
those interests which would result in the Group as HTEATATHABTEENANE
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect fF o

of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

EFRECEBERDR —T-=FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHHEERZEw@

POLICIES (continued)

88

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

2.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2.10(b)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a
joint operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly;
o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities

incurred jointly;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

Interests in joint operations (Continued)

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
relating to the Group's interest in a joint operation
are accounted for in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Chairman of
the Company (the chief operating decision maker)
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within ‘other losses
—net'.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group's ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term

Premises 50 years

Machinery and equipment 3-5 years
Right-of-use assets Over the lease term
Others 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.10(b)).

2

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

EEESTTHERE @

26 ME - B NERE

FRBMIE - #as MR BIEE LA
R ETE MR RETREE RS
R BEKNABEBEZSFHEBEE
EEEMRX -

BERARAEEZRBRAEAE
SEHREZ AR RKEEN
a0 BERKABER] SERTER - A 5T
ABENEREEXERLS —HES
BEMER) - CEBRTHNKRE
EEWRILHER - PTAEMEER
REEREEEENMBBEAR
RAETHEKRERATIRAX

ME - S RRBOITERAUAT
A AT 68 A F B S LR AN IR B AR
FENBMEERREERHE

HEMEKE HEFH

ES 504F

e 2E Rt 3E54F
FRAEEE TEFH
Hith 5

BENFHREELAIERAFHES
HERRETR - REEERH
# o

BEENERESREMGTAIKRD
478 - HERmE(EBIRHUR 2 Al Uk (el
2% (Mf352.10()) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHHEERZEw@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 26 % - EBINERE@®
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by HE WS REEIERAS U ERE
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount EMEREET  TEiLeE2Eks
and are recognised within ‘other losses — net’ in the KA EHAMES - FB P ER -

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.7 Investment properties 27 "EWHE
Investment properties are land and/or buildings WEMEELSBIASWA KR,
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest EABEMARERSZHEKES
(see note 2.8) to earn rental income and/or for Z2Li R SEF(RHE2.8)
capital appreciation. These include land held for a ERBERER M RETRKAR
currently undetermined future use and property that BE TR IEFEERFRER
is being constructed or developed for future use as RIEEMEREZME -

investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, BrIEIEMERRE BR M EEE
unless they are still in the course of construction FBEEFIMEATFEREREE
or development at the end of the reporting period AISERtE - AIREMER A TFES
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at IR - WEBWERNFENES - ik
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change J6% sk HH B 1 W S P EE AR D AR (R R
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of HHEBEORIBRETER - BEY
an investment property is recognised in profit or ¥ WA THIZEHIFE2.26(d) AT
loss. Rental income from investment properties is s AR ©

accounted for as described in note 2.26(d).
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEES:tREEE @

POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) Aslessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

f=>
=

8 HEE
REWREER - AEREFHEOR
BRIBEEHE - HMa N —KRE
ISR C BRI & & < (6 AR HlHE
RBEBA(E - BizadRmBEal
g - WEFPCARETRCHANEE
Z B R R E BB AR
DB R - BIRREFIEEE
E

(i) 1EREMEA
BB EHER Y RIEME
=%:1%2) Zli’i. tEAE S
FEERS REFTHELD
RAER BB IERE D AR
IAFMBEHREZE —HEE
/]}o
RHEERL B AEE®
REAREERBEERE -
B RI2E A AT 2 &
HEERNEEEEECZEE
AIBR SN o A EERIEEE
BEFVHEE  BIAEER
EREBRMENEEEEKHE
EER - HZERERL
fﬁf*ﬁ?ﬁZfﬁfﬁ?ﬁ(ﬁ’\Tﬂﬂﬁ
BRGEERRBASL -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As lessee (Continued

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 2.6 and 2.10(b)), except for
the right-of-use asset that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value
in accordance with note 2.7.
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e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As lessee (Continued

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group's estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
any rent concessions which arose as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and which satisfied the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of the
practical expedient set out in paragraph 46A
of HKFRS 16, and recognised the change
in consideration as if it were not a lease
modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

As lessee (Continued

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the principal
portion of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
in ‘other property, plant and equipment’ and
presents lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note
2.26(d).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
for which transaction costs are recognised directly
in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the
Group determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 3.3. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

() Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method (see note
2.26(e)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

() Investments other than equity investments
(Continued)

fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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e M BHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

(ii)

Equity Investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment
is not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’'s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
accumulated losses. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.26(f).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, time deposits,
loans receivable, accounts and other
receivables and loans to associates);

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15
(see note 2.16);

- lease receivables; and

- loan commitments issued, which are not
measured at FVPL.

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at FVPL,
and derivative financial assets, are not subject
to the ECL assessment.
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e M BHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (that is, the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder of the
loan commitment draws down on the loan and
(i) the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, accounts and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used
in the measurement of the lease
receivable;

- loan commitments: current risk-free rate
adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes
into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EES®

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a) Creditlosses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for accounts receivables,
lease receivables and contract assets are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments issued),
the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractual due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

= an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligations to the Group.

For loan commitments, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing
ECLs is considered to be the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment. In assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment,
the Group considers changes in the risk of
default occurring on the loan to which the loan
commitment relates.

2 EET
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(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

For margin client receivables, the Group
considers there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when clients cannot
meet margin call requirements and uses the
loan-to-collateral value (“LTV") to make its
assessment. The Group considers a margin
client receivable is in default when payments
under the margin call requirement are 30
days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a margin client
receivable to be in default when there is
a margin shortfall which indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full, taking into account
the pledged securities held by the Group.
A margin client receivable is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2.26(e) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on
the amortised cost (that is, the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

2 BESTTHXREZEwm

20 EEEBENEERE®

(a)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

THMTE - SHNEER
RYHE 2 EEEE @

1= B B B A 15 L 7 (%)
REERSHRE ARER
EFEHEEER  UkBRE
BMTEBMNRERURZE
ERkE2 BEHEEEBRE
TRZEMEH TN EDE
RAMERDZHER - A&
B LA A £ B T ARERBIE
Wk ER - WiBEERE
WRERAEZEIAZE
EfE e

FEFERAZEE

1R 52, 26(e) IR 2 FI 8
WARR S BEE BEE
BEE  BEZSBEE
AEERE - EUERT
RIS AN S AR B
SRS (BN B A
)t -

REREAH  AEEEF
MEREERSHRERER
B - ERE-HAXZEYS
BEEMBRRESREBK
THNEEZENE  TRE
ERHIREERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment including
right-of-use assets;

- other intangible assets;

2 BEEETTHEHEEZE@®

20 EEEBENEERE®

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- film related deposits;

- film rights and films in progress; and

- investments in subsidiaries and
associates in the Company’s statement
of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for intangible assets that are not yet available
for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash-inflows independently
(that is, a cash generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying amount of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year
in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(c)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2.10(a) and (b)).

2.11 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful
life is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Impairment is reviewed annually and
when there is any indication that the club
membership has suffered an impairment loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Brand name

Brand name acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Brand name has a
finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 7.5 years of the brand
name.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEE=SHBEHEEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Intangible assets (Continued) 2.11

(c) Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment loss
(see note 2.10(b)). Amortisation is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line method over
the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 years.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
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2.12 Offsetting financial instruments 212 Tt T A 5H

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts
to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Film rights and films in progress

(a)

(b)

(c)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

Film rights

Film rights comprise fees paid and payable
under agreements and direct expenses
incurred during the production of films, for
the reproduction and/or distribution of films
in various video gram formats, film exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film titles.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of film rights is amortised over the
shorter of the underlying license period and
their estimated useful lives, with reference to
projected revenues.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Cost includes
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. The balance of film production costs
not yet due at the end of each reporting period
are disclosed as commitments. Cost of films
is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Impairment

At each year end date, both internal and
external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that
film rights and films in progress are impaired.
If any such indication exists, the carrying
amount of such assets is assessed and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
Such impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHHEERZEw@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Film related deposits 215 B €

Film related deposits comprise deposits paid for EXEE S BIEMIEE S ME
the acquisition of film rights and deposits paid to Yz El e RREXFRBRIIZNES
production houses, artists and others prior to the BUHERA BARHEMZETE - 1R
production of films. The balance payable under BEimmAEEASHRERETR
agreements for the acquisition and production of VEZ BT 8RR B A ER A B 25 o
film rights is disclosed as a commitment. Provision BB 2 BEBEIBREBERNEEE
for film related deposits is made based on future EZRRBRAREZ @I 2E
revenue generated for the Group and the carrying HE{EMIEL -

value of film related deposits.

2.16 Contract assets and contract liabilities 216 BRIEERGHAEE

A contract asset is recognised when the group BRHEERASEBEEKMER
recognises revenue (see note 2.26) before being BHFEZTER TR ER#ER
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under Uz (R 3E2.26) BFHERR - A HVE
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract EEIRMIFE2.10(a) P81 BUSE #E 1T TR AP
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the EEEIEE - WEUER (B R4
policy set out in note 2.10(a) and are reclassified to I B A B A By B 3 ) FR PR IR
receivables when the right to the consideration has H(RMWE2.17) ©

become unconditional (see note 2.17).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer AHABEASEEREBRKS
pays consideration before the Group recognises AIEPXNRERER (R
the related revenue (see note 2.26). A contract 2.26) o AREE A B FERE
liability would also be recognised if the Group has 7R E% [ He SR NS B A s AT HSCER A AT K
an unconditional right to receive non-refundable BERE - NEHBETIERR
consideration before the Group recognises the ERBEBRAT  HERRFIENS
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding EER(RWE2.17) -

receivable would also be recognised (see note 2.17).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net REXEFPHE—EAOME + 8275
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. BHNEEFEXEHNBEFE-
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract MELHEHmME  THBEGYNEG
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented HNEERAHABETNEFEEESR
on a net basis. Al o

When the contract includes a significant financing MENBREAREDRD + GH%
component, the contract balance includes interest HEERBERA SRS ENES
accrued under the effective interest method (see FE(RMIFE2.26) ©

note 2.26).

ERRE(EAERAT —B-=HEER 119



120

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Accounts and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 2.16).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2.10(a)).

2.18 Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in
the ordinary course of business. If the collection of
loans receivable is expected to be one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
credit losses (see note 2.10(a)).

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
cash held at custodian, and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.10(a).

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Accounts and other payables

2.21

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

2.22 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax loses and unused
tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEE2:tREEE @

POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Income Tax (Continued) 2.23 FT154 &)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
differences or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
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assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting EXaEzYIPERFIREEL
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a IEBEHz—HD)  URIEE

business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Income Tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 2.7, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the end of the reporting period unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Income Tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets
are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are
met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

° the same taxable entity; or

° different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binominal Option Pricing Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Share-based payments (Continued

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company's shares. When share
options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue ad other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(a) Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised
at a point in time when the customers take
possession of and accept the products.

(b) Income from licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights

Income from licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights is recognised at a point in time
upon the delivery of the pre-recorded audio/
visual products and the materials for video
features including the master tapes to the
customers, in accordance with the terms of
the underlying contracts.
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e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Revenue and other income (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Film exhibition income

Film exhibition income is recognised at a point
in time when the film is shown and the right
to receive payment is established.

Rental income from operating lease

Operating lease and other rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount
of the financial assets. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (that is, gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note
2.10(a)).

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Revenue and other income (Continued)

(g)

(h)

Financial printing and translation services

Revenue from the provision of financial
printing and translation services is recognised
overtime by measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation, which is determined
based on the Group's inputs to the satisfaction
of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation.

Revenue from the sales of printed products is
recognised at a point in time as the customers
obtains control of the printed products.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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e M BHRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(ii)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The policies for managing
these risks are summarised below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and
purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash
balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, that is, a currency
other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currency
giving rise to this risk is primarily
Renminbi (“RMB") (2022: RMB).

The following table details the
Group’'s exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot
rate at the year end date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HEREREERERMIAEZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

NEE@

3.1 B ERE=®
(a) THIEERE @@
(i)  EMERGE)

Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (il Fr&ASZEE
& Bz (48)

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT

Cash and cash RehIReEEY
equivalents 7 8
Accounts receivable JrE LT BR SR 10,540 8,766
Accounts payable JERTRR R (411) (13,636)

Other payables and H b AT 5B &

accrued charges FEEF S (958) (4,993)
9,178 (9,855)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ANEE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BAfsREEAE®
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THiZERE (@)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) EHEFEGE)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BT
2023 2022
—E-=F —F--
Increase/ Decrease/ Increase/ (Increase)/
(decrease) (increase) (decrease) decrease
in foreign in loss in foreign in profit
exchange rates aftertax  exchange rates after tax
SMEE % MRB A I B & PREL R A
E#/(TR) WD/ () R/ (TR) (gm/ md
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FEx
RMB AR 5% 459 5% (493)
(5%) (459) (5%) 493

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as
presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of
the group entities’ loss/profit after
tax and equity measured in the
respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes
that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for
2022.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed rate loans receivable
(see note 19) from its money lending
business. The management considered
that the risk is insignificant as the
amounts are carried at amortised cost
and not remeasured in the financial
statements in response to changes in
interest rates. Therefore, no sensitivity
analysis for the years ended 30 June
2023 and 2022 was disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiiEEREERESHIAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrrgRBe A= e
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THiZERE (@)
(i)~ Equity price risk (i) ARAE )R Bz

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from changes in the prices
of listed securities and unlisted limited
partnership. The sensitivity analysis has
been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk.

The Group's trading securities are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Decisions to buy or sell trading
securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual
securities compared to that of the Hang
Seng Index and GEM Index of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
other industry indicators, as well as the
Group's liquidity needs.

For the unlisted limited partnership
classified as other financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or
loss, the board of directors manages
the exposure to equity price risk by
maintaining a portfolio of investments
funds with different risk and return
profiles.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiEMEENSRTIEZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NFE @)

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiRERE=®
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) TiZEMKE @

(i) Equity price risk (Continued) (i) AR1EJE Bz ()

At 30 June 2023, it is estimated that
an increase/decrease of 10% (2022:
10%) in the fair value of the Group's
trading securities with all other variables
held constant would have decreased/
increased the Group’'s loss after tax
by HK$113,000 (2022: decreased/
increased the Group’s loss after tax by
HK$630,000).

At 30 June 2023, it is estimated that an
increase/decrease of 10% (2022: 10%)
in the fair value of unlisted investment
funds and unlisted limited partnership
classified as other financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or
loss with all other variables held constant
would have decreased/increased in the
Group’'s loss after tax by HK$93,000
(2022: decreased/increased in the
Group's loss after tax by HK$93,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.

Financial risk factors (Continued

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligation
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties as a means
of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
default. The Group's credit risk is primarily
attributable to accounts receivable, loans
receivables and other receivables. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit rating assigned by
rating agency, for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk.

In respect of accounts receivable arising
from trading, wholesaling and retailing of
optical products and watches products, and
provisions of financial printing services, in
order to minimize the credit risk, management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
on-going basis. Credit evaluations of its
customers’ financial position and condition are
performed on each and every major customer
periodically. These evaluations focus on the
customer'’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates. Receivables due from customers are
due within the settlement period commonly
adopted by the relevant market convention,
which is usually within 180 days from the
trade date. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from its customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

FEEREERSRMIAZ

NEE@®

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiRERE=®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERMKE
In respect of accounts receivable arising FERIREETT BREBITRMW

from video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights business, in order to minimise the
credit risk, management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an on-going basis.
Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition are performed on each
and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Sales of
videogram products are with credit terms of
7-60 days from the trade date. Sales from film
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights are on open account terms. Sales to
retail customers are made in cash or via major
credit cards. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from its customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of businesses mentioned above, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor and customer. The default risk of the
industry in which debtors or customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent. The Group had no concentration
of credit risk in respect of accounts receivable
from these businesses with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties.

The Group measures loss allowances for
accounts receivable from these businesses
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. For
accounts receivable arising from trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products
and watches products, and provisions of
financial printing services, these receivables
are normally settled within 6 months. The
Group has assessed that the expected
credit loss for these receivables as at 30
June 2023 and 30 June 2022 based on
historical settlement records and looking-
forward information (including the economic
environment) and impairment loss allowance
was recognised on these accounts receivable.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

The following table provides information
about the Group's exposure to credit risk for
accounts receivable as at 30 June 2023.

REMB|RME

3 BEEREENESMIAEZ

NEE@
3.1 BiRERE=®

(b) fEEREER @)

TERMR-_E-=FxH
ERNE] EX T PES
U BE 3R (S B R R D 2
%o

At 30 June 2023 R-E-_=FH=1H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BRERE BEEE BERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TR TiER
Trading, wholesaling and REER  #ER
retailing of optical HEERES
products, watches and HERBELK
jewellery
Current (not past due) BlkieSat) - 162 - 162
31-90 days past due BEIZEI0H - 22 - 22
91-365 days past due 912365 - 42 - Y
QOver 365 days past due B3R L L - 426 - 426
652 - 652
Provision of financial printing 1248 S RIRH
services
Current [not past due) SN (R ) 2.30-100 11,981 (324) 11,657
1-30 days past due BH1Z30A 2.60-100 1,941 (92) 1,849
31-90 days past due BHIZ0H 3.10-100 637 (24) 613
91-365 days past due 89123650 3.10-100 1,480 (372) 1,108
Over 365 days past due BH65H M 3.10-100 523 (301) 222
16,562 (1,113) 15,449
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e M BHRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 BiiREMREEREMIEZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSBIERE)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiRERE=®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERME@E
At 30 June 2023 (Continued) R-ZEZ=F HA=+H
(48)
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
REBEE BEEE BERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TER FET
Video distribution, film BEBET BHROR
distribution and exhibition, KM - R RERE
licensing and sub-licensing ~ FIRELH
of film rights
Current (not past due) S (R ) 0.10-11.70 10,605 (11) 10,594
1-30 days past due #1230 0.15-11.75 8,199 (12) 8,187
31-90 days past due 312908 0.156-11.75 70 (7) 63
91-365 days past due 29123650 0.20-11.80 116 (13) 103
Over 365 days past due BH65H A L 0.20-11.85 3,066 (19) 3,047
22,056 (62) 21,9%
Others Hitr
Current (not past due) AR 0.1 9,155 9 9,146
1-30 days past due BEE0A 0.15-3.87 5 - 5
31-90 days past due #H31Z90R 0.15-3.87 17 (1) 16
91-365 days past due 1912365 02-025 32 - 32
Over 365 days past due #HE365A ML L 0.25 679 2) 677
9,888 (12) 9,876
Total @z 49,158 1187 47,971

1 44 Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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REMB|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HEREREERERMIAEZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NE )
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrsEREZ=E@
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERMK@E
The following table provides information TRIEHRZ-_ZZ_FRHA
about the Group's exposure to credit risk for “tRBERAEE CEKE
accounts receivable at 30 June 2022. WEERZEZERRHBOZE
#e
At 30 June 2022 R-ZFZ—FA=1H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BHEER BEEE FiERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TET TAT

Trading, wholesaling and REER  #ER

retailing of optical HEERES
products, watches and HERBELK
jewellery
Current (not past due) BlkieSat) - 128 - 128
1-30 days past due BE1Z30R - 55 - 55
3190 days past due A3 E0H - 89 - 89
91-365 days past due #H91Z365H - 635 - 635
QOver 365 days past due #1365 A M £ - 63 - 63
970 - 970
Provision of financial printing  2AEHEENFIRE
services
Current {not past due) SN (R ) 2.30-100.00 11,386 (946) 10,440
1-30 days past due BEIE0A 2.60-100.00 an (66) 345
31-90 days past due BHIZ0H 3.10-100.00 316 (153) 163
91-365 days past due #H91Z365H 3.10-100.00 396 (186) 210
Over 365 days past due BEI365E LA L 3.10-100.00 498 (473) 25
13,007 (1,824) 11,183
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e M BHRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 BiiREMREEREMIEZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSBIERE)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BAfsREEAE®
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE @
At 30 June 2022 (Continued) RN —FE - —HF;NH=+H
(&)
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
REERE HRERE BERfE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FE
Video distribution, film RERT EXROR
distribution and exhibition, KM - R RERE
licensing and sub-licensing ~ FIRELH
of film rights
Current (not past due) HEileSab) 0.10-11.70 1,046 (32) 1,014
1-30 days past due BE1E30H 0.15-11.75 3,040 (5) 3,035
31-90 days past due AHIZ90H 0.15-11.75 21 - 21
91-365 days past due #H91%365H 0.20-11.80 1,444 (7) 1,437
Over 365 days past due BH365A M £ 0.25-11.8 4,324 (10) 4,314
9,875 (54) 9,821
Others it
1-30 days past due BE1E30A 0.15-3.87 12 (1) 1
Over 365 days past due BE365A L L 0.25 664 (1) 663
676 (2) 674
Total @t 24,528 (1,880) 22,648
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REMB|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts in

BEREEREMTIAZ

NEE@

3.1 BiRERE=®

b) fEEER @
IR > R 22

respect of accounts receivable: 2 :

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Balance at 1 July RtA—RBZ&ER 1,880 2,067
Written off i ss (890) -

Net impairment losses ERRREBEFE
recognised 197 (187)
Balance at 30 June RANR=t+RHZ&EH 1,187 1,880

ETREVLEBMBERRA —Z-=FFH
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e M BHRME

3

BEEREEERERmTE
NEE@®

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrrgRBe A= e
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERMKE@E
Loans receivable EWREZ

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

In respect of loans receivable from customers
and third parties, the objective of the Group's
measures to manage credit risk is to control
the potential exposure to recoverability
problem. The Group manages and analyses
the credit risk for each of its new and
existing customers before payment terms
and conditions are concluded by assessing
the credit qualities of the customers and the
third parties, taking into account its financial
position, past settlement experience, collateral
held and other factors. Loans receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis,
management reviews the loans receivable at
each reporting date to ensure that adequate
impairment allowance is made. In this regard,
management considers that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced. Interest income
are usually billed on a quarterly basis.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had concentration of credit risk as 100%
(2022: 100%) of the loans receivable are due
from the Group's two (2022: four) debtors.

HREREPRE=TTZER
ms  AEEEEEERR
M2 B IR RIS Al 8

S E) AT U @ PR RE o TART A
BRI R ARF AT - A
ERFEEPRE=2E
EERCEREMBRR - B
EXNRER  HAEER®
REMER)EEEDMTHE
EMEPMBRATFP ZIER
R o EUE KA BRI E
RERERE  EEERE
HE R MY RKERZ AT
Bl & RBAETERN - BERED
Al EeRELTERRES
Bepitms  EEERR
AEBEZEERBEBER
Ko MBRA—RRFELS
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RBEBRR BEAEH
100% (ZZFE=—4%F : 100%)
EWE R REREEME
(Z2==F  IR)EBA
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiifEMREEREMIEZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N E@
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEEEZE®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERMK@E
Loans receivable (Continued) FEW B 5 (48)
An analysis of changes in the gross amount of FEUE SRARTE R E B H AT a0
loans receivable is as follows: T
For the year ended 30 June 2023
HE-E-=ENR=TRLER
Purchased
Lifetime Lifetime or
expected expected  originated
12-month  creditloss- credit loss - credit
expected not credit credit impaired
credit loss impaired impaired ("POCI") Total
BAY
FifE
HE
287 2R (B R
2EREE  GEER-  GEEE- FARE
EEFR  #EENE FERE WE] a5t
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(#E-§) (E=8) (=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TR ThT ThTL Thn
Balance at 1 July 2022 RIBZZFtB-HzER 1374 - 2,052 2450 5876
Loans repaid during the year EREERER
(other than write-off| (Hisaman) (460) - - - (460)
Write-off ik - - (2,052) (2,450) (4,50)
Balance at 30 June 2023 RZB-Z§xA=1H2
i 914 - - - 914
Representing: R%:
Loans receivable FEWER 914 - - - 914
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1
(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Loans receivable (Continued)

3 BEEREENESMIAEZ

NEE@
3.1 BiRERE=®

(b) fEEREER @)
FEREF (@

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE-E-__EXA=THLEE

Purchased
Lifetime Lifetime or
expected expected  originated
12-month  creditloss-  credit loss - credit
expected not credit credit impaired
credit loss impaired impaired ("POCI") Total
A
FEEE
HE
2HES 2HES MEAS
AR FEFE-  GEEE- FARE
EEFE  FERHE EEHE HE) Eh
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(#E-§) (E=8) (=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
Balance at 1 July 2021 RIB--FtB-Hz&H 3682 - 2,052 2450 8184
Loans repaid during the year EREERER
(other than write-off) (Hnsamean) (2,308) - - - (2,308)
Balance at 30 June 2022 RZB-ZERA=THZ
i3 1374 - 2,08 2,450 5,876
Representing: f%:
Loans receivable - third party EUER-%=F 1374 - - - 1374
Loans receivable - associate EYER-BEQNF - - 2,052 2450 4502
Total Eehy 1374 - 2,052 2,450 5,876
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiIEREEREMIAE Y
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NE )
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BB EEEZE®
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE @
Loans receivable (Continued) FEW B 5 (48)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding HEBHEEBERENE
ECL allowances is as follows: Elleak i (NN
For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECEC-ERASTALEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
EAY
REEE
E-% £ £=4 HE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TETL TEn TETL TEn
Balance at 1 July 2022 RZBZZEtA-Az&H 139 - 2,052 2,450 4,641
Provision of ECL allowances ~ EHEEERER 178 - - - 178
Write off ik - - (2,052) (2,450) (4,502)
Balance at 30 June 2023 RZBZ=£xA=1A
&8 317 - - - 317
Arising from: EEH:
Loans receivable BRER 317 - - - 317
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e M BHRME

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE@
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrrgRBe A= e
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE @
Loans receivable (Continued) FEWE L (48)

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE-B--E/A=THLEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
BAY
BERE
£-% £ E=8 RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TER AL TER TAR

Balance at 1 July 2021 R-E--£tA-AzEH 216 - 2,052 2450 4718
Reversal of provision of ECL ~ BHIEEEERERR (77) - - - (77)
Balance at 30 June 2022 RZBZZEXA=1A

2 139 - 2,052 2450 4,641
Arising from: EER:
Loans receivable -~ third party ~ [EWER -$=7 139 - - - 139
Loans receivable —associate  [EMET - = 1A - - 2,052 2,450 4,502
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

FEEREERSRMIAZ

NEE@®

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrsEREZ=E@
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERkE
Other receivables HEW 5 E
For other receivables which includes other hEMEW B (BE A E
receivables and amounts due from joint WHIB R ER G & EBERBHT
operation partners, credit checks are part of HRE)ME  EFERERLE

the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal

REEREZ B A
e S T R R B M

with overdue debts. In addition, the Group oot REBRESHRE
reviews the recoverable amounts of other HIRBEH b U R TE 2 7]
receivables at the end of each reporting period W EI R - DA R BLE A UL

to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group

[ FRERE I B SR E &1 -

RBEMR - AKEHEBE

has concentrations of credit risk as 22% (2022; %“E REkK c HEhHamEl
19%) of the total other receivables was due RIEBEMN22% (2 ==
from the Group's largest debtor and 72% ¢ 1 19%) RIEW A KB &K

(2022: 72%) of the total other receivables was
due from the Group's five largest debtors,
respectively.

The Group measures loss allowance for other
receivables using lifetime ECLs for each
debtor individually with significant balances.
As at 30 June 2023, based on historical

B ARFRIA - H b e
HIBBENTI2% (ZE =
F 1 72%) Ao RIERAEE
AKREHABWFIE -

AEBAEL2PBEHEES
BYHAEBSEREHMNBRE
5\ B £t 8 U 51 IE (8 Bl #h
AEBEEE RN =

settlement record and risk of default for FRNA=1TH BESRE
each debtor and forward-looking information BANBEEELHENED
(including the economic environment), loss J2LB LA B2 AT HE 14 & (B 35 4E
allowance of HK$443,000 was recognized ERIE)  EREBEZZT==

during the year 30 June 2023 (2022: write
back of loss allowance of HK$24,000).

=T

FERNA=ZTBILFERRE
B 443,000 T (ZE =
— 4 e EIEE#E24,000

BIT) °

FREXCEBERLDR —T-=FFH§
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiEMEENSRTIEZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiRERE=®

(c) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to the parent company's board
approval. The Group's policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term. All of the Group's
financial liabilities are due within one year
except for the lease liabilities (see note 25).

3.2 Capital management 3.2

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.2 Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of a gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(include borrowings and lease liabilities) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position, plus net debt, where applicable.

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at the
end of the current and previous reporting periods
was as follows:

REMB|RME

FEEREERSRMIAZ
NE )

3.2

BAREIR )
MEMAL & FEENEES
(B LV BB A AR EE o Sk
RSB A ERIBERE - 8
EROES BEEERASERE)
HEBSRBLZEYHE - B4
AR A B HOR R B [ 2
EFEENASE)EE

AR B G BB s R 2 4T
ARFEHERLENT :

2023 2022
—E-=F —_=E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Current liabilities: mEBEE :

Lease liabilities HEEE 6,767 7,800

Non-current liabilities: ERBELE
Lease liabilities HEEE 3,657 5,458
Total debt RET 10,424 13,258
Less: Cash and cash equivalent B RERBEeEEY (80,854) (211,846)
Adjusted net debt RARFEL (70,430) (198,588)
Total equity BrE 334,155 427,228
Adjusted capital BRABER 334,155 427,228
Adjusted net RARFERELRLE N/A N/A
debt-to-capital ratio TEA T iE A

ETREVLEBMBERRA —Z-=FFH

155



156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the
finance manager performing valuations for
the financial instruments. The team reports
directly to the directors of the Company and
the audit committee. Valuation reports with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement
are prepared by the team at each annual
reporting date, and are reviewed and approved
by the directors of the Company. Discussion
of the valuation process and results with the
directors and the audit committee is held once
a year, to coincide with the reporting date.

3

BEEREEERERmTE
NEE@®

33 AEF=E

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3

REMB|RME

BEREEREMTIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSBIERE)
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 RHEFE®
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at BAFEFTEZEH
fair value (Continued) EEREE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) D FEZR (E)

Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2023 categorised into
RZBZ=EXA=TB2AVENESEA

Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2022 categorised into
RIZZZERAZTHCATEIERNSEA

Fair value at Fair value at
30 June 30 June
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2023 Level 1 Level2 Level 3 2022
- St 2 St
~A=TA ~RE=TH
£-8 £2H F=R  ZAYE E £28H £=8  0VE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH7R THT TR TH7 FiEn TR TR TFin
Recurring fair value M ATE
measurements itE
Assets: EE:
Other financial assets ~ EM 2 BEE
= Unlisted limited - EMER
partnership AEbE
(Note &) (Hista) - - 1,108 1,108 - - 1,108 1,108
- Club debenture i = = 770 770 - - 770 770
Trading securities R9ES
(Note bl (Hizto) = = 1,350 1,350 6,189 - 1,350 7539
- - s 61 - 3B

ETREVLEBMBERRA —Z-=FFH
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 30 June 2023 and
2022, there was no transfer between Level 1,
Level 2 or transfer into or out of Level 3.

Notes:

(a)

For unlisted limited partnership classified
under Level 3 of the fair value measurement
hierarchy, the fair values are determined
based on the net asset values of those
limited partnership determined with reference
to third party valuation of the underlying
investment portfolio and adjustments of
related expenses. When the net asset values
of the unlisted limited partnership increases/
decreases by 10% (2022: 10%), the fair value
will increase/decrease by HK$110,000 (2022:
HK$110,000). The higher the net assets
values, the higher the fair value.

3

FEEREERSRMIAZ
NE )

3.3 A EFTE®
BRAFEFEzER
BEREE®
NFEZRE)
NBE-_E-_=FK_FT_
—HEFXNA=Z+TBHILEFEE &

(i)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

— &

CE-RZEYEE

B NEEBEAFE=fKE
FoMEEL -

Gh

(a)

RO BERAFESESH
FE=HETZIELTHR
AELENE  AFED
RIEZEBERAEBLEY
BEEFE 2ZHER
BHEAEZEZHHEE
T W BRI EL
BB LTARAEE
rENEEFER M
FHA10% (B = — 4 -
10%) » AF{E KM,
110,000 (— T =
—4 :110,000/87T) - &
EFEMS  BAFER

=]

=)



3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(@) (Continued)

The following table represents the changes in

REMB|RME

3 BEEREENESMIAEZ
NE )

33 RYEFE®@
) BRATFEINEZSH
EERBE®
D FEZR GE)
W - (8)

@ (&

TREBHAE=ZALXTE

other financial assets included in Level 3 fair HEZEMESREEZE
value measurements: g :
Other
Unlisted  Derivative Unlisted derivative
investment  financial limited Club financial
funds instruments partnership  debenture instruments Total
¥Em fTEeR  ELWAR Eftfis
REES I8 A¥b¥ eEEF  SRIA @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAn TER TER TAn TAR
Asat 1 July 2021 N
tA-H 346 14,499 1,108 770 48 16,771
(Lossl/gain includedin ~ FFABHEZ
profit or loss (BB ki (346) 557 - - (48) 163
Settlement #5 - (17844) - - - (17804)
Amortisation of deferred B & AMRE
day one gain g 5! - 2,788 - - - 2,788
Asat30June202and  RZFE-ZFR
2023 -EoCE
~AZTA - - 1,108 770 - 1878
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3

FEEREERSRMIAZ
NE )

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 AV EIE®

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) BAFEFEZEEH
fair value (Continued) EERBE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEZR (E)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss classified under Level 3 of the
fair value measurement hierarchy represent
investment in the equity security of a Listed
entity which trading was suspended.

The fair value of those equity instruments
is mainly valued based on Guideline Publicly
Traded Company (the “"GPTC") method
whereas the key inputs to the valuation
models include the market multiples, share
prices of similar companies that are traded
in a public market and discount for lack
of marketability. The discount for lack of
marketability used are unobservable input.
As at 30 June 2023, if any of the significant
unobservable input above was 5% higher/
lower while all the other variables were held
constant, the changes in fair value of the
listed equity security would not be significant
to the Group.

faE - ()

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

The movement during the year in the balance

REMB|RME

FEEREERSRMIAZ
NE )

33 RHEFE®
) BRATFEINEZSH
EERBE®
D FEZR GE)
W - (8)
) (&

ZE=ZRRTEABES

of these Level 3 fair value measurements are RERZEBHMT -
as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Listed equity security suspended LETRAES
from trading (BE=EE
At the beginning of the year and REYRFR
the end of the year 1,350 1,350

(ii)  Financial assets and liabilities at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost

are not materially different from their fair

values as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.

(i) WIKEURAFEIEZ
cHMEERERE
755 B 9% A AN ol 8 S A AR A
RrzeMITAEZEmMESRR
RZEBE_=ZFR_FT_—
NAZTHZAFEERNR
j(o
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162

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 FERESTTHRERHAE

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually HE  BREAESHFETMG - WR
evaluated and are based on historical experience and BRALHBMEMERETIE B
other factors, including expectations of future events that FEBBATEREBAEENRREN
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. TEOR) o

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (a) BT HENREXR

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

()  Impairment of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits

The Group assesses annually whether there
is any indication for impairment on the film
rights, films in progress and film related
deposits for video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights segment and further assesses
if they have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits (Continued)

As at 30 June 2023, the Group assessed that
there were impairment indication for certain
films included in films rights, films in progress
and film related deposits with gross carrying
amount of approximately HK$424,295,000
(2022: HK$34,403,000), HK$366,227,000
(2022: HK$32,350,000) and HK$26,195,000
(2022: HK$26,195,000), respectively,
because of the change of comparable market
information and expected performance. As
at 30 June 2023, these film rights, films
in progress and film related deposit have
been reduced to their recoverable amount
of approximately HK$341,426,000 (2022:
HK$2,956,000), HK$362,477,000 (2022:
HK$28,600,000) and HK$14,839,000 (2022:
HK$14,839,000), respectively. The recoverable
amount was determined on a title-by-title
basis, and is assessed with reference to a
value-in-use calculation at the end of the
reporting period, which was derived from
discounting the projected cash flow forecast
using a discount rate of 11% (2022: 11%). Key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
related to the estimation of cash inflow
include the budget film exhibition income,
budget licensing and sub-licensing income
revenue and discount rate. Such estimation
is based on the historical box office of the
same director and main cast members, the
market comparable data of films with the
same theme, and management'’s expectations
of the market development. The discount
rate used is before tax and reflected current
market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the film
production business.

4

=T

(a)

REMB|RME

SEHEER o

e HE MR

(i)

EENRE iR 2
EXNETHEB 2
/mﬁiﬁ
RZEZ_=F<A=+H"
AEBTGERAED BN
A424,295,0008 T(ZE =
T 134,403, ooo,%%sru) .
366,227,000 L (ZE =
—4 :32,350,000/87C) &
26,195,000 0(Z&E ==
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e M BHRME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(i)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

Impairment of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits (Continued)

Taking into account the impairment
assessment performed by the management,
an impairment loss of film rights of
approximately HK$51,422,000 (2022:
HK$27,543,000) were recognised,
respectively, in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year
ended 30 June 2023 to reduce the carrying
amounts of these assets to their recoverable
amounts. The directors and management have
considered and assessed reasonably possible
changes for other key assumptions and have
not identified any instances that could cause
the carrying amount of film rights, film in
progress and film related deposits to exceed
their recoverable amount as at 30 June 2023.

As at 30 June 2023, the aggregate carrying
amount of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits amounted to
approximately HK$696,860,000 (2022:
HK$728,022,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(ii)

Provision for impairment of accounts
receivable

Accounts receivable are reviewed by
management at the end of each reporting
period to determine the expected credit
losses. The management bases the estimates
on the historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and assessments of both current and
forecast general economic conditions. Credit
risk assessments focus on the customers’
past history of making payments when due
and current ability and willingness to pay,
taking into account the financial position
of the customers and the macroeconomic
environment in which the customers operate.
If the financial conditions of the customers
and/or the macroeconomic environment of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to repay, additional
impairment provision may be reputed. If
the financial conditions of these customers
were to deteriorate, additional provision
for impairment may be required. As at 30
June 2023, the carrying amount of accounts
receivable amounted to approximately
HK$47,971,000 (2022: HK$22,648,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

Estimated valuation of investment properties

In determining the fair value, the valuer has
based on property valuation techniques which
involve, inter alia, certain estimates including
comparable sales in the relevant market,
appropriate discount rates and expected
future market rents. In relying on the valuation
report, management has exercised their
judgement and is satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market
condition. As at 30 June 2023, the carrying
amount of investment properties amounted
to approximately HK$31,460,000 (2022:
HK$31,460,000).

Estimation of fair value of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss that are not
traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in these estimates
and assumptions could have a material
effect on the fair value of the financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Estimation of fair value financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

As at 30 June 2023, the carrying amount
of other financial assets amounted
to approximately HK$1,878,000 (2022:
HK$1,878,000).

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax
losses can be utilised, and is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax assets are
realised. In determining the deferred tax
assets to be recognised, management is
required to estimate the future applicable tax
rate for each entity within the Group at each
tax jurisdiction and the profitability of each
entity, so as to estimate the future utilisation
of tax losses. Any difference between these
estimates and the actual outcome will impact
the Group’s results in the period in which
the actual outcome is determined. As at 30
June 2023, the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets amounted to approximately
HK$531,000 (2022: HK$502,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(vi)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

Impairment of loans receivable and other
receivables

The impairment loss for using the expected
credit loss model is subjected to a number of
key parameters and assumptions, including
the identification of loss stages, estimates
of probability of default, loss given default,
exposures at default and discount rate,
adjustments for forward-looking information
and other adjustment factors. The expected
credit losses for loans receivable and other
receivables are derived from estimates
whereby management takes into consideration
historical data, the historical loss experience
and other adjustment factors. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of the
relevant observable data that reflect current
economic conditions and the judgment based
on management’s historical experience.
Management reviews the selection of
those parameters and the application of
the assumptions regularly to reduce any
difference between loss estimates and actual
loss. As at 30 June 2023, the carrying amount
of loans receivable and financial assets
included in deposits paid, prepayments and
other receivables amounted to approximately
HK$597,000 (2022: HK$1,235,000) and
HK$43,853,000 (2022: HK$20,896,000),
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group amortises its other intangible
assets with a finite useful life on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives reflect management’s
estimate of the period that the Group is able
to derive future economic benefits from
the use of the other intangible assets. At
30 June 2023, the carrying amount of other
intangible assets amounted to approximately
HK$1,875,000 (2022: HK$1,954,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group’'s management reviews the
inventory ageing analysis periodically, and
makes allowance on an annual basis for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer marketable. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a
product-by-product basis at the end of each
reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving items through
management’s estimation of the net realisable
value for such obsolete and slow-moving
items based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. At 30
June 2023, the carrying amount of inventories
amounted to approximately HK$4,818,000
(2022: HK$6,767,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Critical accounting judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:

Classification of joint arrangements

The Group has entered into joint arrangements to
produce and distribute television series, films and
webisodes. The Group has participating interests
ranging from 5% to 90% (2022: from 5% to 90%)
in these joint arrangements. The Group has joint
control over these arrangements as, under the
contractual agreements, unanimous consent is
required from all parties to the agreements for all
relevant activities. The Group’s joint arrangements
involve the joint control by the venturers of the
assets contributed to the joint arrangement and
dedicated to the purposes of each joint arrangement
for the benefits of the venturers. Each venturer
may take a share of the output from the assets
and each bears an agreed share of the expenses
incurred. These joint arrangements do not involve
the establishment of a corporation, partnership or
other entity, or a financial structure that is separate
from the venturers themselves. Therefore, these
arrangements are classified as joint operations of
the Group and the Group recognises in relation
to its interest in a joint operation in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 2.3. The
determination of the relevant activities under joint
operations requires management’s significant
judgement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines (products and services).
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Chairman of the Company,
being the Group’'s chief operating decision maker
("CODM") for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

The Group has presented the following reportable
segments.

- Video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights

- Trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products
and watches products

- Leasing of investment properties
- Securities investments
- Financial printing services

- Other (i.e. Entertainment business)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment loss, which
is a measure of loss before tax. The loss before
tax is measured consistently with the Group's loss
before taxation except amortisation of deferred
day one gain in respect of derivative instruments,
gain on disposal of unlisted investment fund, gain
on deconsolidation of subsidiaries, impairment loss
on amount due from deconsolidated subsidiaries,
finance income, unallocated finance costs and
unallocated corporate expenses.

Segment assets exclude unallocated other intangible
assets, other financial assets, unallocated loan
receivable, unallocated cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets and other unallocated corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated corporate liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

liabilities (Continued)

Segment revenue, results, assets and

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of

5

(a)

REMB|RME

a %B ;E *’I’ (lnﬁ

CEE BE

)32 T$

(EE = F R R F KA
= tTHILFE REHETEAEEXE
BIERRERIEER BN DHE

segment performance for the years ended 30 June WAt 2 AL B 235 EBEFHR
2023 and 2022 is set out below: ™~
For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE-B-ZEARSTHLEE
Video Trading,
distribution, wholesaling,
film and
distribution, retailing of
and optical
exhibition, products
licensing and and Leasing of
sub-licensing watches investment Securities Financial
of film rights products properties investments printing Others Elimination Total
BB
BYRAR BEERR
BB Rl BRER
REREY 2E5% " st
MRE HERBE RENE BERE BRI 0] s} @z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL A7 A7 A7 A7 AR 47 AL
Segment revenue ABE
Disaggregate by timing of revenue RYREABRA
recognition
- Point in time XK 139,201 21,891 - - 5917 9,186 - 176,195
- Over time - BB - - = = 21139 = = 21,139
-~ Revenue out of scope of - BAUBREENE5REE
HKFRS 15 IAIMgE - - 1,037 - - 68 - 1,105
External revenue e 139,201 21,891 1,037 - 27,056 9,254 - 198,439
Inter-segment sales DHEHE = = = = 214 = (214) -
139,201 21,891 1,037 - 21,270 9,254 (214) 198,439
Segment results ABEE (87,253) (5,304) 774 (695) (2,042) (494) (214) (95,228)
Finance income BHBMA 2,229
Finance cost BBRA (379)
Unallocated corporate expenses APRLERT (2,477)
Loss before taxation BHAER (95,855)
BEFREVCEBERDR —T=FFH

173



174

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEPER @

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and (a) oEffiE ~ FE4E - BE
. g, E'E j:
liabilities (Continued) INE=RETC )
As at 30 June 2023
R=B=Z£XA=1H
Video
distribution, Trading,
film wholesaling,
distribution and retailing
and exhibition, of optical
licensing and products and Leasing of
sub-licensing watches investment Securities Financial
of film rights products properties investments printing Others Total
BEBT BHEERR
EYROR #RER
BB RER 285 ekt
BRERNE HEREE RENE BERE B E Rl it st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER ThR TER TER TER
Assets KE
Segment assets AHEE 788,505 9,705 31,511 1,350 21,881 11,372 864,324
Other financial assets HispaE 1,878
Deferred tax assets EERRAE 531
Unallocated other intangible assets FOREENEE 1,858
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents FAERERALSEN 80,854
Unallocated corporate assets FAORGEEE 2,120
Total consolidated assets GREEEE 951,565
Liabilities afk
Segment liabilities AHEE 574,646 7,169 233 - 20,193 1,782 604,023
Taxation payable AR 7,340
Deferred tax liabilities BREHEER 112
Unallocated corporate liabilities FAELEAR 5,935
Total consolidated liabilties FRRELR 617,410

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023



5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and

5

(a)

REMB|RME

yal %B ;E *’I’ (lnﬁ

DEflRES - E4E

CBE

RITE . = )
liabilities (Continued) NKEaE®
As at 30 June 2023
R=B=Z£XA=1H
Video
distribution, Trading,
film wholesaling,
distribution and retailing
and exhibition, of optical
licensing and products and Leasing of
sub-licensing watches investment Securities Financial
of film rights products properties investments printing Others Total
BEBT BHEERR
EYROR #RER
BB RER 285 ekt
BRERNE HEREE RENE BERE B E Rl it st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER ThR TER TER TER
Other information HER
Additions of property, plant and equipment  FEWF - BERRE 2,298 = = = 97 = 2,395
Additions of right-of-use assets RERAELE 2419 797 - - 2,944 - 6,160
Total additions of property, plant and REME  BER
equipment RiEEE 8,555
Additions of film right and films in progress BB REREET
Z 128,123 - o ° ° = 128,123
Additions of film related deposits SYRMTREN 32,630 = = = = = 32,630
Depreciation of property, plant and % BERZERE
equipment 748 449 13 O 139 O 1,349
Unallocated depreciation of property, plant ~ &AEME « BER
and equipment RENE 1
Amortisation of film rights BYMECEE 121,945 = = = = = 121,945
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRRAEINE 3,437 247 = = 491 = 4175
Amortisation of other intangible assets HhhmR ] - 87 - - 51 - 138
Total depreciation and amortisation NERERAT 127,608
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMFRE (385) - - - - - (385)
Impairment loss of fim rights and films in EYMERREP L
progress EYREFE 51,422 = = = = = 51,422
Change in ECLs
- Accounts receivables - B 197 - - o o = 197
- Other receivables - H‘tﬁ}’gl&mlﬁ 443 - - - - - 443
~ Loans receivable - - - - - 178 178
Total change in ECLs 818
Fair value change of trading securities RHBHLTEEY = o = 813 = = 813
BFRECEBRRAT —T=FFK
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e M BHRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and

liabilities (Continued)

5

DEER @

(a) DEIE -« ¥E4E - BE
NE=RERC )

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BECZ-FRASTHIEER

Video Trading,
distribution, wholesaling,
film and
distribution, retailing of
and optical
exhibition, products
licensing and and Leasing of
sub-licensing watches investment Securities Financial
of film rights products properties investments printing Others Elimination Total
SRR
BYETR REERR
- Rk BRER
k#REY 8% it
i HEREE RENE BHRE BHEERI it BH @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FEL FHL FEL THL FAL
Segment revenue AHYE
Disaggregate by timing of RRERIRREAF
revenue recognition
= Point in time -X-K% 69,030 36,076 - - 11,562 304 - 116,972
=~ Over time -RRE - - - - 9438 - - 9,438
- Revenue out of scope of - BB HREER
HKFRS 15 F16RBENIME - - 1,142 - - 86 - 1228
External revenue GhEs 69,030 36,076 1,142 - 21,000 390 - 127,638
Inter-segment sales AHHHE - - - - 284 - (284) -
69,030 36,076 1,142 - 21,284 390 (284) 127,638
Segment results AHEE (61,655) 9,757) 861 (6,375) (11,170) (3,050) (284) (91,430)
Amortisation of deferred day one RETESRTAZER
gain in respect of derivative financial & B2 B
instruments 2,788
Gain on disposal of unlisted HEFLTRELEH
investment funds Mz 163
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries ~ FiE A A& IH4R & ABR IS 18,900
Impairment loss on amounts due from R |HE & \RITE A RIFUE
deconsolidated subsidiaries REER (10,649)
Finance income BEBA 2,077
Finance cost BHRA (216)
Unallocated corporate expenses FARLERT 4,189)
Loss before taxation kil 82,556)
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REMB|RME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and

liabilities (Continued)

5

DEER @

(a) EPUEs
NE=RERC )

As at 30 June 2022
RZZZZFRA=TA
Video
distribution, Trading,
film wholesaling,
distribution and retailing
and exhibition, of optical
licensing and products and Leasing of
sub-licensing watches investment Securities Financial
of film rights products properties investments printing Others Total
BEET BREMR
BYEOR BHER
BB Rtk 8% st
BRIYIRE HERTE RENE BHRE BHEEIR| it it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL Fir Fir Fhr TEL TERL
Assets KE
Segment assets AHEE 785,728 12,302 31,493 7,539 14,603 2,663 854,328
Other financial assets HispaE 1878
Deferred tax assets EERRAE 502
Unallocated other intangible assets FOREENEE 1,858
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents FAERERELSEN 211,607
Unallocated corporate assets FORGEEE 2814
Total consolidated assets GREEEE 1,072,987
Liabilities afk
Segment liabilities AHEE 599,214 8372 364 - 16,950 1,680 626,580
Taxation payable AR 12,325
Deferred tax liabilities ERHEER 139
Unallocated corporate liabilities FAELEAR 6,715
Total consolidated liabilties FRRELR 645,759
BFREVEEERAT —T=FFK
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e M BHRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and

liabilities (Continued)

5

DEER @

(a) DEIE -« ¥E4E - BE
NE=RERC )

As at 30 June 2022
RZZZZFRA=TA
Video
distribution, Trading,
film wholesaling,
distribution and retailing
and exhibition, of optical
licensing and products and Leasing of
sub-licensing watches investment Securities Financial
of film rights products properties investments printing Others Total
BEET BREMR
BYEOR BRER
BB Rtk 8% st
BRIYIRE HEREE REME BHRE BHEEIR| it it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitn FHL FAL FALT FALT Fisn Fisn
Other information HER
Additions of property, plant and equipment  FEWF - BERRE 29,713 1,512 5 - 2,790 7 34,027
Additions of right-of-use assets RERAELE - 773 - - 7,705 - 8,478
Total additions of property, plant REME  BER
and equipment RiEEE 42,505
Additions of film right and films REBYMERSED
in progress 8% 432,469 - - - - - 432,469
Additions of film related deposits SYRMTREN 25,288 - - - - - 25,268
Depreciation of property, plant % BERZERE
and equipment 358 644 13 - 404 - 1,419
Unallocated depreciation of KARME  BER
property, plant and equipment RENE 7
Amortisation of film rights BYMECEE 29,999 - - - - - 29,999
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRRAELNE 3,575 2833 - - 2,316 2 8,726
Unallocated depreciation of FARERREEL
right-of-use assets bt} - - - - - - 542
Amortisation of other intangible assets At EyEE BH - 147 - - 2 - 149
Total depreciation and amortisation FERBHETR 40,842
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEERER (145) - - - - - (145)
Impairment loss of property, nE - BERZEAE
plant and equipment BR - 286 - - 1,886 - 2172
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets FREEENESE - 1419 - - 5,455 - 6,874
Impairment loss of film rights and EMEREER
films in progress BYREFE 27,543 - - - - - 27,543
Change in ECLs INTERZESRE
HEEE:
- Accounts receivables - R (695) - - - 526 (18) (187)
- Loans receivable - BRER - - - - - il (7
Unallocated change in ECLs FARZBHEE
BEED (24)
Total change in ECLs BHEEFREDRE (288)
Fair value change of trading securities RHBHFLTEEY - - - 7916 - - 7916
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REMB|RME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEER @
(b) Geographical information (b) Hbig & x}
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The KRB ES - REBECEBE
Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong EMREBRPEH -
and the PRC.
The revenue information below is based on the VAT U 2 B T LA & P e 4 B
location of the operations. 4 o
2023
—E-=HF
Non-current
assets (other
than financial
instruments
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
FkRBEE
(FEFESHE
TAERIEE
g BHEEE)
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &8 (PriEih) 56,093 740,779
PRC and other Asian countries A B K E A g MBI =R
(other than Hong Kong and Macau) (BARRFMBRIN 139,710 25,394
Others Hi 2,636 =
198,439 766,173
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e M BHRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SDEER@®
(b) Geographical information (Continued) (b) HbIEkE R )
2022
— g
Non-current
assets (other
than financial
instruments
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
IETBEEE
(FEIEER
THRIEE
g HIBEE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&TT FHET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &5 (FriEib) 26,807 769,125
PRC and other Asian countries AR E A g B R
(other than Hong Kong and Macau) (BB BRI IN 100,707 27,989
Others Hi 124 -
127,638 797,114
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

Information about major customers

For the year ended 30 June 2023, one of the
customers from video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights segment contributed 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue amounting to approximately
HK$77,788,000 (2022: one of the customers
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
amounting to approximately HK$19,452,000).

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for
video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights, trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products and
watch products and provision of financial printing
services, such that the Group does not disclose
information about revenue that the Group will
be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the sales contracts
as their performance has an original expected
duration of one year or less.

=T

(d)

REMB|RME

BEHETERFPZEHR

REE_ZE-_=FA=1+HLF
B 8ERET BRI -

BHMEREYRESSBEP—
HEFPEBASE 2 WEZEI10%
A+ 0 B1#977,788,0005 7T (—
T -F  HP—ZRFEEA
EEZWEFEI0%HAL G5
19,452,000/ 7T) °

EAE B ERE HERTE
BEAI AW -
T8 HA A R SRR

AEBECHEEMBHRSERSE

155121 2 BB ET HERR
Hph R 1T - BRBITRMR -
RO REREZRE - BREEMR
EiREMCES  MERTEUR
RHPECORRE 2HEEELD
Eit - AEBB T HEFTERNEE
(EEBITHEANB TBEYNER
B EERK=Z 2 ER - AR
TREEAE —FHUATZRTEH
HABR

FREXCEBERLDR —T-=FFH§
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 W% - HBRFE
Right-of-use Leasehold Machineryand  Furniture and Motor Office
assets Premises  improvements equipment fixtures Vehicles equipment Total
RREsE g RENERE  BERERE  BARZE RE  BOERE Bg

HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

COST A
At July 2021 o
tA-A 34,806 - 10,176 25,125 2319 374 9,652 86,419
Additions AE 8478 29,460 2,481 8 300 1451 327 42,505
Disposals e - - - - - (118) - (118)
Write-off i - - (778) - (97) - (1) (836)
Bxchange realignment E7i8% (74 (1,250 (75) - (28) @ (26) (1,457)
Cancellation of tenancy MElEhE
agreement .21 - - - - - - 221
Deregistration of HENEAA
subsidiaries (2,652) - (286) - - - - (2,938)
At 30 June 2022 and i —a
1.July 2022 RBZTER
St
tA-A 38,287 28,210 11,518 25,733 2,494 5,070 9942 121,254
Additions AE 6,160 - 2253 3 106 - 1 8,555
Disposals L& - - - - - (200) - (200
Exchange realignment LS 351) (2,207) (275) - 5 (300) (76) 3,204)
At 30 June 2023 RZFZ=
................... VST M B heET M e
ACCUMULATED ZitERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At T July 2021 RZE=-%
tA-A 19,499 - 9,29 25,724 1,748 374 9287 69,289
Depreciation charge NEER 9,268 207 794 1 217 2 164 10,694
Disposals HE - - - - - (118) - (118)
Write-off ik - - (498) - 43) - (6] (547)
Exchange realignment ExdE (64) (6) (77) - (23) ) (24) (198)
Impairment HE 6,874 - 2172 - - - - 9,046
Cancelation of tenancy MERERE
agreement (192) - - - - - - (192)
Deconsolidation of NG
subsidiaries N (2,031) - (167) - - - - (2,399)
At 30 June 2022 and i —a
1July 2022 ~EZTER
St
tA-8 33,154 m 11514 25,725 1,899 3,642 9421 85,576
Depreciation charge TEER 4175 a1 229 8 235 269 188 5525
Disposals L& - - - - - (23) - (23)
Exchange realignment B A% 202) (33) (150) - 18 212) (72) (651)
At 30 June 2023 RZF-=
................... TSR BB R e
CARRYING AMOUNTS K&
At 30 June 2023 ;3
~AZTH 6,969 25,394 1,903 3 453 894 330 35,978
At 30 June 2022 i 3
~AZTH 5133 27,989 4 8 59 1,428 521 35,678
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation of approximately HK$5,525,000 (2022:
HK$10,694,000) has been charged to “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

In accordance with the Group's accounting policy,
property, plant and equipment (note 2.6) and right-of-use
assets (note 2.8(i)) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss. During the year,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
for financial printing business were fully impaired as
the value-in-use of those assets are estimated by the
management of the Group to be Nil because of the past
poor financial performance of the business segment and
it is foreseen that those assets will not be able to be used
to generate positive future cash inflow.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the impairment
losses of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets of approximately HK$2,172,000 and HK$6,874,000
were recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, respectively.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

Other properties leased for own
use, carried at depreciated cost

BEITEKRAAREE
B MR EbY%

=T

e R R M AT
M - BERFRE®

FEA5,525,0008 T (2 ==
10,694, ooo%n)am,wé%ﬁuﬂzm%
[1TINE R Bk ©

REAEEZGTHE W% #E=R
&t (M 5E2.6) M £ A #E & 2 (MR 2.8(1)
BB RATELREBRIIE - ©
REE - MEERIEBEZME - #z R
RBALERAEEETERE  RAR
AEBEREMARSEEZERER
BT DEZEBDBBEFBHREAR
ERFEPZFEERBERNELLER
FIRERA ©

BE - —"FAZ1+HIEFEE Y

¥ BBLREULRERAEEEZRE
B8 Rl 492,172,000 7T 56,874,000

B A 2SR AER o
(a) FRHEE
&m@ﬁéﬁﬂ% D2 EFAEEE
BREFESTIMT ¢
2023 2022
—E-= —E - F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
6,969 5,133

FREXCEBERLDR —T-=FFH§
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e M BHRME

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 W¥ HMERZE®
(Continued)
(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a) FFREEE®
The analysis of expenses items in relation to leases REZHANHEEMRBERYEE S
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: Hran
2023 2022
—E=F —E -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
Depreciation charge of REBEEERNEDH
right-of-use assets by class of FREEEBRATE
underlying asset: (Note 29) (F5E29)
Other properties leased MEEE Ar
for own use Hob P 4,175 9,268
Impairment loss of right-of-use FRAREEEREBE
assets (Note 29) (F45%29) = 6,874
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE (FFE29)
(Note 29) 379 515
Expense relating to short-term EEHERERE
leases (Note 29) (Ff5£29) 820 1,512
Expense relating to leases of HEREBEEEMRBRAX
low-value assets (Note 29) (F7%29) 223 182
Variable lease payments not WEFAEaErEZ
included in the measurement of  A] & & R (F5£29)
lease liabilities (Note 29) 657 234
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were approximately HK$6,160,000 (2022:
HK$8,478,000). This amount primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under a new
tenancy agreement.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 41(c) and 25, respectively.

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its office, warehouse and retail stores
through tenancy agreements. The leases typically
run for an initial period of 2 to 3 years. The lease of
retail stores contain variable lease payment terms
that are based on sales generated from the retail
stores and minimum annual lease payment terms
that are fixed. These payment terms are common in
retail stores in Hong Kong and the PRC where the
Group operates. Other than the retail stores, other
leases do not include variable lease payments.

REMB|RME

6 W - HERXRBE®

(a)

(b)

AR E@®
RER FEERABREEY

6,160,000 c( =& ==
8,478,000/ L) - iz &R+ B M
FIERRERE TENMEHEEENK
TEARE o

ERMEERSRLABENIEERE
BIBARR DA 2 FH 18 D BB MY °E
41(c) }25 »

MEAEE MR EMBYE

AEBEBHE RIS EREM
MERN  ERBRE  BRERT
S5 - R EHE—RNFRBME
=¥ - TEEHEBEUTEEH
ERAEMAE Z B HR R
B 2 AR F IR  ZFHFUF
REAREEELMENTERTE
MEEEPRER - REEEI
HpHEY T EEATSEHENK -

EFRECEBERDR —T-=FFH
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7

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWZE
2023 2022
—E-= —=E-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At fair value BAYE

At the beginning and the end of the RETRER

year 31,460 31,460

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, that is, observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

LEME N FERE

(a)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

DNEER
TREINBERRREEERE
AEARBEVHEHEENSE
1B AFEAEIPAEEN=F
RAFESFENENAEEREY
ERFE - BARAVEFENETR
SEMETETAEREAREN
ABRMENE2MEENT ¢

FIREE: EEAF1RBAR
BEF 2R ATE - BIRETERHE
BMHTHREEXAENRER

B&RE

F2qfhE - ERFE2REBARE
AENQTE BIANAEIRN
AERmAZE  INMERERT
AEBRNBARE - TR BREA
FIEEE AN SEBESNEA
g

FEIWHE : NERTAIERNE
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REMB|RME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 7 REVZE®

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties SEME N T EFE®
(Continued)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) DAFEERGE

Fair value measurements at
30 June 2023 categorised into
R-B-_=FXA=1tALATEIEREAR

Fair value at

30 June 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-EZ=F
~HB=1H

ZAYE E1 B2 E3%

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FTET TExT THET

Recurring fair value EEEATE
measurement itE
Investment properties: BEME
- Residential = Hong Kong -FE-FE 31,460 = = 31,460
Fair value measurements at
30 June 2022 categorised into
RZEZZFANA=+THRTFENERER
Fair value at
30 June 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
WZZZZF
NA=+H
AN S| FR FoR £33k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FEL FET TET
Recurring fair value "EMDNFE
measurement e
Investment properties: REME -

- Residential — Hong Kong -FE-BHE 31,460 - - 31,460
During the year ended 30 June 2023, there were no HE-_Z-_=—FA=+tHLHF
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer B EF1VREFINR 2 EEE
into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil). The Group's policy % BRI EEAREL (TS
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value ZF ) c AEENBEEER
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in WEHRERSHANEEN L FE
which they occur. ERHPEER 2 EANER -
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7

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

All investment properties of the Group were
revalued as at 30 June 2023. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, who have
amongst their staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued.
The management of the Group has discussions with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed at
each reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

7

KREY )
BEME 7 N ETE®)

(a) DFEFHR®E@

AEBRAERENEANR T _=
FRA=THETEMR - HETH

BIOAEETT - i S IRIREHE

BRRARETT  ZRRFDETR
BAREBMBEEER - HAHEY
SV FT A H A0 FTEE B Bl BB AT
B - RBRHREE BETRHE
R AEEERED RS

EEREEEESER -

(b) BEEIRLFEFTEZEHR

Valuation Unobservable
techniques inputs Range of inputs
THEE @A
RER* i BWABEZEE
Investment properties Direct comparison Discount on quality  -10%—0% (2022: -10%-0%)
in Hong Kong approach of properties
REBZREMH BEEERE AMELEENE  -10%0%(ZT=Z=F : -10%0%)

The fair value of investment properties located
in Hong Kong is determined using direct
comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square foot basis, adjusted for a premium or
discount specific to the quality and location of the
Group’s properties compared to recent sales of
comparable transactions. Higher discount for lower
quality properties will result in a lower fair value
measurement.

NREBZREMEZ RFETIE
RERLEAERE  RE2EAH
LB ELREG T REREESE
ZOHMEE  AERAKEYMEE
BN E 2% B S s (B
HMHERFLBABIELAE -

BEEEMEZESTESE
Bz EERE -
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REMB|RME

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties

(Continued)

(b)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The movements during the year in the balance

REY )

SEME 7 N EETE @)

(b) BEEIRLFEFTEZEHR

(&)

ENEIRATEN BEBOET

of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as wm
follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Investment properties REWME
- Residential - Hong Kong -FE-5B
At the beginning of the year REH] 31,460 31,460
Fair value change NTEES) - -
At the end of the year RER 31,460 31,460

ETREVLEBMBERRA —Z-=FFH
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e M BHRME

8 OTHERINTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 HME\EEEE
Computer Club
software Brand name  membership Total
G REERE eg @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL TR FEL
COST A
At 1 July 2021 RZZE--%tA—-H 1,414 1,108 1,858 4,380
Addition NE 11 - - 11
At 30 June 2022 RZEZZFRA=+EEK
and 1 July 2022 —E--_F+A-H 1,425 1,108 1,858 4,391
Addition AE 59 - - 59
At 30 June 2023 RZEZ=F,A=+H 1,484 1,108 1,858 4,450
ACCUMULATED 2HBERAE
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2021 RZZ-—F+HA—-H 1414 874 - 2,288
Amortisation for the year FREE(H29)
(Note 29) 2 147 - 149
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July RZEZZFXA=Z+tAK
2022 “E-"F+A-H 1,416 1,021 - 2,437
Amortisation for the year FEREH(HE29)
(Note 29) 51 87 - 138
At 30 June 2023 RZE-=FXA=1H 1,467 1,108 - 2,575
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 30 June 2023 R-E-=F A=1H 17 - 1,858 1,875
At 30 June 2022 R-E-—FXA=1H 9 87 1,858 1,954
No impairment loss of the other intangible assets HE_ZTS-_=FR-_F-_-"FA=+
was recognised in the consolidated statement of HIEFE  UERAMELEE 2RER
comprehensive income for the years ended 30 June 2023 BREE2HMBRERNER -
and 2022.
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REMB|RME

9 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS 9 BERRERRFEPZER

Film Films in
rights progress Total
e
SME ZE¥ st

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT

COST RA
At 1 July 2021 R-Z-—F+HF—H 301,819 281,078 582,897
Additions NE 1,219 431,250 432,469
Transfer from films in progress HBRBHEPEY 58,445 (58,445) -
Write-off of expired film rights B HIE R 2 WsE (367) - (367)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RZBE-ZZFRA=Z+HK
—ET-__Ft+A—H 361,116 653,883 1,014,999
Additions NE 10,608 117,515 128,123
Transfer from films in progress BRAREREY 390,142 (390,142) -
Write-off of expired film rights SIERE MR 2 HH 5 (1,260) - (1,260)
Write-off DVD pre-product cost DVDT8E fmBk A 2 #i 85 (16,035) - (16,035)
L. M80June2023 o REFSSESAASTA L 7A45T1 381286 1125827
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND  R:#i KRR E
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2021 RZZ-_—F+A—H 300,953 3,749 304,702
Amortisation for the year (Note 29) F i E(H3E29) 29,999 - 29,999
Impairment (Note 29) B (F15E29) 27,643 - 27,543
Write-off of expired film rights BB R 2 WsE (367) - (367)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RZZEZZF A=1+HK
—ET--_Ft+A—H 358,128 3,749 361,877
Amortisation for the year (Note 29) F R (M 3E29) 121,945 - 121,945
Impairment (Note 29) FE (T 3E29) 51,422 - 51,422
Write-off of expired film rights B HIE R 2 WsE (1,260) - (1,260)
Write-off DVD pre-product cost DVDTEE @A 2 2 1 6 (16,035) - (16,035)
L A80June2028 L REESEEAASTR 514200 3749 517949
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 30 June 2023 RZZZ=%,R=+H 230,371 377,507 607,878
At 30 June 2022 RZE-Z_FA=1H 2,988 650,134 653,122
Amortisation of approximately HK$121,945,000 (2022: BiEesmEoI2 ,94§,000;‘%7_u(:;?::
HK$29,999,000) is included in the cost of revenue in the F ¢ 29,999,000 L) ARG £ E NS
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. R2WZKAR o
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FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS

(Continued)

Impairment test for film rights and films in progress

The Group assesses whether the film rights and films
in progress for video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights segment are subject to any impairment loss, in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note
2.14 of these consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, management
assessed whether there was an impairment indicator in
relation to the film rights and films in progress for video
distribution, film distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights segment by reviewing the cast
or scale of each films, current market condition, the trade
history, current financial position and popularity of film
outline stories. Management has further performed an
assessment on the recoverable amount of the film rights
and film in progress based on each film sales forecast.
As at 30 June 2023, the Group assessed that there were
impairment indication for certain films included in films
rights and film in progress with gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$424,295,000 (2022: HK$34,403,000)
and HK$366,227,000 (2022: HK$32,350,000)respectively
because of the change of comparable market information
and expected performance. As at 30 June 2023, these
film rights and film in progress were reduced to their
recoverable amount of approximately HK$341,426,000
(2022: HK$2,956,000) and HK$362,477,000 (2022:
HK$28,600,000) respectively. The recoverable amount
was determined on a title-by-title basis, and was
assessed with reference to a value-in-use calculation at
the end of the reporting period, which was derived from
discounting the projected cash flow forecast using a
discount rate of 11% (2022: 11%). Key assumptions for
the value-in-use calculations related to the estimation of
cash inflow included the budget film exhibition income,
budget licensing and sub-licensing income revenue
and discount rate. Such estimation was based on the
historical box office of the same director and main cast
members, the market comparable data of films with
the same theme, and management’s expectations of
the market development. The discount rate used was
before tax and reflected current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the film
production business.
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EFRERRERZ2EE @

ERNRENRUEF ZEF
ERENE IS

R EIR A A B REM 2. 145780
&R E TR BT - BREIT R
B R R EERRES B2 BRIR
BRENET 2 BYAT BR T ARES

B

REE-_Z-_=ZFA=Z+HILFE
EREERREEMNELNEEMAL
MIE  ERMR - XRHEEk - BB
MR BEZWEFEENTEORE - 77
HERE T BRBITRREE  BH K
IR B MRIED 52 B RAE R EAEF

EYeLHBRETR - EEERE
EREFZHHEEBANE - THEZRE
MEER 2B A B S BEEITT
B MR- TE-_=ZFA=1+H A&
B E IR R E D 54 /8424,295,000
BT (ZZT = —%F : 34,403,000870)
366,227,000 (& - —
32,350,000 M) 2 6 TEFZ (BREER
MRt R BERER) FEREDNS - KA
AR MEER RTEHRRA S8 - B
—TE-ZFXNAZ=+H - ZEEFRE
FEERBEEDRIRERE 2 /] E
& F4)341,426,0008 0 (ZFE ==
2,956,000 7T) &.362,477,0005% 7T (—
T~ —4 :28,600,000/87T) ° AUk
CRHNREHEFEAEET  WEER
MEBKRZEREEFEETIGE
MERBENIERITI % (ZE - —4F
11%) 2 B3R EBIRFBAR S REFTE
B BEBSRAMFTZFEREER
HXITHREAPEBEEZRMIA - 78
ERERERIAMNSZRAIEE - 5
BEDERARESERETEEE 2 BE
ZE  HRAZEEZ MBI LEER
EREHMISEE A - FTARAX
AUAEIRE  RMERMHEEEBE
MEEREFREERTTRAR 2T
(=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS

(Continued)

Impairment test for film rights and films in progress
(Continued)

Taking into account the impairment assessment
performed by the management, an impairment loss
of film rights of approximately HK$51,422,000 (2022:
HK$27,543,000) and no impairment loss of films in
progress (2022: Nil) were recognised respectively in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2023 to reduce the carrying
amounts of these assets to their recoverable amounts.
The directors and management have considered and
assessed reasonably possible changes for other key
assumptions and have not identified any instances that
could cause the carrying amounts of film rights and film
in progress to exceed their recoverable amounts as at 30
June 2023.

9

=T

REMB|RME

== 2y
B8 3

EREEF 2 ES @

BRI 2 B
BRI E ()

KR ERBRBEITZRETE EFMR
R E 1B 4951,422,0008 (2 -
& 27,543,000 0) EWEREFRE
YIREEBBCEZZF  ®)BRE
E-E-=FXNAZTHIEFEZHES
PEBRBRFDORER  UWEZEEE
ZHEEEREEA KL EERE
BEEZENTHEMEERE 2 AE
AR E) AW MR AT L EME
EHRERSEREY ZEREBLER
—EC=FANAZTHZAKEEED
P
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10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 10 EEMWELE]

MTRAR-_ZE_=FA=1THZEE

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

June 2023. WBARRBE -
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
HEE
EfA HfHE  mEER
BRREE 58 BEBEW
B AN e VEER  WEER EER
HEARER REREEEH BRARRRFE IERBRERNY (%) (%) S BI(%)
Universe Films (Holdings) The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investments holdings in 100 - -
Limited* limited liability Hong Kong
company
EBRUES ERRBRA100%7T RERk &%
EREHEAT
Universe Films Distribution Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Subrlicensing of film - 100 -
Company Limited liability company rights and television
series, film exhibition
and leasing of investment
properties in Hong Kong
SFYRENERAR Eh BRELLT ERRRAZET BREYMERERE
EYIMNRILERE
nx &
Unigue Model Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Model agency in - 100 -
liability company Hong Kong
Bk ARRALA ERRRER00ET BEIRE &4
Universe Digital Entertainment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,0005%  Distribution of films in - 100 -
Limited liability company deferred HK$10,000 various videogram
formats in Hong Kong
EHERLERT B5 BREELT  ERRRANOOET  HFRBEHAES
S%ERMRBA g% Bk
1000087
Universe Management Services  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,0005%  Provision of management - 100 -
Limited liability company deferred HK$10,000 services for the Group
in Hong Kong
BROEERERL Eh BRELLT LRRER00008T  WAEEREERRY
B%EERHEA 305
10,0007
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REMB|RME

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

10 EEMEL T @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E
Efh HftHE  mEER
BRRGE K8 BEBEW
SHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
WEARER RERREEN BRARRRE IERRRERMY (%) HBI%) SAI(%)
Universe Entertainment Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$2 Investment in films - 100 -
limited fiability production and licensing
company of film rights in
Hong Kong
STREERAT iERUES ERRRALZET RABYRERRILEY
ERERRA it Ry
Universe (China) Development Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HKS2 Investment holding in Hong - 100 -
Limited liability company Kong and investment in
television series
production in the Peaple’s
Republic of China ("PRC")
FRHEARERAR BE BRELLT LRREA2ET REZR B8 RiRE
HESResd
hEARLAE (E))
Globalink Advertising Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Advertising agent for the - 100 -
liability company Group in Hong Kong
B ARELAT LRRRR2ET AEEVEERE BE
Universe International Technology  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Purchasing agent for the - 100 -
Limited liability company Group in Hong Kong
STERNRERAR Eh BRELLT ERRRA2ET AEEZRBAR B4
Universe Artiste Management Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10 Management of contracted - 100 -
Limited liability company artistes in Hong Kong
RTEAERERLA Eh BRELLA LEREAR0ET ERRNEA  BR

EFRECEBERDR —T-=FFH
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10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

10 FEREL T @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E
Efh HftHE  mEER
BRRGE B8 BEREN
SHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
WEARER RERREEN BRARRRE IERRRERMY 5% HBI%) SAI(%)
Films Station Production Limited*  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HKS2 Films production in - 100 -
liability company Hong Kong
Eh BRELLA ERRRT2ET BYAE TE
Universe Music Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Licensing and sub-icensing - 100 -
liability company of music programme and
Investment in concert in
Hong Kong
STEEERLT Eh BRELLA ERRRT2ET O EBEE LT
NRRERES FH
Universe Films Acquisition Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Subrlicensing of film rights - 100 -
Limited* liability company in Hong Kong
B ARELAT ERRRT2ET EREYME BR
Wide Avenue Holdings Limited*  The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Investment holdings in the 100 - -
limited liability British Virgin Islands
company
EBRNES =il 0eNESH REZR  REERHS
EREHRA
Universe Martix Films Investment  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1 Investment in films - 100 -
Limited liability company production
STHREYREARLA EE BRELAT ERRBEAET AT HE
FRAEHLEYRIUR) PRC, limited liabiity RMB1,000,000 Distribution of films in - 100 -
ER AR company the PRC
hE - AREEAT ARH1,0000007 AL

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 TEHBA R @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E
Efh HftHE  mEER
BRRGE B8 BEREN
SHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
WEARER RERREEN BRARRRE IERRRERMY 5% HBI%) SAI(%)
FFEEREQR)BERAE®E  PRC limited liabilty RIIB3,000,000 Advertising agent for - 100 -
company the Group in PRC
hE EREAAT AR3,000,0007 REEZRERE 4
Fragrant River Entertainment The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in the 100 - -
Culture (Holdings) Limited limited liability British Virgin Islands
company
BIREUL (BRIERAT EBRUES ERRBRA100%T REBR  XEEXHS
EREFAT
Weluck Development Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Securities investments - 100 -
limited liability
company
K ERERAT ARRLHE LERBRMIET EARE
EREFAT
Precise Reach Group Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100 -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
FEEEERAT EBRUES ERRER100%T REZR  BA
EREFAT
Rising Fame International Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100 -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
REERERAT EERNES ERRER100%T REZR  BA
EREHEAA

EFRECEBERDR —T-=FFH§
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10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 10 FEMBAR@
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)

EL)
Bl HHAR  BEER
§ORRE ¥E RERAN

SHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
WEARER RERREEN BRARRRE IERRRERMY (%) HBI%) SAI(%)
Galaxy View Group Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Investment holding in - 100 -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
SFEERRAT iERAES ERRRAIET REBR - B
EREARE
China Jianxin Credit Services Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in - 100 -
Limited liability company Hong Kong
hEREEEERAA Eh BRELLA ERRBER1008T REBR - B
Formex Financial Press Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$21,000,000  Financial printing services - 85 15
liability company in Hong Kong
FRRERERLE B ARELAT LERRA21,000000%7 EBHEENRIRE - BE
Formex Financial Press Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in - 100 -
(International) Limited liability company Hong Kong
({formerly known as
"Fragrant River Entertainment
Investment Limited"|

HRSEARIERARAT  FE - BRELLA ERREI002T REmE B
(HAETREEARRAA)

Rising Fame Investment Limited ~Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$3,000,000 Securities investments - 100 -
liability company
FEREERAT B ARELEAT ERREER FriRA
3,000,000% T
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REMB|RME

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 TEHBA R @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E
Efh HftHE  mEER
BRRGE B8 BEREN
SHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
WEARER RERREEN BRARRRE IERRRERMY 5% HBI%) SAI(%)
Winston Asia Limited* The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary HK$3,319 Investment holding in - 100 -
limited liability Hong Kong and the PRC
company
AERTHE BREF SHRRRE39ET REZR  FERTE
Rl
Universe Watch and Jewelery Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$73,944,225  Investment holding in - 100 -
Group Co Ltd liability company Hong Kong and the PRC
STERREREARAA Eh BRELLA ERRHEE RESR  BERTE
73.944,205% ¢
RImHEEFERAD® PRC, limited liabilty Ordinary RMB27,500,000  Wholesale and retailof - 100 -
company watches and optical
products in the PRC
hE - EREAAT ERRHEE HENTEERR
ARH27,500,0007 BRER T
ERRS(RIERAT PRC, limited liabilty Ordinary HK$9,000000  Wholesale and retal of - 100 -
company watches in the PRC
hE - EREAAT ERREE HENSTEER 18
9,000,000 T
Garona (HK) Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$300,000 Wholesale and retail of - 100 -
liability company watches in Hong Kong
B ARELAT ERREA000008T  HEANTEER FR

EFRECEBERDR —T-=FFH§
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Place of incorporation/

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

establishment and kind ~ Particulars of
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity issued share capital
SHREL/ R
WEARER RERREEN BRARRRE
Universe Optical Investment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$5,000,000
Limited liability company
STRERERRAA B ARRILT LRIRRA5,000,000%7
Universe Optical Company Limited - Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100
liability company
STREARAR B ARELAT LERRAI100ET
Universe Optical Group Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10
liability company
STREEEARAA &% AREELT ERREAR0ET
China Jianxin Financial Services  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$34,900,000
Limited liability company
hERELAREARLA & ARELAT EBRHEER
34,900,000/ 7T
Notes:
* No registered Chinese name for the companies
# No registered English name for the companies
@ Represent a wholly foreign owned enterprise

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

10 EEMEL T @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary
of ordinary shares
shares held by
Principal directly  other group
activities and held by entities
place of operation parent (%) (%)
H&E
Effh HfpEE
BRRGE b2
VEER  HEER
IERRRERMY 5% HBI%)
QOptical shops - 90
REE
QOptical shops - 90
REE
Providing management - 90
service
RUEERRE
Securities brokerage and - 100
margin financing
(The busingss was
discontinued during
the year ended
30 June 2018)
EREERARRE
#xHREZE
“E-\E/A=TH
EERI)
BisT
* ZERNRWEELRRETE
# ZERANEE LR AT
e ERINEmBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

11

BRI &

i pdciof =l = |

BB I ANKREEN

As at 30 June 2023 R_ZE_=FH=T1H
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets at Financial
fair value assets
through profit  at amortised
or loss cost Total
BRER REBHERR
BAFENE il
ZERMEE SREE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT THET
Other financial assets HitemeE 1,878 - 1,878
Trading securities R5EFH 1,350 = 1,350
Accounts receivable PRI R = 47,971 47,971
Financial assets included in FAEFET 2 B
" deposits paid, prepayments HIERE AR
and other receivables” LERBE = 43,853 43,853
Loans receivable FEWER = 597 597
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFEEED = 80,854 80,854
3,228 173,275 176,503

ETREVLEBMBERRA —Z-=FFH
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e M BHRME

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY n xE

AElnzEr T Awm

(Continued)
As at 30 June 2023 (Continued) RZE-=FA=1TH®
Financial Liabilities =R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
% # 85 AR ZS
HIER 2
sRER wat
HK$°000 HK$°000
FH&xT FHBT
Accounts payable FETBR IR 16,318 16,318
Financial liabilities included in ST AE fh B 308 &
“other payables and accrued charges” Btz I MIEUWET4 ]
and “deposits received” ZERAas 72,062 72,062
88,380 88,380
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REMB|RME

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY N RERI Sz @

(Continued)
As at 30 June 2022 R-ZZE_ZFA=1H
Financial assets ETREE
Financial
assets at Financial
fair value assets
through profit at amortised
or loss cost Total
BiRER e =107
BATEAR il
JEREE SREE &ar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FEL FEL
Other financial assets HtemEE 1,878 - 1,878
Trading securities R5EH 7,539 - 7,539
Accounts receivable JE YRR - 22,648 22,648
Financial assets included in BUNIRIEERS )
“deposits paid, prepayments FRIE R A R FR
and other receivables” LERBE - 20,896 20,896
Loans receivable FEWER - 1,235 1,235
Bank balances and cash BITESB LIRS
- trust accounts - ERERP - 125 125
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEN - 211,846 211,846
9,417 256,750 266,167

TR EEMARAT —E-SEER 203
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e M BHRME

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY "N ZRBHE 2T Ew®

(Continued)
As at 30 June 2022 (Continued) RZEBEZZFXXA=1+H®
Financial Liabilities E =N
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
big: 3= ]0%N
HIHR 2
TREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Accounts payable FETBR IR 24,829 24,829
Financial liabilities included in ST AE fh B 308 &
“other payables and accrued charges” Bzt I R[EUETE ]
and “deposits received” ZERAas 92,437 92,437
117,266 117,266
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REMB|RME

12 DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND 12 EfE] € FANRIEREM
OTHER RECEIVABLES FEUW I8
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
Non-current portion FERNEAE 5
Rental deposits (note a) HEFT2 (HFa) 1,684 2,377
At 30 June WA<B=+H 1,684 2,377
Current portion B HA &6
Prepayments FEfT 5RIE 1,653 1,489
Interest receivable JE U B 497 1,590
Amounts due from joint operation WA & XY RIE

partners 21,837 1,664
Amount due from non-controlling FE UL SE 15 IR b 2 08 (M9 5 b)

interests (note b) 500 -
Rental deposits and other deposits ~ fA& ] & M EMET 2 (M 5ta)

(note a) 4,212 4,896
Other receivables H fth pE Y GRIE 15,594 10,397
Less: loss allowance B EiERE (471) (28)
At 30 June RAA=+H 43,822 20,008

Note a: The amount of the Group's deposits paid expected fizta : AEBEHERBER —FRIKE
to be recovered or recognised as expense after SERAAINENTIESBEA
more than one year is approximately HK$1,684,000 #)1,684,0008 L(Z T == :
(2022: HK$2,377,000). All of the other deposits paid, 2,377,000 7T) - T EME
prepayments and other receivables are expected to & - TETAIE R OE b FEUGRIE
be recovered or recognised as expense within one HEHAR —FAKEKER AR
year. X o

Note b: The advance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and Mizkb : R ABEIERE THEREET
has no fixed repayment terms. BIKER o

RTFREXCEBEARRAR —T_=FFR
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13 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 13 ELEHEBEEERERE

(a) The movements in deferred tax assets and (a) RAFER @ RAEFIE
liabilities during the year are as follows: BENBEZES
mT
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE
Tax losses Total
HIEEE o
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 July 2021 RZEZ—F+AF—H 471 471
Credit to profit or loss RIEEFETA 31 31
At 30 June 2022 and RZZE-_—FXA=+HK
1 July 2022 —E-—#+A—R 502 502
Credit to profit or loss RIEZEFETA 29 29
At 30 June 2023 R-ZZE-_=%FA=+H 531 531
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEEE

Accelerated

tax

depreciation Total

IEBIETE et

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHET

At 1 July 2021 RZE-_—F+A—H (102) (102)

Charge to profit or loss RIBE IR (37) (37)
At 30 June 2022 and RZZE-_—_FXA=+HK

1 July 2022 —E-—F+AF—H (139) (139)

Credit to profit or loss RIEEFETA 27 27

At 30 June 2023 R-E-=F,A=1+H (112) (112)

206 Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(a)

REMB|RME

13 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 13 EiEREBEEEREE®
The movements in deferred tax assets and (a) RAFEER  ELEHIE
liabilities during the year are as follows: EERBEZE
(Continued) I N
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax MERENME @ BTELEHREE
assets and liabilities have been offset in the ERBEEREEBRARANIK
consolidated statement of financial position. The e TRARUBEHEENT S M
following table is an analysis of the deferred NEBIEERIBE BRI
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting
purposes:
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net deferred tax assets RERE MR R TR
recognised in the BRAELCHTEEE
consolidated statement of it
financial position 531 502
Net deferred tax liabilities RERE BRI EA
recognised in the BROELEHIEEE
consolidated statement of pEit-E
financial position (112) (139)
419 363
Deferred tax assets in respect of the unused tax (b) BELERSHARIEEEZELTR

(b)

losses carried forward are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax losses can
be utilised.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$315,981,000 (2022: HK$232,443,000) as
at 30 June 2023 due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in the above tax
losses, approximately HK$20,526,000 (2022:
HK$19,125,000) can only be carried forward for a
maximum period of five years. Other losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.

=

HEEEGNARKE BRVEH
HANMEHEAB AR REBRZBER
T JTHEER o

R AR EFRA A TER - AEE
VAM—_ZE_=ZF~A=FTH2
TR TE E518 49315,981,000/8 7T (- =
T T4 : 232,443,000 7T) R
FEEMIBEE - LA FHIERES
#920,5626,0008 T (ZE ==
19,125,000/ ) Mt E RS
AF 7 AR - HAbEIBEE SR HA
e o

FREXCEEERLDR —T-=FF§
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e M BHRME

14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 14 HittemEE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Financial assets measured at fair EBIEZE A FEARE
value through profit or loss ZEREE
Non-current FRE
Unlisted limited partnership FLEMBEREBELE 1,108 1,108
Club debenture gHES 770 770
At 30 June MANA=+H 1,878 1,878
15 TRADING SECURITIES 15 R5ESH
2023 2022
—E_=HF —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Listed equity securities — ETRAES -
held for trading HIEEE 1,350 7,539
Market value of listed securities EHESZHE 1,350 7,539
Trading Securities are presented within ‘operating EREEESEHN—HBn  XHEFH

activities’ as part of changes in working capital in the
consolidated statement of cash flows (Note 41).

As at 30 June 2023, the trading securities of
HK$1,350,000 (2022: approximately HK$1,350,000)
represents listed equity securities suspended from
trading. The fair value of those securities is determined
based on valuation techniques and input as stated in note
3.3(i)(b).

FINGRE TR @ RERANZ [EEES ] (I
F£41) °

RZE-_=ZFA=Z+H R5F
%1,350,0008 L(ZFE=-_F : &
1,350,0008 ) IEEEFEE 2 LT
KEH - ZEFBFZAFEDIREN
3.3()(b)Frill 2 B 5= g A SR E

ﬁo
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16 INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS 16

The Group has entered into certain joint operation
arrangements to produce and distribute two television
series (2022: two), twenty-seven films (2022: twenty-
eight). The Group has participating interests ranging
from 5% to 90% (2022: from 5% to 90%) in these joint
operations. As at 30 June 2023, the aggregate amounts
of assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements relating to the Group’s interests in

REMB|RME

BEXRBER

REBETLETAEEBLTHE - UR
ERBEITMPEREER (T ==
M) T EHEF(ZT__F : =
TN c REEBRZEAEEBPE
ﬁﬂ\%ﬁ5%§90%(:$::$ E%E
90%) 2 S EfEzw - RZT_=F A=
+H BREASERZEEEEHLH
ZHEmT  EREAMBHRETER

these joint operation arrangements are as follows: EENBERBNT
2023 2022
—g=-= —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Assets BE
Film rights and films in progress BRMUE R EEF 2
B 35,275 159,034
Film related deposits B ABE]© 39,169 25,059
Accounts receivable and other JFEE M5 B 5 B EL A JRE L
receivables IR 9,640 4,532
84,084 188,625
Liabilities =L
Accounts payable and other JE AT BR 3R B2 EL A JE A~
payables RIE 2,125 430
Deposits received BUET & 3,390 10,306
Contract liabilities aHatE 49,152 145,404
54,667 156,140
2023 2022
—EB=F —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Revenue e 136,117 8,535
Expenses EH (136,286) (7,522)
(Loss)/profit after income tax BRAT1S R (B518), & A (169) 1,013

ETREVLEBMBERRA —Z-=FFH
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210

17 INVENTORIES 17 78
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials RE 133 142
Finished goods LUK om 4,685 6,625
4,818 6,767
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as BRAEAY KT AGAEEAREERRNZ
an expense and included in consolidated statement of FEFBZMEAT
comprehensive income is as follows:
2023 2022
—ZE—-= —ZEF==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEZEEE 11,355 25,195
Write down of inventories FEMR 803 -
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & it & @ (B %)
(Note i) (385) (145)
11,773 25,050

Note i:  The amount resulted from the utilisation of obsolete
inventories that were written down in prior years.

Mizi: FAHESFREDBERNBEFEM

MHREFE -
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18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 18 FEWERFX
2023 2022
—==-= —=——
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T
Accounts receivable FEULBR 3R 49,158 24,528
Less: Impairment loss (Note 3.1(b)) & : J{EEE (BH7E3.1(b)) (1,187) (1,880)
Net(Notea) L FBMED) 47,971 .. 22,648
Accounts receivable — net FEWERR - B8 47,971 22,648

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate
their fair values.

Note:

a

The following is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable,
presented based on the invoice dates or date of revenue
recognition:

w

NTAREZAMNINEERAHE
5l FEUR AR SR BRIR AT

2023 2022

—E_=F —ET

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

1 to 90 days 12904 41,977 14,274
91 days to 180 days 91H=180H 984 2,546
Over 180 days 180H LA E 5,010 5,828
47,971 22,648

Sales of videogram products are with credit terms of 7
days to 60 days. Sales from film exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights are on open account terms.
Sales from trading and wholesaling of optical products
and watches products, and provisions of financial printing
services are with credit terms of 0-180 days. Sales to
retail customers are made in cash or via major credit cards.
The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products on credit terms are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit
risk arising from accounts receivable arising from other
business are set out in note 3.1(b).

=
E=3

FREEEBARATF

HESGEMZEREHRRTAE60AT
o EEHB  BRHREREZRE
ZHEBUREEAET - REEM
MEBREME SR ZHENNRE
HHEENRIRTS 2 EE R R0E180H
T - MEERPHEHURSTA
HEBETBEMRET - AEEDH
EBRERENEEMZERFEET
MAERFEERHENTRLEL - K
SEHERPETEMEENE -

FRAEBENEERRIAEMES
EENERRFEENEER RO E
— B BERMFES D)

—ECCEER
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19 LOANS RECEIVABLE 19 EWRERK
2023 2022
—E=-= —ZF-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHET
Loans to third parties BRYE=HZEK 914 1,374
Less: loss allowance W EIERE (317) (139)
597 1,235
The maturity profile of the loans RIEFEA 27 2 B E 3K
receivable, based on the BB R ¢
maturity date is as follows:
- Current - BN Ef 597 1,235

EREFNEEERS TN

The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is as

212

follows:

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

Unsecured loans KRR
Not past due I R 8 HA 414 1,174
31 days to 60 days past due #HI31HZ=60H = 100
91 days to 180 days past due #HI9THE180H = 100
Over 180 days past due #HEA180H KA E 500 -
914 1,374
Less: loss allowance W IR (317) (139)
597 1,235

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023
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19 LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Group has no secured
loan receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each year end
date is the carrying amount of the loans receivable.

All the loans receivable from third parties are entered
with contractual maturity within 1 to 2 years. The Group
seeks to maintain tight control over its loans receivable in
order to minimise credit risk by reviewing the borrowers’
or guarantors’ financial positions.

Loans receivable from third parties are bearing interest
rates of 10% per annum (2022: 10% per annum).

Interest income of approximately HK$68,000 (2022:
HK$86,000) has been recognised in ‘revenue’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

REMB|RME

FERE R @
R-ZE—=FR-_E-_—_F~A=+
B - 7 [ U R K o
NEERODRRANSERR BEKE

R AREE -

FrIEREE=FEWERE] & L5
BAT1E26R - AEER B BERN
BRAKBERANT MR - 1FHE
WE R EBZES - BB EERER

E&E -

RKAFE=ZHEWERILZ10% 2 FFI =R
B(ZZE—F  FFEI10%) °

B AH68,0008 (==

86,0008 TT) EMNGA EEHKEK 2
= IRRER

FREXCEBERLDR —T-=FFH§
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21

20 BANK BALANCES AND CASH — 20 SRITHEERKRIRE -
TRUST ACCOUNTS EFEERFP
The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with AEBERFBRIBTHRBILIELERS
licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising from NFEHEBEEKBREFESANTRLR
its normal course of business. These clients’ monies o ZEXFPHREGFBN — @A £
are maintained in one or more trust accounts. The ErEERP - AR A EBAYHEFHIAE
Group has recognised the corresponding amount in SBRIEIMAMAEEST - UGS HE
accounts payable to the respective customers under EPHENERERNREBEE -
current liabilities section as the Group is liable for any AEETSEARPREBEEEEGSE
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The Group %o ErRRPNRITERIBEBESFL
is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its HERPETESF AR (BEFPHRBE)R
own obligations. The trust accounts bank balances are BIFTPR RS2 EARE o
restricted and governed by the Securities and Futures
(Client Money) Rules under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERASEEY
2023 2022
—E=-= g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Cash at bank IRITFR 29,008 87,967
Cash in hand FHEBE S 114 114
Time deposits TEHRTF R 51,732 123,765
Total cash and bank balances RE MIBITH SRR 80,854 211,846
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 21

Included in the cash and bank balances as at 30
June 2023 was a total sum being the equivalent of
approximately HK$42,345,000 (2022: HK$181,268,000)
which was maintained in mainland China and is subject to
foreign exchange control regulations.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods depending on the cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

REMB|RME

HERBEEEY@®

NRZZE_=FXA=1+HZ2HE% &RIET
EERIERT AN E R 442,345,000 T

(ZZT - =% :181,268,000/ 7T) 1 44
o FERPBI AR - SINEE HHEG
FITRR o

FHRNRTT 2R S RE B RITERME
AEZFBNEGFE - REASEHR
TLHBH - MR FZEHER
I 8RR = R E #F AROR KRG E 2 A
B oo |RITHEBF I BEE R LR
EERIFZIRIT -

22 SHARE CAPITAL 2 BRA
2023 2022
—EC-=4F —E-F
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
BRHEE HE - RHOHE [EIE!
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
Fh FEx Fh% FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FR0.01B T2
HK$0.01 each B 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHE
Ordinary shares of FR0.01BTTZ
HK$0.01 each TR 906,632 9,066 906,632 9,066
There are no movements in the issued share capital of ARRBEZZT_ZFR-_ZE-__FX
the Company during the years ended 30 June 2023 and A=+ HBIEFEZEBITRAMEE
2022. g o
BEFREVEBBERAR —T=FFH
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23

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme adopted
on 2 December 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the
share option schemes include the Company's directors,
including non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group or any invested entity, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group or any invested entity, customers
of the Group or any invested entity, shareholders of the
Group or any invested entity, holders of securities of
the Group or any invested entity and persons or entities
providing research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any invested entity. According to
the provision of the Share Option Scheme, share options
granted during the term of the Share Option Scheme
and remaining unexercised immediately prior to the end
thereof shall continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of grant notwithstanding the expiry of
the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company and is
settled in gross shares.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent
to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme unless
approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. The maximum number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant in the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

23

B

RABEER_TE—=F+_A=ZAK
ME R RT B (BB A ERTEI)) - A
HASEEBEEEHERNEGERZ
HEREEEREE - BRIESSIZA
BRLEEBRERRAREE(BIEIENTT
) AEENTANREER 2 EME
B AEESTMEETEE ZEMEMR
EHEER  AEERTARETEEZR
FAEERTMEEERZBRE - &
EEATMREEEZEHFFEARM
AEBMEMKEERIREMRE - A
SREMBM B EMATREE - B
BB AT &) 2 1630 - BIE R AR A AT 3
B - REERERT S ERR T AR ERE
ERAHARERATERR T M AR ETFE B
ERBER DGR EEETE - B
EBITrE s - BREREIEAE
iEA BN B ERI0OFEAR - BHE
RIEE TIRHEARIRERARRZEB®
fE I AP D EHE -

BERABBREMEEFI0%Z LR
Sh o IRIBEREST S DB E B TR
B EREEITERA] TEITZRMG
e B EE R ERBRETSIE AR
RAIBEITROEE 210%  RER12
EABER  RTEBRETEEER
2BEAZERERBEETE  BFEX
M ARITE 2 BRI ) 1T T 2 B 1T Kt
FEROIZEOHESHE  TEBBEARQ
RIBEITERMNZ1% - LE—FHRHB
B REE 7 B EECHBRRNRER
& o
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Under the Share Option Scheme, a share option granted
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their associates are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 is
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share
Option Scheme may be accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determined by the directors,
save that such period shall not be more than 10 years
from the dates of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
subject to the provisions for early termination set out in
the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise determined
by the directors at their sole discretion, there is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme is determined by the directors,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There are no share options outstanding during the years
ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

23

REMB|RME

BB IR HE ()
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24  SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND
ACCUMULATED LOSSES

24 BDia

g - HftfE AR

2itEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

Group (a) AN&EHE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ERAEEARE
Other reserves
Effafe
Reserves
Share arisingon Reorganisation Capital ~ Translation ~ Contributed Accumulated
Premium  consolidation reserve reserve reserve surplus  Sub-total losses Total
(Note i) (Note i) (Notev) (Note ii) (Note iv)
GREE
RRE  FERE EdfG  ERBE  EXNBE  RAER Mt RitEE by
(M) (H3Eii) (v (HeEii) (Mrstiv)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T T Tk T T TRt TEn T L
At1July 2021 RZFZ-5tf-R 35,013 LAl 60,577 1,570 2.14) 485360 546,264 (82,033 499,244
Currency translation difference BEREEE - - - - (123) - (123) - (123)
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (76552 (76,552)
At30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RIBZZERAZHER
“ERCCELA-A 35,013 871 60,677 1,570 2,237) 485,360 546,141 (168,685 422,569
Currency translation difference BRARERE - - - - (168) - (168) - (168)
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (92,757) (92,757
At 30 June 2023 RZEZZERAZTR 35,013 871 60,677 1,570 (2,408) 485,360 545973 (261342 329,644
Company (b) 7]
Other reserves
EfbifE
Share  Contributed Reorganisation Accumulated
Premium Surplus reserve Sub-total losses Total
R &E E4ER EQfE it itEE &3t
(Note ) (Note iv) (Note ii)
(M) (Hf&tiv) (Kt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL THL T AL T T
At 1 July 2021 RZEZ-£+A-H 35,013 537,212 60,577 597,789 (309,160) 323,642
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (20,495) 20,495)
At30June 2022and 1July 2022 HWZFZZERA=TAR
“Z-"#+f-A 35,013 537,212 60,577 597,789 (329,655) 303,147
Loss for the year ENER - - - - 2,202) 2,202)
At 30 June 2023 RZEZ=FxA=1H 35,013 537,212 60,577 597,789 (331,857) 300,945
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24  SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND
ACCUMULATED LOSSES (continued)

(c)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Nature and purposes of the reserves

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981. The share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
owners of the Company in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

Reorganisation reserve

The reorganisation reserve of the Group
represents the reduction in share capital
of the Company pursuant to 2015
Capital Reorganisation and 2016 Capital
Reorganisation.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2.5.

Contributed surplus
The Group

The contributed surplus of the Group
represents (i) the amount transferred from
the share premium of HK$893,345,000 as
approved by the shareholders at the special
general meeting on 17 September 2018, less
(ii) the distribution of special dividends of
HK$407,985,000 during the year ended 30
June 2019.

REMB|RME

24 BR1DmE - HittEER
ZitEiE@®

(c) REHEz2MENMAR
(i) MBRORE
B aER2ERNTASR
E—NN\—FREEFL01E
FIiEE - RRRZ2BmEE
BR AT LA R AT B 5 VIR F
KRBEAA °

EAMRE

AEBEZEARBRERE =
T-AFRAEEAR T —
NERAEAERARFZ
PR o

(ii)

B 5 R
EXFEHeERmeRE g
EBMBRREEZIELZE
B o & RHBIREM 2. 6PTH
BERREIE -

(iii)

L

S BBt

rEEF
KEBZEHABHE()RE
R-ZE—NFLA+EBZ
EREFRI A EHEERE
%15 % {8 893,345,000/ 7T 2
&8 RHNEZE=_F—IF
NAZTBIEFEZERR
B 5ik407,985,0007 7T °

(iv)

\
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24  SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND
ACCUMULATED LOSSES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purposes of the reserves (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Contributed surplus (Continued
The Company

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange for the issued shares of Universe
Films (Holdings) Limited and the value of net
assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired
on 28 June 1999. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus
shall not be distributed to the shareholders
if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

()  the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company's
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

At Group level, the above contributed surplus
is reclassified into its components of reserves
of the underlying subsidiaries.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the fair value of consideration
received and the proportion of the carrying
amount of the subsidiaries’ net assets/
liabilities attributable to the partial disposals of
ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in a loss of control.

24 R0
?J%E@

a2 EE M A& )

(c)
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REMB|RME

25 LEASE LIABILITIES 25 HESRE
The following table shows the remaining contractual TERETARGARTEEHEARZ
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the Fsha LR HIER

reporting period:

2023 2022
—EC-=E —T-CfF
Present Total Present Total
value of the minimum  value of the minimum
minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments payments payments
B BEHE I REME

Rz BE ARBE RZRE [BESEE
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FET FET FHET
Within 1 year TEA 6,767 ... 1214 .. 7800 ... 8,083
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ —FELMER 2,814 2,964 5,458 5,546
After 2 years but within 5 years MEERAER 843 878 - -
3,657 3,842 5,458 5,546
10,424 11,116 13,258 13,629
Less: total future interest o RERFERY
expenses Fke (692) (371)
Present value of lease liabilites TEAEZIEE 10,424 13,258
26 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 26 FE(TERRX
2023 2022
—_E—-= —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Accounts payable FEATERFK 16,318 24,829

BrRE L EEERAT —Bo=FER 221
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26

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (continued)

Accounts payable amounting to Nil (2022: HK$125,000)
as at 30 June 2023 were payable to clients in respect of
trust and segregated bank balances received and held for
clients in the ordinary course of conducting the regulated
activities. However, the Group does not have a currently
enforceable right to offset these payables with the
deposits placed.

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis of
the accounts payable arising from other businesses,
presented based on invoice date is as follows:

26

FEASBRF @)

RENTZHEENHFTEBBRETAR
PRB EFE 2B MBI RITE R
ms R-_E-_=F~A=t+BEH
FEFPZENERAT(ZE=_Z
125,000/870) © AT + AN BN & LAFT
FERza] e MIBZSENFIB 2B
CRBINITHE ©

R-ZB-=FER-_E-_—FA=+
B REZHHENZ2EMESREELY
JER R ZBREE DT ¢

2023 2022

—E-=F —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
1 to 90 days 1290H 10,179 5,723
91 days to 180 days 91HZ=E180H 1,182 494
Over 180 days 180H A E 4,957 18,612
16,318 24,829

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

P B A BR BRI — F A E R R
RWARBIRBEKIERE -
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27 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 27

REMB|RME

H AR 7R KBRS

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Amounts due to film operators B 2B EUA 41,073 58,825
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAT IEE A% hE 2 B (Y 7 a)

interests (note a) 1,750 1,750

Accruals for employee benefits BEFZMETER 5,892 2,567

Other accruals and other payables EMEsr B A R E A ERS
A 23,347 29,295
72,062 92,437

Note a:

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
has no fixed repayment terms.

fiista : FIBREEM - TR RERETE

28 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 28 ERNEEREGHNER
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets a) BHEE
2023 2022
—E-=F B4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Contract assets EHEE
Arising from performance B B 4% BN il R 75
under financial printing BHEE
service 1,887 948

(i)

Typical payment terms which impact on the
amount of contract assets recognised are as
follows:

a  Financial printing services

The Group's financial printing services
include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the
services period once milestones are
reached.

=
E=3

() HEAHWEERRBTLBEZ—
RRASSRIEFRIA T -

a  BTEEENmIARFS

AR ER 18 10 B AR ENL R AR 75
BR-BEEIRERR
AT 2R MRS B 0
BAT RN RS -
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28 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Contract liabilities

2023 2022
—_E-= —EF-=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B RE FET FiET
Contract liabilities EHEE
Deposits received for MRBEPEE i(a)
licensing of film right B REDI
from customers BEl & 500,211 491,069
Receipts in advance of MEANEETIE i(b)
artist management WEUR B & P
work from customers 2R 297 296
Deposits received for BRI TELIAR R i(d)
walk-in customers for EmEFWNE €
optical products 337 252
500,845 491,617

Notes:

G

(i) Typical payment terms which impact on the amount (i)
of contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

a Licensing of film rights

224

The Group received a deposit from, customers
before the delivery of the pre-recorded audio
visual products and the materials for video
features. It was recognised as contract
liabilities until the Group performs under the
contract.

b Artist management services

The Group received a deposit from, customers
in respect of the artist entertainment job. It
was recognised as contract liabilities until
the Group completes its artist management
service, which is when the artist completed
the entertainment job.
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REMB|RME

28 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 28 EREEREGNERE®

LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Contract liabilities (Continued) b) &4aEm®m
Notes: (Continued) BEE © ()

c Wholesale of watches c SEERALE

The Group received deposits from its
wholesale customer for the sale of watches.
It was recognised a contract liability until it is
utilised. The amount was utilised when the
sales is completed, which is when watches
are delivered.

d Sale of optical products

The Group received deposits from walk-in
customer for purchase of optical products.
There were recognised as contract liabilities
until it is utilised. The amount is utilised when
the customer picks up the optical products
and pays the remaining balance for the sale

AEERAILBEEFHE
BERWEGT® - HREH
REBEIASANEE - &
HETK (BIE EERER
B RIEMEBEEE
A e

RIEEMIAE

REERBERREMMA
REFEHNEPWER & ©
HR BB ARERRE L
BE - EEPHUSREE
LYSERSR L RN T
B AERESREEA -

transaction.

Movement in contract liabilities BHBEZE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At the beginning of the year NG 491,617 183,863
Decrease in contract liabilities as FARAERLBZER 2
a result of being recognised as EHEERD
revenue during the year (112,999) (98,259)
Increase in contract liabilities as TEWRIBER 2 ANEE
a result of billing in advance 0 122,227 406,013
At the end of the year RER 500,845 491,617

RZE_=ZFA=Z+H " BFR
—FRERBRAZERT SN A
500,845,000 (=% ==
491,617,0005 7T) o

As at 30 June 2023, approximately HK$500,845,000
of deposits received are expected to be recognised as
income within one year (2022: HK$491,617,000).
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29 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 29 BRIGAIEIE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) B AR TENE, S GEA) TH &8
the following: BISH -
2023 2022
—E=-= - —F
Total Total
et 45T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
(a) Staff costs: (a) BIRA:
Salaries, allowances, and other e FMREMER
benefits including directors’ (BEESEME
emoluments (Note 32) (FF5E£32)) 53,938 51,581
Contributions to defined contribution TEREEFUR NGB R
retirement plans 2,824 2,600
56,762 54,181
(b) Other items: (b) H#EAE :
Auditor’s remuneration % E AN B &
- audit service - ZEURT 1,545 1,500
- other service - HAb AR 35 260
1,580 1,760
Amortisation By
= film rights (Note 9) - B (BT 5E9) 121,945 29,999
- other intangible assets (Note 8) - Hhimp A E (sEs) 138 149
Impairment loss of film rights and BoE REERER
films in progress (Note 9) BB EE (F13E9) 51,422 27,543
Impairment loss of (Note 6) B8 (H3E6)
- property, plant and equipment - HERRE - 2,172
- right-of-use assets -FAEEE - 6,874
Depreciation charge (Note 6) wEER e
- property, plant and equipment - HERRE 1,350 1,426
- right-of-use assets -FREEE 4,175 9,268
(Gain)/loss on cancellation of tenancy agreement UK E @z (k) /B8 - (421)
Net foreign exchange losses HNEBIBIFRE 8,693 1,421
Variable lease payments not included WEtAHEAENEY
in the measurement of lease Al ST E S R (HEE6)
liabilities (Note 6) 657 234
Expense relating to short-term leases (Note 6) H15g BAMA & AE R 2 FA =2 (B 3E6) 820 1,512
Expense relating to leases of low MEEEEEHRERE
value assets (Note 6) 53 (B 7E6) 223 182
Cost of inventories (Note 17) FERAEE7) 11,773 25,050
Gross rental income from investment REMERS WA LLTER
properties less direct outgoings of HE R 233,00087C
HK$233,000 (2022: HK$281,000) (===
281,000/ 7T) 805 861
Written off of property, plant and MBI - BRERE
equipment (Note 6) (Bit3x6) = 339
(c) Finance costs: (c) BAFERLA :
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 379 515
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30 CHANGE IN EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS N EHEEFEZEE
During the year, the following (losses)/gains in relation FR-UTEBHERESHEE 2 (&
to impaired financial assets were recognised in the B)WER RS 2R RER -
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
2023 2022
—E=HF —E-
Total Total
st 45T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
(Change for)/write-back of TR EREERE
expected credit losses allowances, net (2%) EEFE
— Accounts receivable - EUBR R (197) 187
- Loans receivable - FEIRE R (178) 77
- Other receivables - H ity fE U GRIA (443) 24
(818) 288
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 31 EERIKEA
Defined contribution retirement plan TE R FURIRETE
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme N E AR B G AR e R B K
("the MPF scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory fy JHEE/;@ET%MWH%&T&\E%E’\ME
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees By —EaHEATEeE([RaES
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong TED - ?ﬁ%’i\ﬁrﬂﬁ—ﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁ%
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined ABERERETURAGTE - RIZARE
contribution retirement plan administered by independent 8 EXREEESBAEZEEMN
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its U ABLS%METEIHR - 55 HIE
employees are each required to make contributions to the RAUL A 30,0008 7T o 5T &I BN 55
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject &= ©
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are AEERFPEMMBAFTEEHYNZHEA
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme R BT AR AL B9 B R B B AR R AR A ET
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries gl ZEMBARALRFENRTE D
are required to contribute a specified percentage of tEARZ R KR FIFT MA@ F o
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the REBHZRARBHENE-FEER
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to TEL AR TE MR -
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.
BEFREVEBERAR —T=FF#H
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32 =SS

RIBEE B (R ARG 5 383(1) k(AT
(BREENRERDRINDE — O BRE
MEZEMmT

32 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

228

Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2023

BE-_ZE-_=FXA=1+HLEE

Salary,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits scheme
Name of Directors Fees inkind contributions Total
E2 =1 RIK
EEpg e RENFG AT @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FH7 FHT FHT FH7%
Chairman and IEE
executive director HTEFE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil M/ NR R A = 5,850 18 5,868
Executive director HITEF
Mr. Lam Kit Sun M % E = 1,539 18 1,557
Independent non- BUIHHT
executive directors EZ
Mr. Lam Chi Keung (note (a)) e aE () 100 = = 100
Mr. Choi Wing Koon FokBEE 130 = = 130
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing HEgns 130 = = 130
Ms. Pong Suet Hing (note (b)) Bt (D) 30 = = 30
390 7,389 36 7,815
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32 DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS (continued) 32 EEMMEw
For the year ended 30 June 2022 HEZZ-_—_FA=THILFE
Salary,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits scheme
Name of Directors Fees inkind  contributions Total
e 2N BRI
EENF e LENFIE HEGS Bar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TET
Chairman and FEF
executive director HTEFE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil NS A& - 5,850 18 5,868
Executive director HITEF
Mr. Lam Kit Sun MRS - 1,476 18 1,494
Independent non- BUIEHT
executive directors EZ
Mr. Lam Chi Keung WEREE 130 - - 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 2 i 130 - - 130
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing HRgrs 130 - - 130
390 7,326 36 7,752
Note: MI5E
(a)  Resigned on 8 March 2023 (a) RZE-_=F=ZAN\B&HET
(b)  Appointed on 8 March 2023 (b)) MZE-_=F=ZAN\HEZT
During the vyear, no director of the Company has waived AAmESEFAMENRETMMNE - M
any emoluments and no emoluments were paid or 762 [ 1 R ) () 2 B S s RE TR
payable by the Group to any of the directors as an e (EAESMARNEBHIMARE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as B 5 1 SR B S B B A (E o

compensation for loss of office.
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33

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 3B EmEFHATLT
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments payable to the five (2022: five) RERNENAEEREL(ZCZE-_—_F ' 1
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group HEEFAT(BEMEZES) (ZE=
(included two Directors) (2022: two) during the year are ZFECMB)ZMENT
as follows:
2023 2022
—_EB—= —=E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Salaries and other emoluments e REMME 13,347 12,837
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRFTEIH IR 90 90
13,437 12,927

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

The emoluments of the five (2022: five) individuals with
the highest emoluments (including directors) are within
the following bands:

EMEETIISBERN

FEZ(ZE_ZF  AR)EaHFALT(E
EER)ZHMEETYEENA -

2023 2022
—E_=HF —E -
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
AE ANER
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 =T E1,000,0007 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8 TE
1,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 82
2,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 T
3,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 L=
4,000,000 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 =
6,000,000/ 7T 1 1
5 5
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34 OTHER INCOME 34 HAUgA
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-—

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Supermarket coupon sales BhEHFIEE 32 21
Sponsorship income EEHRA 1,770 -
Rental income HEBA 286 243
Cash Distribution Benik 205 -
Rental concession HeE=E 639 109
Screening income A=A 4 147

Dividend income from financial ERBEREAFEAR

assets at fair value through profit ZEMEEIRE

or loss WA 154 1,621
Government subsidy BT EL 424 1,362
Others HAh 161 100
3,675 3,603

ETREVLEBMBERRA —Z-=FFH
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35 OTHER LOSSES —NET 35 HAthE51E — F58
2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
Total Total
st @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - 23 NERME
plant and equipment 2 (B8 W (7) 30
Loss on write-off of property, MEEYIE - HER
plant and equipment KB EE - (339)
Gain on cancellation of tenancy OB EWZ 2 e
agreement - 421
Waiver of accounts payables FA R ETER X 71 -
Waiver of other payables FA G H 4th FE A SR IE 213 111
Provision for doubtful debt RERE - (24)
Net foreign exchange loss [ B BT (8,693) (1,421)
Amortisation of deferred day one ROTESHBTAY
gain in respect of derivative TEAE E A U e 1 8
financial instruments - 2,788
Gain on disposal of unlisted investment &I FHIREES
funds Z W = 163
Impairment loss on amounts due from JEUW AR IF4RA AR
deconsolidated subsidiaries (note a) B ARRIEL
BERRE (M iTa) - (10,649)
Impairment loss for advance to artiste  Z ABFBAEKE (448)
Others HAh 4 (62)
(8,860) (8,982)
Note a: The amount of impairment loss on amounts due Mizka: MEURIEGRAE ABRENBRRZKE
from deconsolidated subsidiaries of approximately ZBEEE £ 5E4)10,649,0007% 7T
HK$10,649,000 was related to the deconsolidation of MEE_T__FA=THIEF
subsidiaries during the year ended 30 June 2022 (Note ERILGEAARWEB R B
38). 5+38) ©
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FINANCE INCOME

36 REWA

2023 2022
—=E-= —E-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHET
Bank interest income RITHEHA 1,903 2,030
Other interest income H i F B HA 326 50
Finance income included FFALGREEZEREERA
in consolidated statement of 2 BN
comprehensive income 2,229 2,080
Loan interest income (included BHFREWAGEFA
in total revenue in consolidated RAEEERERAZ
statement of comprehensive @)
income) 68 86
Total interest income B A 4858 2,297 2,166

ETREVLEBMBERRA —Z-=FFH
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37

(a)

INCOME TAX CREDIT 37 Fif5HiiIER
Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) #rEE2EWEKRAZ
comprehensive income PS5
2023 2022
—E-= —=E-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current tax BIEARR I8
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENGEM
Over-provision for FNBEREE
the year - (3,648)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI S
Over-provision for the year FRBREEE (445) (986)
PRC withholding tax BRI
Charge for the year FRZH - 1,313
Over-provision for the year FRBREEE (1,949) (320)
Deferred tax RERIE
Origination and reversal of RN
temporary differences EERED (56) 6
Income tax (credit) PSR (%) (2,450) (3,635)

The provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profits for the year.

The provision of PRC Enterprise Income Tax is
calculated at 25% (2022: 25%) of the estimated
taxable profits for the year.

PRC withholding income tax of 10% (2022:
10%) shall be levied on the gross income for film
distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-
licensing of film rights derived from the PRC.

No provision for profits tax in Bermuda and the
British Virgin Islands has been made as the Group
has no income or profit assessable for tax in these
jurisdictions for the years ended 30 June 2023 and
2022, respectively.
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37 INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 31 FEREZ@®
(b)  Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting (b) BEEeRRERAHEHE &S
loss at the applicable tax rates: B8 2 $I8R
2023 2022
—E-= —ZE=-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss before taxation bR T Al ES 18 (95,855) (82,556)
Tax calculated at domestic tax £ &8 BRI A E T
rates applicable to profits S EREAN
or losses in the respective BT R EW
countries 1A (15,816) (13,567)
Over provision in respect of BEFERERE
prior years (125) (4,634)
Income not subject to tax EARM WA (554) (4,355)
Expenses not deductible for A2 B R
tax purpose 1,960 2,134
Tax effect of deductible temporary — RFER A O & H—r 14
difference not recognised ERCHBTE 122 1,425
Utilisation of previously )AL R ARTER 2 TR
unrecognised tax losses =] (84) (11)
Tax losses not recognised RIER HIARE 14,313 14,5633
PRC withholding tax R AR (1,949) 993
Others HAh (317) (153)
Income tax (credit) Frigtn (%) (2,450) (3,635)

BFREVCEBEBRRA —T=FFR
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38 DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Reference to the announcement of the Company dated
on 4 January 2022, the Company announced that after
due and careful consideration, the shareholders of Fine
Ocean Limited (“Fine Ocean”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company resolved that Fine
Ocean could not, by reason of its liabilities, continue its
business, and that it should be wound up.

Fine Ocean was placed into creditors’ voluntary
liquidation because of its insolvency. The Board believes
that the winding-up of Fine Ocean is in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole because
the Group may be able to reduce its losses in connection
with Fine Ocean as well as the Group should be able to
reallocate management resources to develop its existing
business.

Accordingly, on 4 January 2022, a special resolution was
duly passed by the shareholders of Fine Ocean to wind
up Fine Ocean by way of creditors’ voluntary liquidation
pursuant to section 228(1)(b) of the Companies (Winding
Up & Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap 32). The
Group deemed to loss of control of Fine Ocean on 31

38
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Bt X A& LR S ABR

ZRAMANFRBPA-TS_—_F— AKX
Bz KRRBEM  BHERRA
(g8l ARFIMMEIEZERB A
AMRELCBRBAE  BAFHAE
BEMEBEEERE  WERETER -

BHREHEEMETERASRS
B-FF29RH ARAKEARLH
RgBmAZNER LA KEEER
EFOEERBES - RUL/BEBRT
EARTRERROERRENS -

At - RZZE-_—_F—AWNH BB
REXNBBEIRAZER REF32E
CRRIOB B R EE RSO EB1) 85228(1)
bEEREEABBEREEMEE -
REBBERAR-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+
—BkELFHAEHRE -

December 2021.

As at

31 December

2021

R=-B=—F

+=—HA=+—8H

HK$'000

Net liabilities of subsidiaries deconsolidated E&ILESARKBARZEERE FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - A RRE 540
Trade receivables 2 5 IR K 12
Other receivables Ho b e W 5k IE 1,224
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHER (28)
Accounts payables FETER X (5,847)
Other payables* H b T 5RIE > (11,810)
Contract liabilities BHEaE (60)
Lease liabilities HERE (3,736)
(19,705)

Release of non-controlling interests FRbR FEIE IR A 805
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries B A EER I EERE AR (18,900)

HA R FIAF - 10,649,000/ TTH)
SRR S B R F A HEES5)

* Included in the other payables, the amount of *
approximately HK$10,649,000 was the amount due to
group companies (Note 35).
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39 LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic loss per ordinary share is calculated by
dividing the loss attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated

REMB|RME

39 BREE

(a) EAK

FREBRENERIIZANRRHE
ﬁ/\ﬂ’ﬁﬁ@ﬂ@ﬁ%l«xiﬁqaﬁéﬂa
Bz IR AT 5 At &

as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= g
Loss attributable to owners KRBHEAE AE(
of the Company (HK$'000) EE(FH&T) (92,757) (76,552)
Weighted average number of BT SRR 2 Nk
ordinary shares in issue T8 906,632,276 906,632,276
Basic loss per ordinary L BRERERE
share (HK$) (BT) (0.1023) (0.0844)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(Basic)

BERMEFHIE(ER)

2023 2022
—=E_= —E -

Issued ordinary shares at the RET RFRBET

beginning and the end of the year =gl

906,632,276 906,632,276

(b) Diluted

The diluted loss per share is the same as the basic
loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2023
(2022: same) as there is no potential dilutive share
issued during the year.

40 DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2023 (2022: Nil).

40

o]

FHR

(b) #E
He—_Z-_=F"A=1+HLF
- BREEEEREBRALNERE
HBR(ZZE2Z==4 : HRE) + HTAF
WL 48 B BT B EIRG -

iR B
EEeTERREHE_ZS ::E/‘TH
—TREFEZRERE(ZE =
/) o
SY(EBBRAT —T_ZFER
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41 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 41 HihREREER
(a) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash (a) mBAERALEELECReY
generated from operations: Bk
2023 2022
—B-= —ECF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Loss before taxation for the year FRZBRIAIEGE (95,855) (82,556)
Adjustments for: R THSIREHAE
- Depreciation of property, plant -ME - MERREZ
and equipment (Note 6) & (fi5E6) 5,525 10,694
- Amortisation of film rights - BRI 2 B E
(Note 9) (B 5E9) 121,945 29,999
- Amortisation of other intangible - HivBREEZ #H
assets (Note 8) (K7x8) 138 149
- Amortisation of deferred day -RTEERMIAZIR
one gain in respect of derivative JuR=g=pirgss: £
financial instruments - (2,788)
~ Gain on disposal of unlisted -HEFLITREAS
investment funds ol g = (163)
— Fair value change of trading -RSBEHERNTFEEZDY
securities 813 7,916
- Impairment losses of property, - - MR RRE
plant and equipment (including (BEEREEE 2
right-of-use assets) (Note 6) B E1E (FT5E6) = 9,046
— Loss on write-off of property, Rk /E R T YO EE i
plant and equipment (Note 6) i< 18 (M1 5Ee) = 339
- Gain on cancellation of -BUBHE =
tenancy agreement e - (421)
- Impairment losses of film rights - BERENEEFRE
and films in progress (Note 9) EZREFE
GER) 51,422 27,543
- Impairment loss on advance to - B ABFBESE
artiste (Note 35) (P 5E35) 448 -
- Change in expected credit loss -BHEEBEREY
(Note 30) (f5E30) 818 (288)
~ Loss/(gain) on disposal of - HEWE - BERF
property, plant and equipment 2 E1E, (as)
(Note 3b) (BMF5E35) 7 (30)
- Write down of inventories - FEMUR (F5E17)
(Note 17) 803 -
- Reversal of write-down of - FEMREE
inventories (Note 17) (BFs%17) (385) (145)
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41 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 41

(a) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash

HMREREER @)

REMB|RME

(a) mEBMEEEYEEEIRETY
generated from operations: (Continued) & (&)
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
- Finance income (Note 36) - B RS A (K 5236) (2,229) (2,080)
- Finance costs (Note 29(c)) — BA R A A (B4 3E29(c) 379 515
~ Waiver of trade payables -8 S ENFIE
(Note 35) (F7E35) (71) -
— Waiver of other payables — AR AL N IR
(Note 35) (PfF5£35) (213) (111)
- Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) -EH &R () F
# 1,866 (407)
- Impairment loss on amounts - BRI A AR
due from deconsolidated MIB R RIFIA R
subsidiaries (Note 35) B8 (fI5E35) = 10,649
- Gain on deconsolidation of - B RRKIEGEA
subsidiaries (Note 38) SRz (M95E38) - (18,900)
Change in working capital: EEECEE
- Inventories -FE 1,531 3,221
— Accounts receivable - FEYAR K (25,520) 86,392
~ Loans receivable - EIER 460 260
- Deposits paid, prepayments and -BfTETE - FENAFUE
other receivables K E A FE W RIE (24,605) (21)
- Accounts payable - TR (8,440) (19,521)
— Other payables and accrued — E M0 FRIE N AT
charges o (20,505) (142,652)
- Deposits received -2lET2 (845) 9,354
- Contract assets -BHEE (939) (525)
- Contract liabilities -GHaE 9,228 307,814
- Financial assets at fair value - FREREAFEA
through profit or loss RZeomERE 5,376 61,416
- Bank balances and cash trust - IRITHARNRIREEFT
accounts &P 125 660
Cash generated from operations LEBEEAZRS 21,277 295,359
Tax paid [ el (2,223) (22,509)
Net cash generated from operating & EEBELS 7 FIRE
activities 19,054 272,850

EFRECEBERDR —T-=FFH
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41 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continues) 41 HAttIE & REE R @

(a) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash (a) mEBESREELEEE R YH
generated from operations: (Continued) ik (8
2023 2022
—E-=& —T-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
a. Disposal of property, plant and a. HEWE BERRE
equipment
Carrying amount (Note 6) A 6) 177 -
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of HEME - WRREEL
property, plant and equipment (E518) /W%
(Note 35) (Pl 3%35) (7) 30
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  #ERDE
plant and equipment FT{SE0R 170 30
b. Lease liabilities b. HEAEE
At the end of the year REXR 10,424 13,258
Add: Exchange difference meEREE 151 1,088
Other payable H A R 343 -
Cancellation of tenancy BB ERZ
agreement - 2,500
Deconsolidation of MBARKIELESA
subsidiaries N = 3,736
Less: Increase in lease liabilities B FRRIHEE
from entering into new HEEEEM
leases during the year (6,160) (8,478)
Less: At the beginning of the year A READ (13,258) (21,434)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BERNHEEREZELRES (8,500) (9,330)
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REMB|RME

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continuwed) 41 EMIREREELR @)
(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) mEFEHELEZEBEZEE:
activities:
Lease
liabilities Total
HEAE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
ALY July 2021 N BT REATR 21434 L 21,434,
Capital element of lease rentals BENHEERE 2 EAEH S
paid (9,330) (9,330)
Interest element of lease rentals BENHEERE 2R EHD
paid (515) (515)
Total changes from financing cash &R &R E 2 EB)4E5E
flows (9,845) (9,845)
Other changes: H i B
Increase in lease liabilities from FREILFHECHE
entering into new leases during =REe il
the year 8,478 8,478
Decrease due to deconsolidation of FE M B A AR IHERA AR
subsidiaries /;aw\ (3,736) (3,736)
Cancellation of tenancy agreement BUHT E 1% (2,500) (2,500)
Interest expenses FIERX 515 515
Exchange difference VE R ZERE (1,088) (1,088)
Total other changes HEEB) e 1,669 1,669
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 HR-Z-—FXxA=+H
RZFE-—F+H—H 13,258 13,258
Capital element of lease rentals BNHEERE 2ELRIT S
paid (8,500) (8,500)
Interest element of lease rentals BENEEReZFBIHS
paid (379) (379)
Total changes from financing cash &R &R E 2 ZE1EEE
flows (8,879) (8,879)
Other changes: HEmEs) :
Increase in lease liabilities from FAFIZHHEEZHE
entering into new leases during B EE 0
the year 6,160 6,160
Interest expenses FERX 379 379
Other payables E R 5RIE (343) (343)
Exchange difference PE N Z (151) (151)
At 30 June 2023 R-ZZE_=FA=1H 10,424 10,424

EFR

SY(EBBRAT —T_ZFER
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41

Total cash outflow for leases: (c)

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for
leases comprise the following:

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 41 HAREREE R @

2023 2022

—E-=F T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Within operating cash flows LEREREN 1,700 1,928
Within financing cash flows MERESREN 8,879 9,845
10,579 11,773

These amounts relate to the following:

=1l

2ESHENTRIAFR

2023 2022
—EB=F —E -
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Lease rentals paid EHERS 10,579 11,773
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42 PENDING LITIGATIONS

(a)

A court action was commenced in the Court of First
Instance of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region on 17 April 2002 by The Star Overseas
Limited (“Star"”), an independent third party, against
Universe Entertainment Limited (“UEL"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Under the above action, Star alleged that a sum
of US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) was
payable by UEL to Star as its share of the revenue
of the movie entitled “Shaolin Soccer” (the
“Movie").

Pursuant to an Order (the “Order”) made by the
High Court on 21 February 2003, UEL was ordered
and had paid to Star a sum of HK$5,495,700, being
part of the license fee of the Movie received by
UEL from Miramax Films (being the licensee of the
Movie) and which was also part of the sum claimed
by Star. Pursuant to the Order, UEL is also liable
to pay Star interest in the sum of HK$350,905 and
some of the costs of the application leading to the
making of the Order, all of which have been settled.
As the Order has not disposed of all the claims of
US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) by Star,
UEL is entitled to continue to defend the claim by
Star for recovering the remaining balance in the
sum of approximately HK$1,804,099 (HK$7,299,799
less HK$5,495,700).

On 30 April 2002, UEL claimed against Star for the
latter's wrongful exploitation of certain rights in the
Movie co-owned by both parties. UEL claimed to
recover all losses and damages suffered by UEL as
a result of the wrongful exploitation.

REMB|RME

42 FRREFEA

(a)

R-ZEZE_FMA+LR BY
F=TERBINERAR(ERE]
HARFR—HREZENBARE
FREFR AR EFREDNE
PR R TBUR R AR EETR R — TR AR

A e

BIE LR EREBREFR
L HE Y 4935,872% L (HE
77,299,799 L) 8% - ERD =
—MEAIIDMEKIZEF(ZE
)z W -

BESSEEIRN_-_ZET=F_A
—t+t—HBEBEZES(ZESD
EFREEFFSRERERB I
5,495,700/ T4 %E - Bl R FIR 4
T EZ MEMiramax Films (Bl
B REREA) I FH DR
BEREBREZHOTE - RIE
ZIES  BEFIRET AR EBE
42%8350,9058 L2 F| B R BB 1E
HZESHEIER  FHER
BHESXHN BRZESTETS
iR 2 18 B8 935,872 T (HE R
7,299,799 L) 2 B R1E » tHE
FIRGEHREEHEBNPRET
JuiE - LA B8R EEAD1,804,099/8
7t (BN7,299,7997% LI 5,495,700
HBIT) ©

RZZEZ_FMA=1H EFKR
LAEBRIRE  BRETEH
ERBNESTHREE 2ZEF

ZETERN - R FREBFTEZT
EEAENMCERE 2 %

KBE -

EFRECEBERDR —T-=FFH
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42 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(a)

(Continued)

On 9 September 2002, Universe Laser & Video
Co. Limited ("ULV"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, claimed against Star for
the latter’'s infringement of the licensed rights in
the Movie held by ULV. ULV claimed to recover all
losses and damages suffered by ULV as a result of
the said infringement.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the claim against UEL. The
Board is of the opinion that the outcome of the
said claim made against UEL will have no material
financial impact to the Group for the year ended 30
June 2023 and 2022.

On 1 September 2008, Koninklijke Philips
Electronics N.V. ("KPE") claimed against among
other persons, the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the Directors), being three
of the defendants named therein, in respect of
damages arising from alleged infringement of the
patents regarding Video Compact Disc owned by
KPE.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim made against
the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.
The Board is of the opinion that the outflow of
economic benefits cannot be reliably estimated and
accordingly no provision for any liability that may
result has been made in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 and
2022.

42 FRIRFFFA@

(a)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2023

(&)

RZZFZ_FNAANE > ARFIZ
—HRZR2EMNB AR R THES
FARNR((ETES DEELE
RILETEG AL BRI
RFmAERELRE - EFESE
AE R RETAMSERE 2 —
DBRENEBE -

RiBEEBEBCER - REEERTEA
HEFIREN FRRELREE S
KRBT ZEZRAUEFREN
FREZERTEREE_S=
—FRZEZZFRNA=THIESF
EHEAEBBRNEANTHHE -

RZZEZ\FNLA—AH * Koninklijke
Philips Electronics N.V.([KPEJ) A
(BB ARa - EFEH LMK
NREE(EFR—RESR) (FEm2m
FHEP =S REEARER
RICKPEATIF BRAR B ERNFF)
BEMELZIBRZRIE -

RIpZEERZER - BREERFER
HARE  BFEFRMNRLE
WERREERNBREBE - &
S RAAA RGBT R EE
A fhEt MU BEEBEZ T
=ERZEZ_FRA=THILESF
BRI MER AN AT BEEEMNE
MREELEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

On 8 January 2010, KPE claimed against among
other persons, the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil (one of the directors of the Company),
being three of the defendants named therein,
in respect of damages arising from the alleged
infringement of the patents regarding Digital Video
Disc owned by KPE.

On 6 June 2012, the action was discontinued
against the Company and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil. The claim made against ULV has been
agreed with KPE and settled by ULV and appropriate
legal costs provision was recognised accordingly in
the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2012.

No additional provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2023 and 2022. Based on the consultation
with legal counsel, no further material outflow of
economic benefits will be incurred for ULV.

Universe Artiste Management Limited ("UAM"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(the "Plaintiff”), commenced Court of First
Instance Action against Kwong Ling and Oriental
Prosperous Int’l Entertainments Limited (collectively
the “"Defendants”) on 30 June 2014 claiming,
inter alia, a declaration that UAM was entitled to
extend/renew the term of the Artist Management
Contract of the Defendants with UAM (the “Artist
Management Contract”) for 5 years as from 3 May
2014 to 2 May 2019 (the "Extension Option”).

The Defendants filed their defence and
counterclaimed on 29 September 2014. By such
counterclaim, the Defendants claimed against
UAM inter alia for a declaration that the Artist
Management Contract was void and unenforceable,
the Artist Management Contract to be rescinded,
damages for breach of the Artist Management
Contract and for breach of fiduciary duties, a
declaration that UAM was liable to account to the
Defendants and an order for payment of all sums
found to be due by UAM to the Defendants.

REMB|RME

42 FRIRFFFA@

(c)

(d)
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42 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(d)

(Continued)

On 18 February 2022, the Court of First Instance of
the High Court of Hong Kong ordered, among other
things (i) except for the certain clauses therein,
the Artist Management Contract is a valid and
enforceable agreement; (ii) the Extension Option
is not enforceable; and (iii) the damages as a result
of the breach of Artist Management Contract and
whether there should be repayment from one party
to another party would be investigated/assessed in
the next part of these proceedings.

As a result of breach of artist management
contract, Plaintiff claimed against the Defendants
for repayment in sum of approximately HK$1.7
million or alternatively, a repayment in sum of
approximately HK$1.1 million giving credit for
incomes and earnings of Defendants that Plaintiff
has been continuously receiving since May 2014.
Defendants made a counterclaim for approximately
HK$0.6 million against the Plaintiff as a result of
breach of artist management contract.

Upon the parties having gone through the relevant
documents and conducted the relevant calculations
in accordance with the judgement dated 18
February 2022, the parties have agreed that the net
amount is due from the Defendants to the Plaintiff
in the amount of approximately HK$0.5 million in
July 2023.

A substantive hearing for the determination of
the difference between the parties on interest
has been scheduled on 14 February 2024. The
Company is seeking legal advice in respect of the
above order. Given the complexities of the factual
and legal issues to be resolved, in the opinion of
legal counsel, it is premature to assess the likely
outcome of this case.

42 FRIRFFFA@

(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(e)

On 11 March 2020, China Jianxin Credit Services
Limited (“China Jianxin”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company commenced the Court
of First Instance Action of the High Court of Hong
Kong against China Wah Yan Healthcare Limited
(“China Wah Yan") for, among other things, (a)
the outstanding balance of HK$16,175,304.11,
being the outstanding principal and the interest
accrued up to 11 March 2020 thereon under a loan
agreement entered into between China Jianxin and
China Wah Yan on 30 April 2019; (b) interest on the
said outstanding principal of HK$15,800,000.00 at
the rate of 8.5% per annum from 12 March 2020
until full payment; (c) costs of the Action; and (d)
further and other reliefs (the “Original Action”).

China Wah Yan filed their defence and counterclaim
on 15 September 2020. According to such defence
and counterclaim, China Wah Yan and Sky Clear
Bright Group Limited (“Sky Bright”), the wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Wah Yan, counterclaimed
against China Jianxin, Precise Reach Group Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, one of the directors of
the Company for damages to be assessed, interest,
costs and further or other reliefs in relation to the
alleged misrepresentation and the alleged set-off
by China Wah Yan and Sky Bright in extinction or in
diminution of the claim of the Original Action.

REMB|RME
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42 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(e)

(Continued)

On 15th February 2023, the Court (i) entered
the summary judgment against China Wah Yan
for the Original Action, under which China Wah
Yan is ordered to pay China Jianxin the sum of
HK$16,175,304.11 together with interest on
HK$15,800,000.00 at the rate of 8.5% per annum
from 12th March 2020 until payment in full and (ii)
struck out the counterclaim of China Wan Yan and
Sky Bright against China Jainxin, Precise Reach
Group Limited and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, with
costs.

China Wah Yan and Sky Bright lodged the Notice of
Appeal in March 2023. The appeal hearing against
the summary judgment and the striking out of the
counterclaim was heard on 14 September 2023.
During the hearing on 14 September 2023, the
Court reserved the judgment by giving his decision
at a later date in writing. The Company is seeking
legal advice in respect of the above order. In the
opinion of legal advisor, it is not practicable to
assess the likely outcome of this action.

On 21 July 2021 a civil claim (the “Claim”) lodged by
Chengdu Global Bona Culture Media Co., Ltd.* (A% #B
RFEHN L EEBRAF]) (the “Chengdu Global
Bona”) against Universe Entertainment Limited (8
FIRLEBR A7), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and other six defendants, has been
accepted by the Beijing Intellectual Property Court*
bR EE AR

42 FRIRFFFA@

(e)
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42 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(f)

(Continued)

Under the Claim, Chengdu Global Bona alleged that
a film called “White Strom 2 — Drug Lords” (iR 52X
H¥R) released by the Group in 2019 infringed the
script copyright of a film called “Perfect Lover”*
(5EE1BA) (“Alleged Copyright Infringement”)
and claimed against all the defendants jointly
and severally for a damage of approximately
RMB99,990,000 (approximately HK$108.0 million)
arising from the Alleged Copyright Infringement.
Chengdu Global Bona also requested all the
defendants to (i) stop the Alleged Copyright
Infringement; (ii) make apology for the Alleged
Copyright Infringement; and (iii) bear the cost of
RMB600,000 (approximately HK$648,000) and all
other legal cost in relation to the Claim to Chengdu
Global Bona. The other six defendants of the Claims
are third parties independent of the Company and
its connected persons (as defined in the Listing
Rules).

After seeking the legal advice, the Group denied the
allegations of the Claims. The Beijing Intellectual
Property Court completed the hearing of this case
in June 2023 and the judgement is still pending.
The Group is seeking legal advice in respect of
the Claim. In the opinion of legal counsel, it is not
probable that the Group will be liable to the Claim
and the Board believes that the above litigation has
no material impact on the business and operation of
the Group.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, no other
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
Directors to be pending against either the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

REMB|RME

42 FRIRFFFA@

(f)

(&)

RIEBEZBER - KA RGN IETE
REEBR T —NFETH— I
HEGFFS2RMER) HEFZEIL
T—HERE(EEBAINEEHR
BI A B ([ IR hRBE]) » I
MATA S LR RERBRRED
RELREMEENBIOAR
#:99,990,0007C (X)108.0 8 &%
TC) © FXEBIR BR1E 4 71 B Sk T A 1
()2 I HBRIEARAE ¢« (DFUS
=30 hi e BB ¢ Rz (i) A o B K D
REEBWNEERRNKETARE
600,0007T (#1648,000/&7T) & Fr G
EMAERA - BRPREMASE
WEABYNANR REBEAL
(EEREMARANNE=F -

BNREEBRE  ARETRHER
BiE - ERABEREIRER =
To__FAFERUE - BANDE
ERFHR - AEBELERZFRT R
FRER - REBBRABEMN X
RERRR - ARE KA gEAK
EZHRR MEFERS AR
BARB X RNEBELEBEAY
@ .

B EXFEEIN  R-FE_=%FA
=t+H RHEFEFAA - ARFSHEEM
B B8 ) I 48 TED B £ ) EL A BE K OROR BR

AARE o

EFRECEBERDR —T-=FFH

249



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

43 COMMITMENTS

(a) Other commitments

The Group had commitments contracted but

43 TERYE

(a) EbAYE
AEEDFTHNERAERE T TEHRE

not provided for in these consolidated financial B AENT
statements as follows:
2023 2022
—EB_-= B F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Purchase of film rights and BEETREREY

production of films (Note i) BUE (BT 98,555 77,454

Included in the commitment for the purchase of
film rights and production of films, an amount
of approximately HK$3,252,000 is related to the
joint operation arrangements of film production
as at 30 June 2023 (2022: approximately
HK$10,050,000).

Note i:

44 FUTURE OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases as

Weki: R=ZFE_=FNA=FTHTA
BEETRERE R ERE
K% 5#93,252,000/8 T (= ZF
~ 4 :4910,050,000.58 7T)
HEEEY CEETHBR -

44 RREEHEZTHE

AEBERBEAARBEZQEZHEMAR
AR 2 BB EFAEBENAT

follows:

2023 2022
—EB-=F —EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Not later than one year BB —F 1,367 980

Later than one year and not later than iR —F R AEARF
five years 917 210
2,284 1,190
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REMB|RME

45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45 BEALTZRS
(a) Tenancy Agreements (a) THEW:=Z
The following transactions related to the tenancy WTRGEARRB —REELEHR
agreement with Universe Property Investment EZEFYERBEBERARZEE
Limited which is wholly-owned by a director of the A (MisEa) ©
Company (Note a).
2023 2022
—Z:== —F==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
i) Repayment of lease liabilities 1) (EEHEEE 2,826 2,743
i) Interest on lease liabilities i HEBEAES 101 184

Note a:

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited (“UDE"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a tenancy agreement
with Universe Property Investment Limited
("UPI"), a company owned by Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil, the executive director of the
Company, for renting (1) an industrial unit and
(2) 5 carparking spaces in an industrial building
for warehouse, ancillary office and carparking
uses in Kwai Chung from 25 February 2021
to 24 February 2024, at a monthly rental of
HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy Agreement”) which
was arrived at following arm’s length negotiation
between the Group and UPI with reference to
the rental valuation performed by Ravia Global
Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent
property valuer, as at 22 January 2018 which
reflected the then market rent. Under HKFRS16,
the Group recognized depreciation of right-of-use
assets and interest expenses of HK$2,798,000
(2022: HK$2,798,000) and HK$101,000 (2022:
HK$184,000) respectively instead of rental
expenses during the year.

ARAREEL2EHNBAGTE
FHHBREBRAATETF
HAEIRGE ) AN B HITE
EWNBREMEZRARE
FYEREBRAB(EF
MERENDHEBE T =_—F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 45 BEEALTZRZ @

(b) Details of key management compensation b) ETEEEEmMMFIH
Key management personnel are those management FEERAERBEHE - ETR
members with responsibility for planning, directing THIAREBER 2 BRE -
and controlling the activities of the Group.

2023 2022
—E=-= B F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHT

Salaries and other short-term e RHEMEHES
employee benefits =R 7,389 7,326
Post-employment benefits BB RIKEF 36 36
7,425 7,362

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these B ENXRREZEGREMBEREREME S

consolidated financial statements, no other material FriEBEIN  AEBWEETV HMER

related party transactions have been entered into by BBEANLTRS - ZERSTINBEER
the Group. The transactions were carried out after BEFALAEENBEEALHERE

negotiations between the Group and the related parties in 77 o

the ordinary course of business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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46 COMPANY-LEVEL BALANCE SHEET 46 NEIEEHEEAER
2023 2022
—E_-= B F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B AELE 72,096 72,096
Other financial asset HipemEE 770 770
ettt et et ettt rerteetaerertremuerennerernerannernaneenes N 72866 ... 72,866
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries YN E O] 259,431 261,414
Deposits paid =XEES 215 212
. Gash and cash equivalents . RERRETEN N2 %4
ettt teateereeirateeraettatrerneimteanateenarrennsienneiens.. N 259,927 ... 262,580
Total assets BEE 332,793 335,446
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to the KARERAEGES
owners of the Company
Share capital B A 9,066 9,066
Share premium gt 35,013 35,013
Other reserves Hib 597,789 597,789
Accumulated losses ZETEE (331,857) (329,655)
Total equity MRS ) 310,011 312,213
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JENP B A R FRIA 21,002 21,013
Accrued charges JEET 1,780 2,220
. . 22,782 23,233
. Total liabilities BRE 22782 23,233
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 332,793 335,446
Net current assets REBEEFE 237,145 239,347
Total assets less current BEERRBEE
liabilities 310,011 312,213
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

46

47

48

COMPANY-LEVEL BALANCE SHEET (continued)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28 September 2023.

Lam Kit Sun
Director

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Director

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 30 June 2023 and 2022, the directors consider the
immediate holding company and ultimate controlling party
of the Group to be Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited
and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil respectively. Pioneer
Entertainment Group Limited, which is incorporated in
BVI, does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Directors on 28 September
2023.

46

47

48

NEEHEEAEBR®

BR-_E-_=FNA-t+ \HEE=EY
HofE R IR T8 -

RZEZ_ZFRZE-__FA=
TH EEREAEEHNEEER
NRAEREEERF DA BPioneer
Entertainment Group Limited K& #k/)\8F
%4 ° Pioneer Entertainment Group
Limited R R BEE Z RF S s - W
HEARIHARALFERNTBHRE -

hER S B HRR

BAEMBBRRNR_T_=FhLA=ZTN
REEEHAE NIRRT -
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Principal Properties Held for Investment Purposes

RFEREMBRZEEYE

HONG KONG =B
Location Lot number Type Lease term
I B i E] BE HEFH
Woodland House 1-5, Lot numbers 1510 remaining Residential 2047

Woodlands Villa,

121 Tong Fuk Village,

Tong Fuk, Lantau Island,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BABR

NI JEAE

ERA1219%

i fl 22

MR E 1 ZE 558

part, 1511, 1516, 1518, 1519,
1522 and 1523 in Demarcation
District 328

LB 45328 B *= —ELF
F151058 %85 + 161158 -

15165% * 15185% + 15195% »

15225% K 162353

ETREVLEBMBERRA —Z-=FFH

255



256

Five Year Financial Summary

LFEUBERE

RESULTS E5
Year ended 30 June
BERAZTHLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
“B-=f CZT--f ZT=- T ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx FHET FEL FEL FEL
Revenue W 198,439 127,638 602,600 226,767 61,669
(Loss)/profit before income tax KT 2R AT (B518) /7 (95,855) (82,556) 181,509 (28,506) (118,600)
Income tax credit/(expense) FiEBEe,/ (A 2,450 3,635 (28,745) 141 123
(Loss)/profit attributable to ARAERFEA
the equity holders of FEfL (B598) /& F
the Company (92,757) (76,552) 154,345 (27,063) (121,200)
Special dividend BRI E = - - - 407,985
Proposed final dividend BRAREARE - - - - -
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
As at 30 June
RAA=tH
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=fF —T-C - “TIRF  B-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx FHET FEL TR THET
Total assets BEE 951,565 1,072,987 1,051,772 683,788 724,694
Total liabilities Bak 617,410 (645,759) (546,305) (328,896) (343,760)
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